Onewo Inc.

BENEZRMBEBRBZROERA A

(A joint stock company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)
(R EA RHE FE A B (B R 2 F])

Stock Code | B3R5 : 2602

e 2023



CONTENTS
B &

2 Corporate Milestones NEIAER

7 Corporate Honors NGIE L

10 Letter to Shareholders MpEE=

16  Definitions ==

21 Corporate Information NEVER

25  Financial Summary B S

26  Management Discussion and Analysis SR B HESH

56 Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management BE EENSATERE

74  Report of the Board of Directors EEeRE

119 Report of the Board of Supervisors BEEe R

123 Corporate Governance Report DB B
158 Independent Auditor’'s Report D AVEEE (e

onsolidated Statement of Profi




. CORPORATE MILESTONES
B ARSI

Vanke Service held "Equipment Room Open Day” to practice the concept of comprehensive
quality and make service for ever better.

BMYEERTIREFEFANA RS BIT2mmERER  ERBEAR

Xiangying Enterprise Service has obtained the Maturity Level 3 accreditation of Capability
Maturity Model Integration ("CMMI"), 1SO14001 Environmental Management System
Certification, 1SO45001 Occupational Health and Safety Management System Certification and
ISO20000 Information Technology Service Management System Certification.
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CORPORATE MILESTONES
ANCIPAE

9 City Up and the Chinese Society For Urban Studies jointly held the Urban Governance Innovation Practice
Forum.
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PERHTAERAL

iR IR I SEERIEIR
BRERDTHPRRLHDTAET LERSES

=

"

?  Vanke Service completed the construction of 100 “Senior Home” (“"$82 2% ") senior service
stations, exploring the construction of senior-friendly communities.

BMYETKI00ERE 2K I RERBUITE  REREFRIFBEEAOITE ©
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CORPORATE MILESTONES
A NEJRER
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?  Onewo officially launched "G4 Action” to continuously promote CPR training for customer-facing service
providers and the deployment of AED equipment in communities, and improve the emergency response
capabilities of Onewo service providers in various service spaces.

City Up was selected as the first batch of member units of the Digital Government Construction Service
Working Committee of Chinese Electronics Standardization Technology Association.

Cushman & Wakefield Vanke Service obtained ISO41001 Facility Management System Certification.

Vanrui IntelliTech’s participation in the compilation of the White Paper on Digitally Enabled Industry
Upgrading (B FLiEE T A K E)) was published.
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CORPORATE MILESTONES
ANCIPAE

Onewo hosted the opening ceremony of the 2023 China International Property Management Industry
Expo and participated in the exhibition; During the Expo, all cooperative units of Cushman & Wakefield
Vanke Service jointly held the IFM (Integrated Facility Management) Forum on “Integrating Facility
Management and Exploring Space Value” and launched the "IFM High-Quality Development” initiative.

Onewo released the first large-scale model of the property industry “Libra Property Committee
Workbench” ("XFFEZETI{EAR"), a property committee service tool that empowers community
governance with technology and solves the urgent problems and worries of the community.

The first monograph on the operation and maintenance of super high-rise buildings in China, Guidelines
for the Management of Facilities and Equipment in Super High-Rise Buildings compiled by the expert
team of Cushman & Wakefield Vanke Service, was officially published.
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The Chinese and English versions of White Paper on Low-Carbon Properties in Commercial Spaces in

China jointly compiled by Cushman & Wakefield Vanke Service, RICS and Tongji University were officially
published.
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"G4 Action” of Onewo was launched in Shenzhen, realizing 100% CPR first aid training for all customer-
facing service providers in Shenzhen and full coverage of AED for residential projects.
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CORPORATE HONORS
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Aspect Awards
=gl %18
Space Technology Lingshi Solution won the third prize of the Digital Transformation Application Competition
Service and the Most Popular Case Award of the Digital Native New Entity Competition in the
ZeRIRHE IR A R R
[BOFTRIKBE_RBISFN I BFEAERAE=5K FFRENEBEEREA
R

The intelligent operation platform of Onewo was selected in the Panorama of High-
Quality Digital Transformation Products and Services released by the China Academy for
Information and Communication Technology

[BNE2BERELTE I ARTREAR(SEERTLBAERNRE2RE)

Onewo was listed on the Top 100 Internet Enterprises in China

BYERETEEBMELERREE]

Onewo was awarded 2023 Technology Service Providers with Outstanding Performance of
Digital Intelligence

BMERB 2023 XRGEEE HE#RE
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Community Space
Service

it [ Z= R AR

Vanke Service was awarded 2023 Leading Chinese Company in Property Service Quality
Vanke Service was awarded 2023 TOP 1 Residential Property Service Company in China

BRI ELE 2023 EYERKEEFLCE | BRYELE 2023 FREEWERSH
TOP1 {1 |

Commercial Space
Service

7 10 ZE fR AR 75

Cushman & Wakefield Vanke Service was awarded the 2023 Contribution Award for
Carbon Peaking and Carbon Neutrality

Cushman & Wakefield Vanke Service was awarded the Facilities Management Team of the
Year, Sustainability Achievement of the Year and other seven awards in 2023 by RICS China
BYRITRB2023FEEMTHERE| BVRITRE[FEREEEENK ] - [FEARHER
K82 | -+ TBRICS 2023 F B #2

Urban Space
Service

90 T ZE FE AR 7

“Jianghan Model” of City Up was awarded the Outstanding Case of Smart City in China of the Year
City Up was awarded 2022-2023 Influential Enterprises and Excellent Solutions in the Industrial
Internet Smart City Field by CCID

EMERNDEBR KB HEEERTFERARI | EMEMKEEE[2022-2023F%
EMESEHTRATENCENESTBRATR]
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2023 FHERIBEES GRSt

2023 Hong Kong International ESG Ranking

B i 2 ESG Bk

Best Listed Company at ESG Advancement

B R AR BS I 73 4 1L 2]
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IRSC
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Aspect Awards
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Investor Relations Onewo was awarded the Best Digital Investor Relations Award in the 7th China IR Awards
REERMIR BYVEREFtEPHEBRTEN [ REHFIREEBRE]

Onewo was awarded the Social Pioneer Enterprise Award by ESG of CLS

BYERBYBITESGEL S B ERBLER

Corporate Social Oneworld Plan was awarded the Responsible Case of the Year 2023 by Southern Weekly
Responsibility BYE AR BILE(FEHBER)2023FEETRA)
rEHERME

Onewo was awarded the Best Listed Company for ESG Responsibility Progress Award by
Hong Kong Ta Kung Wen Wei Media Group

ENERBEARNAXEGRKELTARESGREERNE]
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
B RE

Building Momentum, Overcoming MBI E - BDRE
Challenges

Mr. Zhu Baoquan KRE2BKE

Chairman, Executive Director EER HITESRELE

and General Manager



Letter to Shareholders: Building Momentum, Overcoming
Challenges

The management couldn’t help sighing at the performance
of the Company's stock price in 2023. The Company’s share
repurchase proved little effect. The proposed scrip dividend
scheme in relation to profit distribution for the half year of
2023 was meant to enhance investors’ confidence but was
unfortunately interpreted negatively by the market as a sign of
the Company’s lack of cash instead. Onewo failed to be admitted
to the Hang Seng Composite Index reviewing in the current
quarter due to insufficient share turnover in the fourth quarter,
which resulted in a continual drop in its stock price. Later the
Company explained this fact by presenting the reply from Hang
Seng Indexes Company Limited in an open letter, which was well
understood by the market.

Secondary market operates as a parallel world to the Company’s
operations. Although the ups and downs of a company’s stock
price can be caused by short-selling and swing trading, they serve
as a mirror reflecting the operations of the Company to some
extent. In this sense, only stable and genuine operating results,
along with transparent and ample communication can earn
shareholders’ trust. Trust and confidence form the cornerstone of
stock prices.

In previous years, with high growth and gross margin, many
property service providers had been a good bet in the capital
market. However, until the sudden contraction of real estate
development activities in China, these property service providers
were not aware that they had been too dependent on property
developers and were dumped by the capital market immediately.
Without trust, it is difficult to build confidence again.

Undeniably, real estate owners cannot live without
services from property management industry, so the
contract renewal rate of this industry is over 85%, which
outperforms most SaaS services. However, the years from
2023 to 2025 will be an up-or-out period for the industry. The
shift from serving real estate developers who are struggling
today and see their industry declining to serving property owners
who are in high demand for property services requires an A-lister
in the industry to devote time to demonstrating its capability of
solving the following problems.

LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
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‘ LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
- BRRE
N

Transformation of income structure. It is impossible for major
shareholders who are also real estate developers to experience
another property development boom. The consequent issue is
that value-added services for developers with high gross margin
slumped due to the shrunken increments resulting from slow real
estate sales and the mounting property management fees payable
by the developers for vacant properties. The resulting impact on
the financial statements takes time for property service providers
to digest and they need to get rid of the path dependency,
and make up their mind to undergo a transformation and seek
independence.

A string of problems brought by growth achieved through
economies of scale. The existing market will witness a starker
competition for sure. How big a company is and how big its
name is are two important decisive factors in the rivalry among
players in the existing market. But behind growth achieved
by leveraging economies of scale are a train of problems. For
example, there may be defects in human resources and service
quality guarantees. In the era of we-media, every complaint
about services can potentially be a brand disaster, and flying
blind on growth will end up a vicious spiral. For another example,
to a company employing a large number of service personnel,
if customers are getting unwilling to pay due to a decline in its
service quality while the employee payroll must be paid, this will
even cause a lack of cash flow. The contingent problems brought
by growth achieved through economies of scale can only be
solved when technology is proactively embraced and the culture
of “customer first” is firmly hold on to.

We would like to travel with more outstanding peers and climb
over hills of difficulty faced by real estate developers together.
“Can’t stop complaining that we are in bad times, and won't
forget why we start until we make it”.

ENEEMMBRBBRNDERRF 2023FFH
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On our IPO roadshows, you said “Yeah” and “Right” and
nodded when we briefed you on Onewo’s strategies. However,
when it comes to industry research, | understand that you may
take these strategies with a pinch of salt from day one. In our
second annual report, we have good news for you. First, our
quality services have been recognized by customers and the
ratio of net operating cash flow to net profit reached 1.3 times.
Second, the Onewo Town strategy has accomplished a scheduled
milestone with the gross profit margin of the transformed
Onewo Town grew by 4.5 percentage points, which drove the
increase in overall gross profit of residential properties. Third,
thanks to the customer diversification strategy, the Company
has maintained growth by leveraging economies of scale while
continue reducing the continuing connected transactions with
Vanke; the proportion of revenue was down to 13.5%. Fourth,
the execution of the technology strategy has contributed to the
enhancement of our business efficiency and the management
fee rate decreased by 0.9 percentage point; and the revenue of
AloT and BPaa$ solution services grew by a year-on-year increase
of 16.9%, accounting for 8.4% of the total revenue of the
Company.

In 2023, we carried out pilot projects for the research and
development of the “Lingshi” edge server and the “Feige”
intelligent work order system in some Onewo Towns. The
Company wanted its industry knowledge to be stored and
iterated by intelligent means for better sharing. This innovative
initiative will further improve the efficiency and broaden
the coverage of the property management services, making
intelligent properties a label of Vanke Service.

In 2023, we made an attempt at developing pilot projects of
energy management services with our clients in respect of our
commercial property services, in the hope of helping clients
cut their cost of energy consumption through technology
development and collaboration among ecosystem participants.
Further, the Company has been exploring technology pathways
to carbon emissions reduction in a bid to make green properties
a label of Cushman & Wakefield Vanke Service.

LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
A BRE

In 2023, we further expanded our asset services in Onewo Towns
centering on “repair and maintenance, decoration, leasing and
trading”. The gross transaction value of the second-hand housing
transactions grew by a year-on-year increase of 24.5%; the
contract value of the decoration business in Onewo Towns grew
by a year-on-year increase of 68.0%; and the business volume of
maintenance and decoration business in Onewo Towns grew by
a year-on-year increase of 90.8%. The total amount of the value-
added services centering on assets exceeded RMB32.5 billion
and the frequency of services exceeded 5.66 million. Focused on
asset services, we have set up a professional team based on the
home decoration industry and brokerage industry. Centering on
service radius of Onewo Towns, the service process has also been
restructured to outperform the service efficiency of the home
decoration industry and brokerage industry, thus making an
efficient ecological service network of Onewo Town.

The Company has aimed to attach equal importance to the R&D
of technologies and the observance of its service philosophy
since the day it was renamed “Onewo”. To carry out the mission
of “reshape space efficiency, service for ever better (E¥8%2fH3
&, RIGEEABHT)", we have built a space-based service network
as well as a service ecosystem. Although the labor shortage will
be alleviated in the short term, such shortage can last in the
long run. Furthermore, Al is restructuring the business model of
traditional industries. Such restructuring is happening every day,
but when we discuss with our customers whether the services
from Al and machines are acceptable to them, they always
say that they prefer the tenderness of people. “We are too
powerless to fight back against misfortune but we will not
yield until the very last day”.

BNEERMERBRMOERRF 2023FFH
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
HRE

The Company is proud to announce that in 2023, 39,821 of
its employees completed CPR skills training, successfully saving
12 lives, while a total of 2,870 AED facilities were installed
as planned by the Company joined by the foundation and
| asked Lv Meina, our housekeeper for a
“Why the owner thought of you in
"l keep in

property owners.
Changchun-based project:
such a life-threatening situation? ” She answered,
contact with the owners, and they usually turn to me when they
need any help”. | asked Sun Qimeng, who heads one of our
“Why did you save this man at the Beijing Capital
International Airport while so many people could lend a hand

sales centers:

there? ” Qimeng responded, “I have been trained in the first-aid
training session offered by our Company, and | didn’t think much
of it when I did it”.

We are still far away from achieving the goal of installing AED
facilities in every residential compound under management, but
as the saying goes, do not fail to do a good deed even if it seems
trivial. With the speedy development of our services, we believe
that many littles makes a muckle.

“Can’t remember who gave the last hug and when it was”.

2023F L ABHNZE - AAF1F39,821%
BIT5ER T O EEERURIAR + WA %R
TI21E%E®S  RABAES G ERE KT
%72870AAED R B REERAE

[ ARETELEDEEREEIR] 2 /N
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A BBIMEBERAL? A - [ERFEK
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BERFIR ]

Onewo Inc. Annual Report 2023 15




16

DEFINITIONS

\ EE

\\\

“Annual General Meeting”

[ERBFEAE]

"Articles of Association”

KRARIER)]

"Audit Committee”

[BETEREE]

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

[EEE

“Board of Supervisors”

[EEEE]

“China” or “the PRC" or
the “People’s Republic of
China”

[FRE ] g [ EE AR HAFE ]

“China Vanke”

[ERhE]

“China Vanke Group”
[&REE ]

"o

“Company”, “our Company”,

noon

“the Company”, "Onewo”

[ARBRTENE]

15

BNEERMERBRMOERRF 2023FFH

the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
May 10, 2024
RR2024F5 A0 BTN ARRIEERRBF RS

the articles of association of Onewo Inc.

(BYEZRABBERBROARARER)

the audit committee of the Board

EEQEITRES

the board of directors of the Company

RABEEE

the board of supervisors of the Company

AATBES

the People’s Republic of China, and for the purpose of this annual report
for geographical reference only

EARLAE  AFRMES RS E

China Vanke Co., Ltd. (BRIOZERMHBER AR, a joint stock limited
company incorporated in the PRC, the H shares and A shares of which are
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 2202) and Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (stock code: 000002), respectively, and a Controlling
Shareholder of our Company

ERCEROGERLAA - —KAPFEAMAIHOROERLAA - EHERR
AR RIRE BB AZAT (RS - 2202) RORYIEBEF X F A (BHFRE -
000002) £+ BALQ RFERALIR

China Vanke and its subsidiaries

BHEERENBAR

Onewo Inc. (BMEZ=EEFERERMDEBRAF]), a limited liability company
incorporated in the PRC on February 20, 2001 and converted into a joint
stock limited company incorporated in the PRC on March 20, 2018
BYEZMRERBEBROER AR - —KR2001F2 A20 BEHBEZEMAKL
WARAT - 1201853 A20 HekHI A —REF BEMAZARNDBR AR




“Controlling Shareholder(s)” or
“Controlling Shareholders
Group”

[ AR ) ok [ R AR SR

“Corporate Governance Code”
or “CG Code”
[KEER<TRD]

4

"Director(s)” or “our Directors’

[E%]

“Domestic Share(s)”

[RE ]

“Employee Shareholding
Platforms”
[BTHKRFE]

“Global Offering”

DEFINITIONS

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules and unless the
context otherwise requires, refers to China Vanke, Shenzhen Wanging
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. (RIITT BEEEZHBR A R]), Shenzhen
Wanhu Management Consulting Co., Ltd. CRIITEAERZRERARF),
Shenzhen Wanmazhengxian Management Consulting Co., Ltd. (&JITHE
EREEIEAMER A7), Shenzhen Yingda Investment Fund Management
Co., Ltd. (RYITMBEREREESEIEARR AT, Shenzhen Wanshuzhimiao
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. (RIITT & 2P ERARBRAF) and
Shenzhen Wanhugquanyuan Management Consulting Co., Ltd. CEYITH & A
RREBEABRAA)

BEREC(ETRADAE TORE  WXESHREIN - BERGE  RITE
EEBRBRAARLAF  RYNTEMERZABRAR  RTEFFLER
BHAERAT RN TRBEREESBTEERAR  RITER Y EER
HARDB RRYITHEARREEZRNERAF]

Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules
CEMARADMERC TE AR EE G

the director(s) of our Company

RRRES

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of our Company, with a nominal value
of RMB1.00 each, which are subscribed for and paid up in Renminbi by
domestic investors, and were fully converted into H Shares on October 24,
2023, details of which are set out in the paragraph headed “H Share Full
Circulation” in the Report of the Board of Directors in this annual report
RRARBRATEREEARK1.00THERR  ABRAREEUARKERE
Ngie - BR2023F10 24 ABBE R AHE - FEENAFERETESS
BEHR2RE ] —&

collectively, Ruida | Limited, Ruida Il Limited, Ruida lll Limited, Ruida IV
Limited and Ruida V Limited

BEF—HBRAF - BEF_BRRF - BESE
NAREBEZNBRARBAHE

ERAT  BEENER

the Hong Kong Public Offering and the International Offering (including
the Preferential Offering to Qualifying China Vanke H Shareholders) of the
Offer Shares, details of which are set out in the Prospectus
BERMPNBTELAFEERERZEE (BERNEMHRE EBRRNE L E
B HFBENERER
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DEFINITIONS

\\\

“Group”, “our Group”,

"woou "

“the Group”, “"we"”,
“Us” or “our”

[ E ] 8 [ 2

"H Shares”

[HA% |

"HK$", "Hong Kong dollars”,
“HK dollars” or “cents”

[T

“Hong Kong” or "HK"
(&%)

“Independent Third Party” or
“Independent Third Parties”

[(BIFE=77]

“International Financial
Reporting Standards”
[CBIFR B 7 3 5 22 1)) |

“Latest Practicable Date”

[RREFRAITTEE]

“Listing Date”

[ £ H

BNEERMERBRMOERRF 2023FFH

our Company and its subsidiaries from time to time or, where the context
so requires, in respect of the period prior to our Company becoming the
holding company of its present subsidiaries, the business operated by such
subsidiaries or their predecessors (as the case may be)
RRARRETKHMBLRR - 3 (FBXEME) MARRKASEBAINERF
BWERARIZANHRENE - EHZENBRARIXEMNS 2 E (RERME)
BIE S E S

overseas listed shares in the share capital of our Company with a nominal
value of RMB1.00 each, which are subscribed for in Hong Kong dollars and
traded on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

ARABBRAFFREBARE1.00THEI ETRG - WBETRERNES

BImEE

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BREEEEAET

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
HREEBFRITEH R

individual(s) or company(ies) or their respective ultimate beneficial owner(s),
who/which, to the best of our Directors’ knowledge, information and
belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, is/are not connected with our
Company, its subsidiaries or any of their respective associates within the
meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules

KIER - BEARBRESMAN  RABRERE  BARA - HWEQF]
FEZXBNEMBEA (A ETHRADMETERE) SR ETARENEA
FAFHEZENRRERERA

International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board from time to time

B et £REEE TRHRAN(BRRMBREER)

April 11, 2024, being the latest practicable date for the purpose of
ascertaining certain information in this annual report prior to its printing

2024F4 R A - AFEHMNENFEEETAEE THEORKERATH
£

the date on which the dealing in the Shares first commences on the Stock
Exchange, being September 29, 2022
202299 A 290 - BN A P & RFAME e A




“Listing Rules”

[KEMHAD]

“Nomination Committee”

[REZEE

“Qver-allotment Option”

[ B A ACASUHE |

“Prospectus”

(A ER]

“Remuneration Committee”

Ei ESSE-

“Reporting Period”
[$REH]

“Retained China Vanke Group”

[T EREE]

“"RMB” or “Renminbi”

[AR% ]

“SFO" or "Securities and
Futures Ordinance”

[KEBHRHEHR)]

DEFINITIONS

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified
from time to time

(BEMERGMERRBZES EMHRAD) - BARER] - HRSAEMTH
ET08

the nomination committee of the Board

EEQRALES

the option granted by our Company under the International Underwriting
Agreement to the International Underwriters, exercisable by the
Joint Representatives (on behalf of themselves and the international
underwriters), pursuant to which our Company may be required to allot
and issue up to an aggregate of 11,334,700 additional H Shares at the
Offer Price, to facilitate the delivery of H Shares to cornerstone investors
who have agreed to defer delivery of the relevant H Shares subscribed for
under their respective cornerstone investment agreements
HARRIRBEEEFEE GRS TRERAEEOERE  aBERAR(REEA
F NEFAEE) TR BUEARRAREEBEEREITEH11,334,700
IREESMER - AEREREEERXNBREREEBEAREHZZRBOHEBHKR
BEARE E X HRAR D

the prospectus of the Company dated September 19, 2022 in connection
with the Global Offering
ANRIBHA2022F9A 198 RSB EFHHBRER

the remuneration and evaluation committee of the Board

EExeymMERZRS

the year ended December 31, 2023
HE2023F12A31HILEFE

China Vanke and its subsidiaries, excluding the Group
ERCEREAMBAR (REERKRIN

the lawful currency of the PRC
HEVEEE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)
EBEPESTI ECESFREEEDD
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“Share(s)”

[ Bty |

"Shareholder(s)”
[A%3R ]

“Stock Exchange” or
“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”
§6 5 P 3 [ BB R PR

"

"Supervisor(s)

(%

“Unlisted Foreign Shares”

[3F EMSNE R ]

“Unlisted Shares”
[FELEMAR

"o
[% ]

BNEERMERBRMOERRF 2023FFH

share(s) in the share capital of our Company, with a nominal value of
RMB1.00 each
RRARBRAHFREBEARE1.007TH RN

holder(s) of our Share(s)

IGESE=UN
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEMERXHMER AT

supervisor(s) of our Company

RRAES

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of our Company, with a nominal value
of RMB1.00 each, which are subscribed for and paid for in currency other
than RMB by foreign investors, not listed on any stock exchange, and were
fully converted into H Shares on October 24, 2023, details of which are set
out in the paragraph headed “H Share Full Circulation” in the Report of the
Board of Directors in this annual report
AABERAHEGREBARE1.00THEBER - BFEIMEEEUAREUIN
WEBRBLXN MAREERZEFRZXSH LM - BR2023F10H24B8%
HEROHR  FHEARAFEREESEREHRE2RB] —K

Domestic Shares and Unlisted Foreign Shares

NEBMIEEMINER

percentage

AL
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MR

A summary of the consolidated results and consolidated financial ANEB@EERAEFBEENSHFEREZELS
position of the Group for the last five financial years is set ISR AR EEH T - IS ERE,
out below. The amounts for years ended December 31, 2022 ZFE2022FEK2021FE12A31BILEERN SR
and 2021 in the financial summary have been adjusted for the B FAELA(BEREEAER|YFE 1258 ({BE]4)
effects of the retrospective changes arising from the adoption 28 —3x55E4£ & EN B (E1HE 7 ELEF
of amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and HEMESHBEHUESSHZE/ELFARE 8
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction, as detailed in note  BAFSERFMIzE2.2 o

2.2 to the financial statements.

Consolidated results 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
AftREXR 2023% 2022 20215 2020F 20194
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
IGCESTA \E5TT ARETT ARBTRT ARETR
(Restated) (Restated)
(BE5)) (BE751)

Revenue WA 33,183,458 30,105,803 23,704,539  18,145464 13,927,289
Profit before tax AR 2,657,821 2,020,773 2,320,009 2,108,873 1,454,721
Income tax expense FrigHEY (621,992) (433,521) (606,353) (590,018) (414,442)
Profit for the year ERFE 2,035,829 1,587,252 1,713,656 1,518,855 1,040,279
Attributable to: A& TR -
Shareholders of the Company /NG 1,954,696 1,511,649 1,666,970 1,464,039 1,019,894
Non-controlling interests IR 81,133 75,603 46,686 54,816 20,385

2,035,829 1,587,252 1,713,656 1,518,855 1,040,279

Consolidated financial position 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
AHMBRAR 2023F 20026 20215 2020F 20194
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
IGESTA \E5TT ARETT ARETRT ARETR
(Restated) (Restated)
(fE5) (i E5)

Non-current assets FRBEE 14,498,070 15,174,197 15,073,437 6,796,065 6,140,312
Current assets MBEE 24,885,047 21,788,788 13,708,383 12,207,692 9,985,705
Current liabilities mEBE 18,682,559 17,713,544 16,281,888 11,512,169 9,771,856
Net current assets/(liabilities) nEEE/(8fE)FE 6,202,488 4,075,244  (2,573,505) 695,523 213,849
Total assets less current liabilities BELEATDERE 20,700,558 19,249,441 12,499,932 7,491,588 6,354,161
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 2,480,317 2,247,937 2,187,989 926,998 683,738
Net assets BEFE 18,220,241 17,001,504 10,311,943 6,564,590 5,670,423
Equity attributable to AREIRE

shareholders of the Company [EiRRER 17,605,426 16,460,196 9,892,773 6,255,014 5,488,653
Non-controlling interests RS 614,815 541,308 419,170 309,576 181,770
Total equity RmesE 18,220,241 17,001,504 10,311,943 6,564,590 5,670,423
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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INDUSTRY REVIEW

Industry Watershed I: Dual Challenges of
Expanding New Markets and New Customers

Since 2018, property service enterprises have risen to be shining
stars in the real estate field and caught investors’ attention.
Against this backdrop, leveraging the advantage of relative
real estate shareholders’ support, property service enterprises
under various real estate groups embarked on listing and, by
virtue of the dual advantages of capital support and undoubted
business growth, gained prosperity. They have also led to an
unprecedented impact on independent third party property
service providers.

From 2021 to 2023, the market experienced sharp changes, and
the real estate industry suffered unprecedented and extreme
adjustments. According to the public information, for most
of the listed property service enterprises with transactions
accounted from related party for more than 40%, the gross
profit plummeted by 20.1%, the average marketing value also
dropped to P/E ratio of 1.18 times, and the ratio of impairment
provision to the revenue in the first half climbed to 29.5% during
this round of adjustment. In this round of significant adjustment
in the real estate field, the property industry is experiencing
the pain of transformation. Those closely associated with the
real estate business were notably weaker than peers with
strong independence in terms of operation and capital market
recognition. Looking forward to 2024, this trend is expected to
continue.

In such tide of transformation, property service enterprises
will face two key challenges: whether they have the ability
to expand their business in the existing market; and whether
they can effectively exploit previous experiences and abilities in
serving developers to serve other customers. The property service
enterprises will face the development capability tests posed by
such two challenges, which will be the first watershed in the
industry to determine their position in the future market and
fate. Only the property service enterprises that pass these tests,
may prove that they have unique attractiveness to consumers and
are capable of expanding a new market outside the real estate
market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED T

Industry Watershed Il: Game Between Scale
Expansion and Service Quality

Although the supply and demand in labor market experienced
short easement in 2023, and enterprises experienced the relief
of employment pressure in the short term, the labor-intensive
nature for property industry remains unchanged up to this day,
and the trend of long-term labor shortage will last.

When all sectors of society discussing the Mathew Effect in
property industry, they shall not overlook the long-lasting
contradiction between scale and service. If the “labor force
based” pricing model used in traditional labor-intensive
industry remains unchanged, it will be difficult to eliminate the
phenomenon of “misrepresentation” in project management for
property industry. Scale is beneficial to service when it is small,
and is harmful to service when it expands to a large size.

The inherent nature of the industry remains a challenge to us.
How to ensure extremely stable satisfaction when expanding
scale has become a common focus inside and outside the
industry.

Against this backdrop, the Al technology, which was high-
profile in 2023, provides us a solution. The application of new
technologies such as Large Language Models (LLMs), a new
type of Al technology, will not only drive the transformation
and upgrade of labor-intensive industries, but also promote
the in-depth industrial structure adjustment. Al technology will
significantly improve the efficiency of back-stage integrated
management and control, which not only can ensure on-site
service quality, but also improve frontline service efficiency
through procedure optimization. Meanwhile, Al technology
will enable the intelligent inheritance and iteration of valuable
industrial experience and management system. Enterprises shall
constantly invest in technical research and development to
ensure the win-win situation for both scale expansion and service
quality. Enterprises that can keep up with the development of
new technologies will absolutely stand out in this reform.

BE2023F BN EHEKBERERER
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BAOMER - RAMKESH  MERITENS
BEENBUHYRNE S HRIERY
BB

& FEF B EITENO B RNUWER - T8
PERBEERE N 2 EMEDFENTE - 1
REBLTEEGSHTRUTEIAT AR
MEERR MY ETRAERE EEE
[ ASE &S - ERRAOER - RER
R AR : EREEAR - RERZRSE
FIRIA ©

TENEBBMEDARZ ML ARH Ak
B - R REROFR - BERBHEED
BAURE  RATITERIIKRBEINE
B o

FE—BES T 2023FHEXEE AR -
BRMREHETHERZE - AIKEREHRHE
WIER - TMEBEDLEBEERITENER
FR - BRREEEEHRERAR - AR
AR EEEXEZHHE - NMEAMU
BRAGHREESE - BEELREXMR
F— BRI R HE - R - AT SE
EMITELBRMERE ZETERLAEE
HER - CEFTEFREEHRBEMBETR
A RERFABRBRARBEENER o 3
LR SRR E - N EE—#
EHBEAEmME o

Onewo Inc. Annual Report 2023

27




28

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

\ ERERES T

v S

Industry Watershed Ill: With Long-term
Business and Thin Profit, Cash is the Priority

With the awakening of owners’ demand for good services,
the rate of changing property services providers has risen
significantly, but the industry’'s renewal rate still remains higher
than 85% in the market as a whole. Therefore, property business,
which can be regarded as a “perpetual and sustainable”
business, is a rare and real “long-term” business.

The term is long, but the profit is thin. According to the
measurements and calculation in CRIC's 2024 Report, more
than 70% of residential projects across the country only have a
net profit margin of 5% to 8%. Under the attribute of “long-
term business with thin profit”, the cash flow management is
crucial. There has always been a close link between owners’
willingness to pay and the quality of service. For small
enterprises, maintaining a high level of service quality is easier to
achieve, and their cash flow can usually be maintained at a good
momentum, which make them flexible and resilient. However,
as the orders of magnitude on the scale of the enterprise
changes, the difficulty of maintaining service quality stability
will also increase exponentially, which requires enterprises to
truly understand customers’ demand and on-site work, further
strengthen their operational and management capabilities and
stabilize the collection rate, so as to achieve profits with cash
flow, ensuring a steady progress on the road of industry’s
sustainable development. Though the profit is thin, it will
eventually accumulate into a peak.

BNEERMERBRMOERRF 2023FFH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED T

STRATEGIES REVIEW

Onewo Town Strategy: Gross Profit of
Residential Properties Increased by 3.5
Percentage Points

Site selection and construction of Onewo Town: prominent
advantage of regional density

As of December 31, 2023, the Group had built a total of 621
Onewo Towns, of which 191 were Standard Onewo Towns, 188
were Focused Onewo Towns and 242 were Target Onewo Towns;
during the Reporting Period, the number of new residential
property projects in Onewo Towns amounted to 319 in total.

The smooth progression in the site selection and construction
of Onewo Town benefited from the branding effect of Vanke
Service under the Group, and the prominent advantages of the
Onewo Town model in acquiring existing projects. According
to the Group’s internal bidding statistics, the success rate of
acquiring existing projects in Onewo Towns exceeded 60%.

During the Reporting Period, the Group committed to a total of
104 newly acquired projects to invest in transformation funds for
smart communities, which will be gradually put into use within
three years after taking over those projects, with an estimated
amount of RMB170.9 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Process transformation: continued improvement in space
efficiency

As of December 31, 2023, the Group has carried out process
transformation for 150 Onewo Towns in total, including 1,124
residential property projects, of which 112 Onewo Towns were
newly added for process transformation this year. As a result
of the increase in the number of Onewo Towns that achieved
efficiency improvement through process transformation, as well
as the continuous iteration and optimization of Onewo Towns
operations after process transformation, the overall efficiency
of the transformed Onewo Towns improved by 4.5 percentage
points, and the overall gross profit of the residential properties
increased by 55.5% as compared to the same period of last
year, and the goal of improving the space efficiency has been
continuously realizing.

In 2024, the Group will continue to promote the process
transformation of no less than 100 Onewo Towns.

Ecological superposition: combining the efficiency with
satisfaction

In Onewo Towns, the Group has continued to offer services
centering on housing assets and has performed well in its
four major businesses, namely, leasing, trading, repair and
maintenance, and decoration in 2023.

Although subject to the market sentiment index, Pulin, as the
real estate brokerage brand under Onewo, has still demonstrated
its competitiveness. With the regional advantage brought by the
Onewo Town model, the results of Pulin has continued to grow.
During the Reporting Period, the GTV of the second-hand home
trading business of the Company amounted to RMB21,345.8
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 24.5%; the
GTV of the second-hand home leasing business amounted to
RMB150.9 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 4.5%;
and the revenue from the second-hand houses brokerage services
amounted to RMB408.0 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of 25.1%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED T

As a proprietary decoration business under Onewo, Onewo
Yanxuan Home (B¥HER
into the Onewo Town community and is committed to giving

) continues to penetrate deeply

old houses new glory, elaborately creating a series products
concerning old houses repair, transformation and renovation, and
continuing to convey the warmth of the “acquaintance-based
economy” and the core values of “transparency, reassurance and
rapidness”. Currently, the business focuses on promoting three
core partial decoration products, namely kitchens, bathrooms and
balconies, leading the transformation of a brand-new lifestyle. As
of December 31, 2023, the Group has carried out the decoration
business in 40 Onewo Towns, with a contract value of RMB354.9
million during the Reporting Period, representing a year-on-year

increase of 68.0%.

At the same time, the Group piloted part of its maintenance
and housekeeping business in Onewo Town, to build up the
ecosystem of Onewo Town. During the Reporting Period,
turnover of maintenance and housekeeping business amounted
to RMB247.8 million,

136.8%.

representing a year-on-year increase of

Customer diversification strategy: penetrating deeply
into and focusing on five major areas, and continuously
extending service capabilities

As the Group’s commercial office property management brand,
Cushman & Wakefield Vanke Service continued to deepen its
expansion in the five major areas during the Reporting Period,
and further enriched the client matrix with the addition of
renowned insurance companies, global leading sports brands,
top medical equipment companies and top home appliances
companies, etc., contributed an increase of saturated income
of RMB1,064.1 million,
51.7%. By virtue of the outstanding service capability and market

representing a year-on-year increase of

expansion capacity of Cushman & Wakefield Vanke Service, a
total of 15 super high-rise projects were acquired during the
Reporting Period.
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The Group has successfully reused its hardware technology
capabilities previously serving developers in more areas, and
actively expanded new market channels to ensure growth. During
the Reporting Period, the Group made encouraging progress in
the industrial customers, winning bids in projects including public
rental housing in Chongging and talent housing in Shenzhen,
and signing contracts for a total of 1,270 projects, of which the
products in the category of Industrial Park realized a 126.0%
growth in contract value, successfully filling the gap caused by
cautious carrying out of related businesses due to the impact on
the developer industry.

During the Reporting Period, the Company explored a variety of
business operations targeting customers within the commercial
space, including dust-free management, energy management,
investment promotion services, curtain wall lighting and car
park management services, etc., with the multiple business
operations generating a total contract value of RMB542.5 million,
representing a year-on-year growth of 107.5%. Meanwhile, the
Group’s external expansion capabilities for remote enterprise
services were further validated and the service boundary was
further expanded. With the concerted efforts of the local public
services and remote sharing centers, we successfully signed
a contract with a leading automobile company for HR shared
service center, with a total contract amount for winning bid of
RMB43.0 million, which achieved customer satisfaction rate of
95% for the full year of 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Technology Strategy: Significant Effect of
Internal Research and External Expansion

R&D results
The Black Cat series of access control products and Pineapple

No. 1,
made significant contributions to improving the efficiency of the

as the Group's mature self-developed products, have

residential business.

During the Reporting Period, the Pineapple No. 1 was used by
3.2 million people and the Black Cat series of access control
equipment was used by 4,115.0 million people, providing
convenience to owners. The intelligent hardware was deployed
and used by customers, which in turn contributed to the
operational transformation of Onewo Town. Compared with
traditional manual service, customers had good experience with
such intelligent hardware, and four-star customer satisfaction
reached 80% in residential projects after process transformation.
After the process change, the gross profit of basic residential
property increased by 3.5 percentage points on a year-on-year
basis, achieving a win-win situation in terms of service capability
and efficiency, and intelligent property has become the new label
of Vanke Service.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has also been further
promoting more technology products to help the continuous
improvement of space efficiency.

Lingshi intends to make the traditional space service process
shine with the aura of wisdom through Al algorithms. Lingshi
Edge server is an integrated system that integrates servers, access
business, communication business and inspection business for
the Group in Onewo Towns, which can help improve business
management efficiency when delivering on-site services. In
the future, it will be combined with various technologies such
as large language models to achieve mutual coordination in
multiple scenarios, expand product boundaries, enhance market
competitiveness, and realize applications in more space types.
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As of December 31, 2023, the Group has installed 459 Lingshi
servers in a total of 101 Onewo Towns and achieved an online
rate coverage of at least 99.3%.

On the basis of Pineapple No. 1 and Black Cat Series products
that have been built in the project, Lingshi servers can further
optimize the incident processing efficiency. Through remote
operation, Lingshi servers have successfully handled more than
10% of vehicle incidents and more than 70% of pedestrian
incidents. Specifically, the average processing time for vehicle
incidents has been reduced to 1.2 minutes which increased
by 15% over the previous year, while the average processing
time for pedestrian incidents has been sharply reduced to 0.77
minute, the efficiency of which increased by up to 75%. In terms
of work order management, the average number of work orders
dispatched per month exceeded 62,000, and the average number
of incidents reported per month amounted to 5,000 with the
report closure rate standing at 99%.

In terms of communication, the average monthly call volume
generated from Lingshi servers reached about 200,000, and the
success rate of incoming and outgoing calls maintained stable at
more than 91%, which ensured the smooth flow of information.
In the inspection segment, Lingshi servers successfully completed
the access of 69,769 cameras in 377 projects, of which 15,483
cameras were installed with twenty types of Al-enabled
inspection models. This enabled us to generate an average of
84,000 Al alert events per month with a workstation processing
rate of 59%,

dispatched per month, and a work order closure rate of 80%.

an average of 780 associated work orders
These results not only reflect our excellent ability in edge-side

multi-business aggregation and collaboration, but also further
enhance the overall operational efficiency.
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The Feige (FRA8) task platform is the first intelligent operating
platform in the industry that integrates intelligent disassembly,
intelligent dispatch, intelligent scheduling and intelligent
Al inspection of tasks. During the Reporting Period, the
Group's technology team completed the development and
implementation of the platform, piloted in 16 Onewo Towns,
accessed 2,096 operators, and completed a total of more than
800,000 work orders, with an intelligent disassembly success
rate of 98.0% and an intelligent scheduling dispatching success
rate of 95%, which greatly saved the management costs
generated by the on-site scheduling. The same rate between Al
intelligent quality inspection equipped with large language model
algorithms and manual quality inspection results reached 76.8%,
which initially demonstrated the practical meaning of intelligent
quality inspection.

The pilot achievements of Lingshi and Feige give us reason to
believe that there is enough room for the Group to improve its
operational efficiency. In 2024, the Group plans to realize the
Lingshi + Feige’s transformation on the multi-space traditional
command center by means of Al door-opening, Al inspection,
and automated dispatching and checking of orders, etc., which
will further enhance the efficiency of the space and open up the
boundary of the management of space services.

External revenue enhancement

During the Reporting Period, AloT solutions achieved revenue
of RMB1,417.5 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
2.4%, against the pressure from existing customers. The business
successfully extended the hardware technology capabilities
previously accumulated by serving developers to other industry
customers. Dozens of new external customers were acquired
during the Reporting Period, including communication enterprise
giants, affordable housing enterprises and leading infrastructure
enterprises in various regions.

Progress in external expansion of remote enterprise services
was encouraging. Project of personnel sharing center for
automobile giant enterprises was undertook and remote services
were provided to leading communication enterprises and large
public funds. Cumulatively, remote space services have been
implemented in 39 projects. During the Reporting Period, BPaaS
solution services achieved revenue of RMB1,363.1 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 37.2%.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is divided into three business segments: (i) community
space living consumption services; (ii) commercial and urban
space integrated services; (iii) AloT and BPaaS solution services.

The following table sets out the details of revenue by business
segment and service type as at the dates indicated:

FEH LR

AEBOA=ZREBRRR : ((HEREEEE
SHEBRS : (B mERgEE RS
(iiDAloT F1BPaaS &R 75 =R T% °

NREIIFTR A IR R 0 B8 M ARF A A
2y U AR

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A310LEE
2023 2022 Growth rate
2023 F 2022 BRE
RMB‘000 RMB'000 % %
ARET R ARETT % %
Community space living consumption ~ HEZEEFEER®E
services
- Residential property services - FEWERE 17,002,054 51.2 14,810,695 49.2 14.8
— Home-related asset services - EERBEERE 1,360,922 4.1 1,351,341 45 0.7
— Other community value-added services — H i I E AR 375,463 1.1 421,155 1.4 (10.8)
Subtotal iy 18,738,439 56.4 16,583,191 55.1 13.0
Commercial and urban space integrated FLHBTEBEERE
services
— Property and facility management services  — ¥R E 2 R 8,299,598 25.0 7,544,896 25.1 10.0
- Value-added services for developers - AEEEERE 2,683,486 8.1 2,935,057 9.7 (8.6)
— Urban space integrated services - B EHEA RS 681,326 2.1 664,256 2.2 2.6
Subtotal et 11,664,410 35.2 11,144,209 37.0 4.7
AloT and BPaas$ solution services AloT K BPaaSf# iR i IR %
— AloT solutions - AloTRAF R 1,417,506 43 1,384,920 46 2.4
— BPaa$ solutions - BPaaSIEA T & 1,363,103 4.1 993,483 33 37.2
Subtotal Nt 2,780,609 8.4 2,378,403 7.9 16.9
Total & 33,183,458 100.0 30,105,803 100.0 10.2

ENEEMMBRBBRNDERRF 2023FFH
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The following table sets out the details of gross profit by business 3R E 5| F7~ B BRI B9 20 & R B E R
segment and service type as at the dates indicated: DB EFFESE -

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A318LEE

2023 2022
2023F 2022F
Gross profit Gross profit
Gross Profit ETGIOM  Gross Profit margin
7 ERZ EH EME
RMB'000 % RMB'000 %
AR®T R % NG %

Community space living consumption services #EZEETHEERY

~ Residential property services - EEMERS 2,269,257 13.3 1,458,881 9.9
— Home-related asset services - EBRIRBEERY 389,928 28.7 372,390 27.6
- Other community value-added services - it RIEERS 248,496 66.2 268,007 63.6
Subtotal P 2,907,681 155 2,099,278 12.7
Commercial and urban space integrated BEAATEERERE
services

- Property and facility management services - MENZEEE RS 713,911 8.6 917,156 122
- Value-added services for developers — FREEERS 312,276 11.6 408,572 13.9
- Urban space integrated services - WM EHBE RS 64,904 9.5 54,424 8.2
Subtotal Pt 1,091,091 9.4 1,380,152 124
AloT and BPaa$ solution services AloT & BPaaS#R i R

— AloT solutions - AloTRRR A& 400,979 28.3 424,706 30.7
~ BPaa$ solutions - BPaaSHRA & 412,016 30.2 326,614 32.9
Subtotal Mgt 812,995 29.2 751,320 316
Total &t 4,811,767 14.5 4,230,750 14.1
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During the Reporting Period, the Group experienced a continuous
and stable growth, of which the recurring businesses showed a
strong resilience, and a constantly optimized profitability

The Group’s residential property services in community space,
property and facility management services in commercial space
and BPaaS solution business in the technology sector are
recurring businesses. During the Reporting Period, the Group's
recurring businesses achieved revenue of RMB26,664.8 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 14.2%, accounting for
80.4% of total revenue; and achieved gross profit of RMB3,395.2
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 25.6%,
accounting for 70.6% of total gross profit.

Residential property services

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue from residential
property services was RMB17,002.1 million, representing an
increase of 14.8% as compared to the same period of last year,
accounting for 51.2% of total revenue. During the Reporting
Period, such business brought gross profit of RMB2,269.3
million, representing an increase of 55.5% as compared to the
same period of last year, accounting for 47.2% of total gross
profit. During the Reporting Period, the gross profit margin of
such business increased significantly by 3.5 percentage points
over last year, which benefited from the smooth implementation
and continuous optimization in the process transformation of
the Onewo Town strategy. The increase in revenue of such
business is due to the Company's excellent expansion capability
in the existing market. As of December 31, 2023, the saturated
income of residential property projects under management was
RMB24,405.1 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
7.0%; the saturated income of contracted residential property
projects was RMB30,663.1 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of 7.0%.
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The following table sets forth the details of the number of TXRHIIMTAHEFEEEMES RSN
residential projects under management and contracts and the & KEEFWARIGEHS -
saturated income as at the dates indicated:

As of December 31,
BZ12831HL

2023 2022
20234 20224

Saturated income from contracts A R A

(RMB million) (AR®BET) 30,663 28,659
Number of contracted projects AHEEEE 4,658 4,358
Saturated income from projects under EE R A

management (RMB million) (AR®BETT) 24,405 22,800
Number of projects under management HEEHEBHE 3,810 3,446

During the Reporting Period, the Group has actively withdrawn fE3REHEIR - EE R ETHEH 144 EF=E
from a total of 144 residential property projects, with a saturated #)%#1EH - B R AKR®E614. 98 B Tt UL

income of RMB614.9 million. Ao
Number of Annualized
projects under saturated
management income
EEHE FhEMKRA
(unit) (RMB million)
(@) (AR¥BEE&T)

Actively withdrawn upon operating B EERY

assessment 116 471.2
Withdrawn from shareholding projects A& #ETE B 3R 15 27.3
Real estate delivery problems 2 R A R 13 116.4
Total =E 144 614.9
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Note:

B

The main reasons for the Group's active withdrawn upon
operating assessment include that the projects are not within

AEBELTHIHERY  TERABEREA
TEEEHERN Eﬁﬂﬁéﬂaﬁﬂﬂé L@ EiR

value sub-districts, not able to achieve profit through operating FERAEBEAR  BLEERES: “IEE
improvement in spite of long-term losses, and operational value is GEFAREROXNER - HE J—U‘Mmﬁ
low, etc. Certain projects face situations such as Party A’s failure B e

to pay the expenses according to contracts and multiple project
risks.

Withdrawn from shareholding projects are decided by the Group
after assessment for the changes in operating conditions of joint
venture, upon active negotiation with joint shareholders;

Main reasons of real estate delivery problems include that joint
developers are unable to deliver in contracted time or at all due
to fund chain breaking, or that unable to deliver due to failure
to meet the entering and operating standards, resulting in more
vacant houses and possible significant operating risks, so the
Group decides to terminate the contracts.

The following table sets forth the number of residential property

projects under management and under contract, the saturated
income from projects under management as at the dates
indicated, as well as a breakdown of income from residential

property management services during the periods indicated by

type of property developer.

TRET A EFRE R IERED
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Yo et
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> BT~ B
rEN
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HZE2023F12A31H - AEEZAMEE
MEEEBEBBROT ¢

As of December 31, 2023, details of the Group’s total residential
property projects under management are as follows:

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

2023F12A31H 202212 4318
Number Number
of projects  Annualized of projects Annualized
under saturated  Financial under saturated Financial
management income [CTM  management income income
EERE  FLHAAKA  BBRA EEHE  E{HAKA  BBRA
(RMB (RMB (RMB (RMB
(unit) million) million) (unit) million) million)
(AR% (AR® (ARE (ARE
(f8) BER) BET) (f&) BET) BET)
China Vanke Group and its joint ~ EREE R
ventures and associates ERECRRBERT 1,546 12,130 9,028 1,410 11,550 8,050
Independent Third Party real BUS=hBEHERER
estate developers 2,264 12,275 1,974 2,036 11,250 6,761
Total CH 3,810 24,405 17,002 3,446 22,800 14,811
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Property and facility management services

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue from property
and facility management services was RMB8,299.6 million,
representing an increase of 10.0% as compared to the same
period of last year, accounting for 25.0% of the total revenue.
During the Reporting Period, the business generated a gross
profit of RMB713.9 million, representing a decrease of 22.2% as
compared to the same period of last year, accounting for 14.8%
of the total gross profit. For the year ended December 31, 2023,
the number of property and facility management service projects
under management was 2,241, representing an increase of 412
as compared to the same period of last year, among which, the
number of commercial property management service projects
(PM) was 793, representing an increase of 46 as compared to the
same period of last year; the number of comprehensive facility
management service projects (FM) was 1,448, representing an
increase of 366 as compared to the same period of last year.
Although payment capabilities of certain enterprise clients were
affected by the economic cycle, the Group obtained 15 super
high-rise projects in the Reporting Period with its outstanding
brand advantages and expansion ability in the commercial
market, and continuously deepened the expansion in five
business segments, further enriching client matrix.

The following table sets forth the details of the number of
property and facility management service projects under
management and contracts and saturated income as at the dates
indicated:

Saturated income from contracts AHEFIA
(RMB million) (ANREBET)
Number of contracted projects BHIEEHE
Saturated income from projects under EE A A
management (RMB million) (AR®BETT)
Number of projects under management  EEHEHB&E

YRR R EE R

WEBHRN  AKREREMERKREEER
B A BARKER 2996 A BT BEF
FEHIE K 10.0%  {HBWAM25.0% : %
¥BEREPRNETREMARK71398E
T BMEFRIBEE22.2% - (FREFH
14.8% ; & 1-2023F 128318 £®EWE
MEEEERSERESHEA2,2411E  &E
FRIERE 41216 : Bt WFREIEER
(PM)793 1@ » B EF R ERIE IN461E : 4RE &
B IRARFSTE B (FM)1,44818 » &= FERIH
#hn366fE - BEZHNEERBNTE I
ABIRB P Tae AR - BAEERE
EREthmETRENREED RIERE
EREHAERNESEEB 1@ WEE
ERAREEFRLHAE &£ FTEERFE
|§$ o

TEREIIFR AR ELREEERSAB
MEE R A QOEE NMAFMKARFS

As of December 31,
BZ12A318L

2023 2022
20234 20224
15,849 13,439

2,531 2,133
13,430 11,058

2,241 1,829
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During the Reporting Period, due to the operation changes of
partners and other reasons, the Group has actively withdrawn
from a total of 41 property and facility management service
projects, with a saturated income of RMB125.2 million.

The following table sets forth the numbers of property and
facility management service projects under management and
under contract, the saturated income from projects under
management as at the dates indicated, as well as a breakdown
of income from property and facility management services during
the periods indicated by type of property developer.

As of December 31, 2023, details of the Group's total property
and facility management service projects under management are
as follow:

December 31, 2023

EREHAN - AREEFKEBRELER
A AEBZ:FAFHREAEMERLRES
BREIER A RARK125.288 M
WA o

TREIAMEFEBER S D HRATR B
HMEMREEERGNEE RS HERBE
£ - EEMMRAREFREEREYER
&t E IR AR R A AR

HZE2023F12A318 - KREBRHME
MERMEEREESEIBRMAT

December 31, 2022

2023128318 20225124318
Number Number
of projects  Annualized of projects  Annualized
under saturated Financial under saturated Financial
management income [GTM management income income
EEUE  F{HAMKA BB EEHE  FlHARA FHBA
(unit) (RMB (RMB (unit) (RMB (RMB
million) million) million) million)
(f8) (AR®EBR) (ARBEER) (B) (AE%8En) (AR¥EER)
China Vanke Group and its joint ~ BREBREAZLGER
ventures and associates LN 325 2,202 1,213 295 1,912 1,144
Independent Third Party real BUEZHEHE
estate developers HEE 1,916 11,228 7,027 1,534 9,146 6,401
Total fit 2,241 13,430 8,300 1,829 11,058 7,545

ENEEMMBRBBRNDERRF 2023FFH




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BPaa$ Solutions

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue from BPaaS
solutions was RMB1,363.1 million, representing an increase of
37.2% as compared to the same period of last year, accounting
for 4.1% of the total revenue. During the Reporting Period, the
gross profit of the business was RMB412.0 million, representing
an increase of 26.1% as compared to the same period of last
year, accounting for 8.6% of the total gross profit. The rapid
growth of the business is due to the Group’s vigorous efforts on
expanding both corporate customers and space customers. As of
December 31, 2023, the corporate BPaaS business newly added
69 external customers, including top communication enterprises,
large public funds and leading automobile enterprises, and the
space BPaaS business was implemented in a cumulative total of
39 urban projects.

In addition to the recurring businesses, the Group's core
businesses also include home-related asset services and AloT
solutions.

Home-related Asset Services

During the Reporting Period, the Group's revenue generated
from home-related asset services was RMB1,360.9 million,
representing an increase of 0.7% as compared to the same
period of last year, accounting for 4.1% of the total revenue.
During the Reporting Period, the gross profit of the business was
RMB389.9 million, representing an increase of 4.7% as compared
to the same period of last year, accounting for 8.1% of the total
gross profit. The slowdown in the growth rate of such business
was mainly subject to the continued depression of the housing
transaction market, intertwined with the impact of the overall
economic situation on alternative consumption. However, during
the Reporting Period, the sound practice of acquaintance-based
economic model for home renovation and furnishing business
in Onewo Town enables the business to maintain a stable
development.

BPaaSfER AR

FERERA - NEBERBBPaaSHAS RN
WABARE1,363.1HE L BEFRE
BR37.2% (BB ANLE 1% - ZEBE
WEHANENABARK41208ET &
EERBER26.1% ' REFAS.6% o
AEBHERIERRERAEBLELERTF
REBEEMERRBANDRE - #152023
F12A318 » DEBPaaSEEHIEINEER
6OfE - BIEEIBELE  RAAEEE R
BESE)TE ¥ ¢ =MBPaaSEE K391
WA B A o

BRERUEBI  KEROEBERREEE
HEEERE RACTHRTE -

BERBEERS

WEBA AEEXRBEEHEBEERBED
WABARYE1,3609BB T KEERY
RE0.7% ' HBRKARL N %  ZEEER
LHAEFNABARKISOIBEEL REF
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BRBE  TEIFIREERIMENEE
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AloT Solutions

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue from AloT
solutions was RMB1,417.5 million, representing an increase of
2.4% as compared to the same period of last year, accounting
for 4.3% of total revenue, of which the revenue from developers
was RMB780.9 million, representing a year-on-year decrease
of 33.5%, the revenue from non-developers was RMB636.6
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 201.3%. During
the Reporting Period, the business generated a gross profit of
RMB401.0 million, representing a decrease of 5.6% as compared
to the same period of last year, accounting for 8.3% of the
total gross profit, of which the gross profit from developers
was RMB229.7 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of
34.5%, the gross profit from non-developers was RMB171.2
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 131.8%. During
the Reporting Period, the Group conducted market expansion for
non-residential projects, non-developer projects and renovation
related projects, aiming to extend its capability cultivated in
serving developers in the past into other industries and customers
with unmet demands. New clients included leading automobile
enterprises and leading affordable residential housing enterprises.

Urban public space, one of the Group’s three major service

spaces, will mainly adopt the form of joint ventures to carry out
its business in the future.
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AloTH#ER G R

REHR - NEERBAIOTERRA R
ABAREN 417588 T REFRHE
£2.4%  (HHBWANA3%  HFREH
EENBRABARKIS0IEESE L AT
f£33.5% ' REFREFHHRARBARE
636.6 B &L * [AILLIENN201.3% © ZEBIT
WEHAEFNABARKELIOI0BE T  BE
FRHARIEKS.6%  HREFMMS.3% + HAp
REREENENABARB229.788 T
[FILLBEIK34.5% @ REFFRZEENENRA
R¥1712887T - FLIEIMN131.8% © LR
SHN  AEBEIEEE - EABEERENR
HEEBEEFRETMERE B EBATRY
AEBEEMNENTEREEMEETRKNITERR
FH  FHREFPBEEITELE BP
FERBEELES -

WHARERRAEE=ZKNRE=R 2 —
ARBEERBMABELEVARRER -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Urban space integrated services

As of December 31, 2023, the Group has implemented 98 urban
space integrated service projects in 26 cities across China, with
the contract value reaching RMB5,615.6 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of 38.4%, of which 74.1% of the contract
value comes from business carried out in the form of joint
ventures/companies. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s
“RFO” model in urban space integrated services achieved
remarkable results. Urban service projects carried out by means
of minority shareholding have achieved a return on investment
(ROI) of 13.1%. At the same time, the space BPaaS business (FEE)
has been implemented in 39 urban projects, and the business
referrals (OPPORTUNITY) of RMB320 million has been brought
to our Group through the form of urban capital groups. In the
future, the Group will continuously deepen the adoption of
minority shareholding management to further consolidate the
“RFO"” model.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s consolidated revenue
from urban space integrated services was RMB681.3 million,
representing an increase of 2.6% as compared to the same
period of last year, accounting for 2.1% of the total revenue.
The business generated a gross profit of RMB64.9 million during
the Reporting Period, representing an increase of 19.3% as
compared to the same period of last year, accounting for 1.3%

of the total gross profit.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s non-core businesses
continued to be affected by the economic cycle and the pressure
on the development industry.

WhHEBESRY

#1F2023F12A318 - ZIK;EKIEE%I%
E T & 1 O8 Rk T Z= M1 B & AR F51E B -
HERBEEINARKS,615.6B8TT Htt
#E384%  EF741%MARBERERE
¥/ ARIRABNER - REBHAR - A&
B mEREEREFARFO)EREIF
TREKRR - MO ERERAFRH TR
BIEEERT13.1%MIEEEBHRE(ROI) -

R EE39MEMIEEB R EIH =MBPaas
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(OPPORTUNITY) © K23k - ZISEIWI%“’%K

RIS RBHE - Z5& [RFO
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RFO: the Group's business model under urban public space, represents the return on investment (ROI) of shareholding

enterprises, technological service fees (Fee) and business referrals opportunities (Opportunity).
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Value-added services for developers

During the Reporting Period, the Group's revenue from value-
added services for developers was RMB2,683.5 million,
representing a decrease of 8.6% as compared to the same
period of last year, accounting for 8.1% of the total revenue.
The business generated a gross profit of RMB312.3 million
during the Reporting Period, representing a decrease of 23.6%
as compared to the same period of last year, accounting for
6.5% of the total gross profit. The declines in revenue and gross
profit are mainly due to the sharp shrinkage of sales center
business and pre-delivery support services business because of
the bleak marketplace of new housing. However, the revenue
from building maintenance services in this business recorded a
year-on-year increase of 25.1%, providing further evidence that
the accumulated capability in the past practices has larger room
in the other markets excluding those of the developers.

Other community value-added services

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue from other
community value-added services was RMB375.5 million,
representing a decrease of 10.8% as compared to the same
period of last year, accounting for 1.1% of the total revenue. The
business generated a gross profit of RMB248.5 million during the
Reporting Period, representing a decrease of 7.3% as compared
to the same period of last year, accounting for 5.2% of the total
gross profit.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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OUTLOOK

Enhancing Communications with Our
Customers to Improve Service Quality.

With changes in industry driving forces and diversification
of customer needs, accurately meeting customer demands
has become a core challenge for the space service industry.
The Group has been actively engaged in comprehensive
communications with its customers to deeply explore the real
needs and expectations of various types of customers. We will
enhance our service capability on all fronts, iterate our service
offerings, and improve the reliability, digitization and refinement
level of project operations. We will provide digital operation
reports to our affiliated entities to build a business moat, solidify
our market position and establish close and lasting cooperative

relationships with our customers.

Promoting the Implementation of Onewo
Town and Creating a Happy Space.

In 2024, the Group will continue to promote the Onewo
Town strategy, leveraging on the influence of transparent
properties, quality services and smart communities to enhance
its market expansion capabilities and expand the foundation of
Onewo Town. At the same time, we will deepen the process
transformation and add 100 Onewo Towns for efficiency
improvement and renovation. By creating a smart command
center, we will strengthen community services and customer
experience through smart customer service and Al property
managers, etc. The business model with Onewo Town as the
smallest operating entity will continue to be optimized to achieve
the best economies of scale in the space service industry.

Technology Pioneering Development and
Driving Market Expansion.

The application of technology has become a core driving force
of the industry’s development. The Group will adhere to its
essence as a service-oriented enterprise, embrace knowledge
and technology in the midst of continuous scale expansion, and
ensure the stability of service quality while expanding.
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With the unique space scenarios, the Group will build competitive
advantages and launch high-quality products that are favored by
customers and welcomed by employees. In 2024, we will increase
our investment in research and development to drive business
technology upgrading and knowledge accumulation through
technological innovation. At the same time, we will expand
technology market channels and realize increased revenue from
technology products. We will enhance internal efficiency and
market competitiveness through comprehensive technology
upgrading.

Fulfilling Social Responsibilities and
Releasing Organizational Dividend.

The Group will firmly integrate the ESG (environmental, social
and governance) concept and the corporate culture into our
business development, and dedicate itself to comprehensively
ensuring the safety and growth of its employees, customers,
facilities and equipment in spaces under management through
the four initiatives of “Love Life, Love Growth, Love Environment
and Love Community”. In terms of “Love Life”, we will utilize
Al technology to monitor and maintain the health and safety
of our employees and customers, creating a safe and healthy
working and living environment. Through “Love Growth”, we are
committed to facilitating the career and personal development
of our employees through the learning and development tools
of Al technology, while providing customers with a more
diversified and personalized service experience. Under the “Love
Environment” initiative, the Group will intensify the use of Al
technology for environmental protection and the optimization of
resource allocation, to reduce the impact of business operations
on the environment and promote green development. In terms
of “Love Community”, we will utilize Al technology to enhance
community management and services, promote mutual assistance
and cooperation within the community, and build a harmonious
and sustainable community environment. Through the in-depth
implementation of these four initiatives, the Group will actively
fulfill its social responsibilities while realizing the interests of
enterprise to contribute to a better future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group’s income
structure continued to be optimized. Revenue from the recurring
businesses amounted to RMB26,664.8 million, representing
a year-on-year increase of 14.2%, accounting for 80.4% of
revenue, representing a year-on-year increase of 2.8 percentage
points. The gross profit of recurring businesses amounted to
RMB3,395.2 million, with a gross profit margin of 12.7%,
representing a year-on-year increase of 1.2 percentage points.
The operational efficiency was steadily improved. The selling
and distribution expenses ratio (as a percentage of revenue) was
similar to last year, and the administrative expenses ratio (as a
percentage of revenue) decreased by 0.9 percentage point year-
on-year. The profitability has significantly improved, with the
core net profit of RMB2,339.6 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of 29.8%.

Revenue

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group’s total
revenue was RMB33,183.5 million, representing an increase of
10.2% as compared to RMB30,105.8 million for the same period
in 2022. The increase in revenue was mainly due to the increase
in scale under the Group’s management and the increase in
business contracts. Including:

o Community space living consumption services

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group’s
revenue generated from community space living
consumption services was RMB18,738.4 million,
representing an increase of 13.0% as compared to
RMB16,583.2 million for the same period in 2022,
primarily due to the Company’s outstanding expansion
capability in the existing market.
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o Commercial and urban space integrated services

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group’s
revenue generated from commercial and urban space
integrated services was RMB11,664.4 million, representing
an increase of 4.7% as compared to RMB11,144.2
million for the same period in 2022, mainly due to the
combined impact from the increase in property and facility
management services and the decrease in value-added
services for developers.

° AloT and BPaa$ solution services

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group’s
revenue generated from AloT and BPaa$ solution services
was RMB2,780.6 million, representing an increase of
16.9% as compared to RMB2,378.4 million for the same
period in 2022, mainly due to the increase in revenue
from remote enterprise operation services.

Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales mainly includes operating costs,
depreciation and amortization. Operating costs include (i)
subcontracting costs; (ii) staff costs; (iii) common area facility
costs; (iv) engineering costs; and (v) office and other related
costs. Depreciation and amortization are mainly comprised of the
amortization of customer relationship resulted from our historical
acquisitions.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the total cost of the
Group was RMB28,371.7 million, representing an increase of
9.6% as compared to RMB25,875.1 million for the same period
in 2022. The increase in costs was mainly due to the increase in
business scale.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group's gross profit
was RMB4,811.8 million, representing an increase of 13.7% as
compared to RMB4,230.8 million for the same period in 2022.
For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group's gross profit
margin was 14.5%, representing an increase of 0.4 percentage
point as compared to 14.1% for the same period in 2022, mainly
because the gross profit margin of recurring businesses increased
by 1.2 percentage points as compared to the same period in
2022.

o Community space living consumption services

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the gross
profit margin of the Group’s community space living
consumption services was 15.5%, representing an
increase of 2.8 percentage points as compared to the
same period of last year, of which the gross profit margin
of residential property services was 13.3%, representing
an increase of 3.5 percentage points as compared to the
same period of last year, and the gross profit increased
by 55.5% as compared to the same period of last year,
benefiting from the smooth transformation progress of
Onewo Town Strategy. The gross profit margin of home-
related asset services was 28.7%, representing an increase
of 1.1 percentage points as compared to the same period
of last year, mainly due to the year-on-year increase in
transaction volume while maintaining stable cost.

o Commercial and urban space integrated services

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the gross profit
margin of the Group’s commercial and urban space
integrated services was 9.4%, of which the gross profit
margin of property and facility management services was
8.6%, representing a decrease of 3.6 percentage points as
compared to the same period of last year, mainly because
we were in the stage of expanding our business scale. The
gross profit margin of value-added services for developers
was 11.6%, representing a decrease of 2.3 percentage
points as compared to the same period of last year. The
gross profit margin of urban space integrated services was
9.5%, representing an increase of 1.3 percentage points
as compared to the same period of last year.
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. AloT and BPaa$ solution services

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the gross profit
margin of the Group’s AloT and BPaaS solution services
was 29.2%, representing a decrease of 2.4 percentage
points as compared to the same period of last year, of
which the gross profit margin of AloT solution services
was 28.3%, representing a decrease of 2.4 percentage
points as compared to the same period of last year, mainly
affected by the developer industry. The gross profit of
BPaaS solutions increased by 26.1% as compared to the
same period of last year, and gross profit margin was
30.2%, representing a decrease of 2.7 percentage points
as compared to the same period of last year, mainly due
to an increase in the proportion of remote enterprise
operation services businesses which has lower gross profit
margin compared to remote space operation services
which has higher gross profit in BPaa$S solutions.

Other Income and Gains

The Group’s other income and gains increased by 26.2% from
RMB570.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to
RMB719.9 million for the same period in 2023, mainly due to
the increase in interest income and fair value gains on financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses increased by 10.5%
from RMB450.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to
RMB497.4 million for the same period in 2023. The selling and
distribution expenses accounted for 1.5% of revenue, remaining
unchanged as compared to the same period in 2022.
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Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses decreased by 3.7% from
RMB2,153.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2022
to RMB2,073.3 million for the same period in 2023. The
administrative expenses ratio (as a percentage of revenue)
was 6.2%, representing a decrease of 0.9 percentage point as
compared to the same period in 2022, mainly due to further
enhancement of management efficiency achieved through
efficiency improvement driven by technology development,
refined operation and organizational synergy upon merger and
integration.

Income Tax Expenses

The Group's income tax expenses increased by 43.5% from
RMB433.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to
RMB622.0 million for the same period in 2023, mainly due to the
increase in profit before tax for the year and the non-taxable
gain on remeasurement of previously held interest in an associate

in the previous year.
Profit for the Year

The Group's profit for the year increased by 28.3% from
RMB1,587.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to
RMB2,035.8 million for the same period in 2023. The Group's
EBITDA increased by 25.3% from RMB2,840.6 million for the
year ended December 31, 2022 to RMB3,558.0 million for
the same period in 2023. For the year ended December 31,
2023, the Group’s core net profit amounted to RMB2,339.6
million, representing an increase of 29.8% as compared with
RMB1,802.9 million for the same period in 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Intangible Assets

The Group's intangible assets mainly include customer
relationships and goodwill acquired in historical acquisitions. The
Group’s intangible assets decreased from RMB8&,507.0 million as
of December 31, 2022 to RMB7,981.2 million as of December 31,
2023, mainly due to the amortization of customer relationships
brought by historical acquisitions.

Liquidity and Financial Resources
Cash position

As of December 31, 2023, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of RMB15,572.5 million, representing an increase of
RMB2,227.4 million in balance from RMB13,345.1 million as of
December 31, 2022.

The Group has adopted prudent capital management policies
and conducted effective financial capital management under
centralized management to sustain appropriate and sufficient
levels of cash and bank balances.

Loans and net gearing ratio

As of December 31, 2023, the Group had no bank loans or
borrowings and therefore had a net cash position. Net gearing
ratio is calculated as our total interest-bearing borrowings minus
cash and cash equivalents divided by total equity as of the end
of the relevant period. Accordingly, net gearing ratio is not
applicable to the Group as of December 31, 2023.

Contingent Liabilities

As of December 31, 2023, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Pledge of Asset

As of December 31, 2023, the Group had no pledge of assets.

Impact of Exchange Rate Fluctuation

As the Group’s business is mainly conducted in the PRC, we
mainly adopt RMB as the settlement currency.

As of December 31, 2023, non-RMB assets are cash and cash
equivalents, including HKD-denominated assets (worth RMB386.7
million) and USD-denominated assets (worth RMB5.7 million).
As of December 31, 2023, the Group's exposure to foreign
exchange risk was limited and fluctuation of the exchange rate
between RMB and foreign currency had no significant impact on
the results of operations of Group.
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Baoquan (5RfR%), aged 49, has been serving as the
general manager of our Company since May 2010 and a director,
the chairman and the general manager of our Company since
February 2011 and was re-designated as our executive Director
on March 2, 2022.

Mr. Zhu has extensive experience in real estate and property
management industry and is committed to the digital
transformation of the industry. He has over 10 years of large
enterprise management experience. Since April 1999, Mr.
Zhu has successively held various positions in China Vanke (a
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code:
2202); the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000002)),
the controlling shareholder of the Company, including human
resource department manager and customer service center
manager of Beijing Vanke Co., Ltd., the general manager
assistant in Chengdu Vanke Real Estate Co., Ltd., the deputy
director and director of the general office of China Vanke Group,
an administration director of China Vanke Group, the general
manager in Nanjing Vanke Real Estate Co., Ltd., vice president
and senior vice president of China Vanke Group.

Mr. Zhu graduated from East China University of Technology (¥
HIT#¥KEZ) (now known as University of Shanghai for Science
and Technology (L& ETAKZ)) in July 1994 and obtained
his bachelor’s degree in Systems Engineering. He graduated
from China Europe International Business School (fFEIBIFE T
26T) with his master’s degree in Business Administration
in October 2013. Mr. Zhu obtained his doctorate degree in
Business Administration jointly offered by Guanghua School of
Management, Peking University (Jt R AZEHXEEIREFT) and
Business School of University of Hong Kong (BB A B4 E Bx)
in November 2022.
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Mr. He Shuhua (f/JEE%E), aged 49, has been serving as a director
of our Company since January 2016 and was re-designated as
our executive Director on March 2, 2022. He also serves as the
chief marketing officer and the chief partner of government and
enterprise clients service center (BRfF R ¥EEFIRIEH L) of the
Company and is in charge of our urban space services and Vanrui
IntelliTech.

Mr. He has over 20 years of extensive experience in property
management industry. After joining our Company in April 1998,
Mr. He consecutively served in multiple positions within our
Company, including property project management manager of
Shenzhen Vanke Service Co., Ltd., the executive deputy general
manager of Beijing Vanke Service Co., Ltd., the general manager
of Wuhan region, the general manager of Guangzhou region and
the chief executive officer of enterprise service division of Vanke
Service.

Mr. He also served as manager of Property Management
Department in China Vanke from April 2003 to April 2006,
customer director in Zhongshan Vanke Real Estate Co., Ltd.
and Zhuhai Vanke Real Estate Co., Ltd. from March 2007
to December 2008 and was primarily responsible for client
relationship management.

Mr. He obtained his college degree in Real Estate Operation and
Management from Nanchang University (5 &AX£2) in July 1995
and his master's degree in Project Management from Wuhan
University (EJEAZ) in June 2013. He has been studying at
China Europe International Business School since April 2021.
Mr. He obtained a Property Manager Professional Qualification
(WEEIEAN) issued by Professional Title Reform Leading Group
of Hubei Province (it A EBEMEINE TEEE/N4H) in September
2011.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Wenjin (EX#), aged 57, is a non-executive Director
of our Company. Mr. Wang has been a director of our Company
since February 2017 and was re-designated as our non-executive
Director on March 2, 2022. Mr. Wang provides guidance for the
operations of the Company from various aspects.

After joining China Vanke in November 1993, Mr. Wang
successively served as general manager of the finance
department, the finance controller, the chief financial officer,
the chief risk officer, an executive vice president and executive
director. He also served as a non-executive director of Vanke
Overseas Investment Holding Company Limited (a company listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 1036) from July
2012 to March 2015. Mr. Wang serves in various directorships
and management positions in several subsidiaries of China Vanke
currently, including the chairperson and the general manager of
Shenzhen Yingda Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd. (R
N BERELSEBERAR),
Mr. Wang has been a non-executive director of Huishang Bank

a subsidiary of China Vanke.

Corporation Limited (a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock

Exchange, stock code: 3698) since December 2018. In addition,

he currently serves as a supervisor of China State-owned

Enterprise Mixed Ownership Reform Fund Co., Ltd. (FEIE A
BREMBHINEESBRAR).

Mr. Wang graduated from Zhongnan University of Economics
and Law (PRI BA &S BUX A E) with a master’s degree in June 1994
and he is a certified public accountant (non-practicing member)
in the PRC granted by the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in August 1998.

Mr. Zhang Xu (3RfB), aged 60, is a non-executive Director of
our Company. Mr. Zhang has been a director of our Company
since January 2016 and was re-designated as our non-executive
Director on March 2, 2022. Mr. Zhang is primarily responsible
for the provision of guidance for the overall development of the
Company.
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After joining China Vanke in November 2002, Mr. Zhang
successively served as executive deputy general manager and the
general manager of Wuhan Vanke Real Estate Co., Ltd. (BET
EREERR AT, primarily responsible for development and
operation of real estate projects; and vice president, executive
vice president and chief operating officer of China Vanke
Group, primarily responsible for strategy, investment, marketing,
operation and management of overseas business. He served as
an executive director of China Vanke from June 2017 to June
2020. He was also appointed as an executive director of Vanke
Overseas Investment Holding Company Limited (8&hH&IME
BEERAERAF]) (a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1036) in July 2012 and the chairman in
February 2019, and resigned as the chairman and an executive
director in November 2021.

Mr. Zhang serves as the chairperson and general manager of
Vanke Logistics Development Co., Ltd. currently, and is primarily
responsible for overall business development planning. He served
as a non-executive and non-independent director of Banyan
Tree Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Singapore
Stock Exchange, stock code: B58.5G) from September 2017 to
November 2020. He has also been a director of GLP Holdings
Limited since January 2018 and a director of CMC Inc. (ZEA Xt
BIRE AR since December 2017.

Mr. Zhang graduated from Hefei Industrial University (& BT %
KE) with a bachelor’s degree in Industrial and Civil Architecture
in August 1984 and obtained a master's degree in Business
Administration from Troy State University (currently known as
Troy University) in the United States in June 2001.
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Mr. Sun Jia (&%), aged 46, is a non-executive Director of
our Company. Mr. Sun has been a director of our Company
since January 2018 and was re-designated as our non-executive
Director on March 2, 2022. Mr. Sun is primarily responsible for
the provision of guidance for the overall development of the
Company.

After joining China Vanke in July 2007, Mr. Sun consecutively
served as deputy general manager and the general manager of
China Vanke's strategy and investment management department
from July 2007 to January 2010, and he was appointed as the
general manager of Xi'an Vanke Co., Ltd. in 2010. He served as
the general manager of Shanghai Vanke Co., Ltd. from January
2012 to March 2016 and was appointed as vice president
of China Vanke in 2015. He was appointed as executive vice
president, the head of finance and the chief financial officer
of China Vanke in March 2016. He was appointed as the
chief executive officer and the chief partner of the south
regional business group of China Vanke in May 2019. Mr. Sun
was appointed as the chief partner and general manager of
commercial business group of China Vanke Group in January
2024. Mr. Sun currently serves as the chief partner of commercial
business group of China Vanke Group and the chief executive
officer of SCPG Group. He also has been serving as the chairman
and an executive director of Vanke Overseas Investment Holding
Company Limited (a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1036) since November 2021, responsible
for overall operation, strategy and development planning.

Mr. Sun graduated from the School of Economics, Peking
University (JE7XK2) with a bachelor’'s degree in July 2001. In
June 2007, he graduated from Harvard Business School in the
United States with a master’s degree in Business Administration.
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Mr. Zhou Qi (FA3), aged 43, is a non-executive Director of
our Company. Mr. Zhou has been a director of our Company
since February 2017 and was re-designated as our non-executive
Director on March 2, 2022. Mr. Zhou is primarily responsible
for the provision of guidance for the overall development of the
Company.

Mr. Zhou joined Boyu Capital (fB#8#% &) in March 2011 and
currently is a partner of Boyu Capital, and he has been a director
of the board of Sichuan Langjiu Group Co., Ltd. (P9)I|BBER% {5
BIRA7F]) since April 2017. He was appointed as a director of
COFCO Joycome Foods Limited (a company listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 1610) in May 2014 and
was designated as a non-executive director in May 2016, and
resigned in July 2021. Mr. Zhou also was a director of the board
of Shenzhen Yuying Property Service Co., Ltd. CEIITTEE )% AR
AR AT from June 2017 to September 2021.

Before joining Boyu Capital, Mr. Zhou consecutively served as
an analyst and associate at Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C. in Hong
Kong and one of its affiliates in Beijing from July 2005 to April
2011.

Mr. Zhou graduated from School of Economics and Management,
Tsinghua University (&% KX£2) with a bachelor’'s degree in July
2003, a master’'s degree in July 2005 and earned his Executive
Master of Business Administrative degree from Tsinghua
University in January 2022.

Mr. Yao Jinbo (ZkEhK), aged 47, is a non-executive Director
of our Company. Mr. Yao has been a director of our Company
since February 2017 and was re-designated as our non-executive
Director on March 2, 2022. Mr. Yao is primarily responsible for
the provision of guidance for the overall development of the
Company.
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Mr. Yao was a co-founder of Xueda Education Technology
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. (“XueDa"”, 2R AR ILR)BRAFR]) and
worked at XueDa from September 2001 to November 2005. Mr.
Yao founded Beijing 58 Information Technology Co., Ltd. (It
)\ ERAiTAR A R]) in December 2005 and has been its chief
executive officer. Mr. Yao is the founder, chairman and chief
executive officer of 58.com Inc. (a company previously listed
on the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE"”) and delisted
on September 18, 2020). He is also an independent director of
Cheetah Mobile Inc. (a company listed on the NYSE, stock code:
CMCM) since December 2017 and an independent director of
Noah Holdings Limited (a company listed on the NYSE, stock
code: NOAH) since November 2014.

Mr. Yao graduated from Ocean University of China (FFBI&F A
2) with a bachelor’'s degree in Computer Science and Marine
Chemistry in July 1999.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Law Elizabeth (&% %), MH, JP, aged 69, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of our Company with
effect from September 29, 2022. She is primarily responsible for
providing independent advice on the operations and management
of our Company.

Ms. Law was employed as an auditor at Richter Usher &
Vineberg, an accounting firm, in Montreal, Canada from
September 1976 to May 1982. Ms. Law is a council member of
the Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors and served as
its president in 1993. Ms. Law has been the director of Law &
Partners CPA Limited since 2004, a partner of Stephen Law &
Company, Certified Public Accountants since 1984.
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Ms. Law also serves as an independent non-executive director in

the following listed companies:

Period of service

ERAMR

Since June 2023

B2023F6 A

Since April 2023

B2023F4 8t

Since August 2017

201748 At

Since October 2016

BE2016%F10 A8

Since November
2011
B2011F11 AR

Name of company

ALET

Wise Ally International
Holdings Limited

BFERERBRAF

Starlite Holdings Limited

EXKEERRA

The Wharf (Holdings)
Limited

Clifford Modern Living
Holdings Limited

REERBERAER AR

Sunwah Kingsway Capital
Holdings Limited
HEEESBIERERAA

E=g

Listing venue
and stock code

o RROAR

Hong Kong Stock
Exchange
(stock code: 9918)
LI
(R 55 : 9918)

Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(stock code: 0403)

EEBZH
(B R5% : 0403)

Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(stock code: 0004)

BB
(BRfr 5% : 0004)

Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(stock code: 3686)

EEBEH
(B 5% : 3686)

Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(stock code: 0188)
BRB P
(BRIA 5% - 0188)

BULTEETI EHRBEBILIFRNTE

Principal business

FEEYR

Manufacturing and sale of
electronic products

RERHEETER

Investment holding company, of which
subsidiaries are principally engaged in
printing and manufacturing packaging
materials, labels and paper products,
including environmental protection
paper products

REZBRAR - HMBARFEREEDR K
SUERENMH  BE  RERER 88
RRGEBER

Investment properties, hotels and
development properties in Hong Kong and
mainland China

ERBEEBRAMBEEME  BENRE
FHE

Provision of property management services,
renovation and fitting-out services,
retail services, off-campus training services
and information technology services
RENXEERYE B LERERE - TE
PR - BOMETIART K& A Bl AR 75

Investment holding company principally
engaged in financial businesses

REZRRA TEREZERED
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Ms. Law obtained her bachelor’'s degree in Commerce (majored
in Accounting) from McGill University in Canada in May 1976,
and completed her diploma of Accountancy in McGill University
in May 1978. She became a chartered accountant in Canada in
June 1979, an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in May 1982. Ms. Law has been admitted
as an Associate of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales since February 2006, and was admitted as a
Fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales in August 2019 and a fellow certified public accountant in
Australia in November 2009. She has been a fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since December
1991, a fellow of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong since April
2003, and a chartered professional accountant in Canada since
November 2012. She also completed the independent director
training session held by CSRC and Tsinghua University in May
2002.

Ms. Law was the founding president of the Association of
Women Accountants (Hong Kong) Ltd. and has been appointed
as the honorary founding president since June 2008. Ms. Law
was a member of the Ninth, Tenth and Eleventh Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference Guangdong Committee (/1
TRT—EFPBEARBAHESEEREELZEE%EE) and was
awarded the Medal of Honour in Hong Kong in July 2006, the
Justice of the Peace in Hong Kong in July 2009.

Mr. Chen Yuyu (BRES), aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of our Company with
effect from September 29, 2022. He is primarily responsible for
providing independent advice on the operations and management
of our Company.

In September 2003, Mr. Chen joined the Department of Applied
Economics, Guanghua School of Management, Peking University
(QERAREHEERELT EMALER) and has successively served as
a lecturer, an associate professor, and a professor since then. Mr.
Chen currently serves as the director of the Institute of Economic
Policy at Peking University (1t A B4 B BRI FTAN).
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Mr. Chen served as an independent director of Guangdong
Xinhui Meida Nylon Company Limited (BE¥T&EEHHRD
BBRAF]) (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
stock code: 000782) from June 2017 to January 2024. Mr. Chen
served as an independent director of Zhanjiang Guolian Aquatic
Products Co., Ltd. CETEIB/KERERHERAF]) (a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 300094)
from November 2019 to January 2021. He also served as an
external director of Haode Technology Co., Ltd. (&R
BPBRAF]) since February 2016, and an independent director of
Meizhou Hakka Bank Co., Ltd. (M ZERITAZH R A A]) since
August 2017.

Mr. Chen obtained his bachelor’'s degree in Economics from
Peking University (A5 K28) in the PRC in July 1994. He then
obtained his doctorate degree in Economics from the Australian
National University (B AF25 B K&) in Australia in September
2003.

Mr. Chen was granted The National Science Fund for
Distinguished Young Scholars (AR EFFEREZESE) in 2014,
and he was recognized as the Fellow of Chang lJiang Scholars
Program (KT EERFIEHIF) in April 2017.

Mr. Shen Haipeng (Jii8M8), aged 47, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of our Company with
effect from September 29, 2022. He is primarily responsible for
providing independent advice on the operations and management
of our Company.

Mr. Shen has been serving as the associate dean of the Faculty
of Business and Economics of the University of Hong Kong
since September 2017 and oversees the university’s Executive
Education program (5B EIEHE ER).

Mr. Shen was a tenure-track assistant professor from July 2003
to June 2009, a tenured associate professor from July 2009 to
June 2014, and a tenured professor from July 2014 to August
2015 at the Department of Statistics and Operations Research at
the University of North Carolina Chapel Hill, United States.
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Since July 2018, Mr. Shen has been an independent director of
Chow Tai Seng Jewellery Company Limited (JEIAAEKE D AR
2 A]) (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock
code: 002867). Mr. Shen served as an independent non-executive
director of IntelliCentrics Global Holdings Ltd. (%25 2 BRkIER G R
‘A 7)) (a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock
code: 6819) from March 2019 to January 2020.

Mr. Shen obtained his bachelor’s degree in Mathematics from
Peking University (JE = A28) in July 1998. Mr. Shen then obtained
his master’s degree in Art and his doctorate degree in Philosophy
from the Wharton School of Business, University of Pennsylvania,
United States, in August 2000 and August 2003, respectively.
Mr. Shen was granted the Outstanding Teaching Award by The
University of Hong Kong Business School and Guanghua School
of Management of Peking University in December 2020.

Mr. Song Yunfeng (RE#), aged 54, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of our Company with
effect from September 29, 2022. He is primarily responsible for
providing independent advice on the operations and management
of our Company.

Mr. Song has been an attorney of Beijing Dentons Law Offices,
LLP (At AR 2B EFEFT) since December 2004, and is a senior
partner of the firm. He has also been an independent director of
Beijing Hotgen Biotech Co., Ltd. (At REASE EMHFITRMH AR A A,
a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
688068) since July 2022. Prior to that, he was a civil servant from
December 1995 to July 2004 at Foreign Affairs Office and the
Hong Kong and Macao Affairs Office of the People’s Government
of Beijing Municipality (3t ARBMFINERDE RBRER
PAZE) and was primarily responsible for administrative service.
He served as a teacher at School of Literature, Capital Normal
University (& #BAT3KE3) from July 1993 to December 1995 and
was responsible for education and administration affairs.
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Mr. Song obtained his bachelor's degree in Chinese Literature
from Capital Normal University in July 1993, and his master’s
degree in Law from School of Law, Peking University in June
2004. Mr. Song further completed the EMBA program in
Guanghua School of Management, Peking University (1t 57 KE
FEEFIRERT) in January 2012. Mr. Song obtained his doctorate
degree in Business Administration jointly offered by Guanghua
School of Management, Peking University and Business School of
University of Hong Kong (& K24 E 2Fx) in November 2022.

Mr. Song obtained his PRC Legal Professional Qualification
Certificate issued by the PRC Ministry of Justice in 2004 and was
qualified as an attorney by the Beijing Justice Bureau of Justice in
2005.

SUPERVISORS

Ms. Xiang Yun (M), aged 56, is the chairperson of our
Supervisory Committee. Ms. Xiang has served as a Supervisor of
our Company since January 2016, and has been serving as the
general consultant of audit and internal control of our Company
since March 2018. She is primarily responsible for supervising the
audit and internal control of our Company.

After joining our Company in May 1994, Ms. Xiang served in
various positions, including an office director in Shenzhen branch,
a manager of quality management and an assistant general
manager from May 1994 to September 2000. She successively
served as a deputy general manager of property management
department and the general manager of property services
management department in China Vanke from October 2000 to
January 2009, and served as an assistant general manager of our
Company from February 2009 to February 2018.

Ms. Xiang graduated from Jianghan University (JTZXE) with
a college degree in Business and Economics Management in the
PRC in July 1988, and obtained her master’s degree in Business
Administration from Asia International Open University (Macau)
(now known as City University of Macau) in Macau in May 2001.
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Ms. Han Huihua (8 £%#), aged 41, is a shareholder
representative Supervisor. Ms. Han has served as a Supervisor of
our Company since January 2018. She is primarily responsible
for supervising financial matters and the directors and senior
management of our Company. Ms. Han is currently an executive

vice president and the head of finance of China Vanke.

Ms. Han joined China Vanke in 2008, and successively held
positions of a business manager, the assistant general manager
and the deputy general manager of the finance and internal
control department, and the partner of the financial management
function in the management center of China Vanke. Ms. Han has
been appointed as a non-executive Director of Vanke Overseas
Investment Holding Company Limited (a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 1036) since August

2023.

Ms. Han obtained her bachelor’s degree in Administration
from University of Science and Technology of China (fEIRIE
FAMTAE) in the PRC in July 2003, and her master’s degree in
Administration (majored in accounting) from Jiangxi University
of Finance and Economics (TFAEF4EKEZ) in January 2008. She
obtained the Certified Public Accountant certificate granted by
Certified Public Accountant Examination Board of Ministry of
Finance of the PRC (R BB/ # M5 EHZ E®) in January
2007.

Mr. Wu Jianxia' (R%/{k), aged 41,
Mr. Wu has served as an employee

is an employee
representative Supervisor.
representative Supervisor from February 2021 to March 22, 2024.
He has been the leader of Zhizhi Xueshe (&2 £
2020, and is primarily responsible for supervising the talent

) since January

development, training, corporate culture, staff relations, anti-
corruption supervision and environmental, social and corporate
governance (“ESG") affairs of our Company.

After joining our Company in July 2013, Mr. Wu served in various
positions including as an assistant director of the planning and
development department, the director of the planning and
development department, the chief partner of the Zhuzher
Workshop ({325 T{E=E) and the general manager of the long-
term rental service development center.

Note 1:  Mr. Wu has resigned as an employee representative Supervisor
of the Company with effect from March 22, 2024.
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Prior to joining our Company, Mr. Wu served as a staff of group
general office at China Vanke from July 2005 to December 2008.

Mr. Wu obtained his bachelor's degree in Marketing from
Zhejiang University in the PRC in June 2005.

Mr. Zou Ming? (888H), aged 50, has successively served as
multiple positions, including an executive of human resources
of Shenzhen Vanke Service Co., Ltd., an assistant manager in
human resources department, a deputy general manager of
Shanghai Vanke Service Co., Ltd., the director of the planning
and development department, a deputy general manager of
Beijing Vanke Service Co., Ltd., the general manager of Tianjin
Vanke Property Service Co., Ltd., the general manager of
residential projects operation center Beijing region, the general
manager of North China region and the head of human resource
of our Company since his joining our Company in February 2001.
Mr. Zou served as the deputy general manager of our Company
from January 2021 to March 2024, responsible for the human
resources management of the Company.

Mr. Zou obtained his bachelor’s degree in Power Systems and
Automation from Southeast University (REIAE%) in the PRC in
June 1996.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhu Baoquan (%R Z), aged 49. For his biography, please

"

refer to the sub-section “ —Directors” above.

Mr. He Shuhua (fiJEBZ%E), aged 49. For his biography, please

"

refer to the sub-section “ —Directors” above.

Note 2:Mr. Zou has been elected by the employee representatives’
assembly of the Company as the employee representative
Supervisor of the third session of the Supervisory Committee of
the Company, taking effect from March 22, 2024.
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Mr. Yang Guanghui (¥ #), aged 52, has been serving as the
deputy general manager, the chief customer services officer of
our Company since March 2021 and the chief partner of Vanke
Service business unit (“BU") since January 2022. Mr. Yang is
primarily responsible for operation and management of our
Company’s residential property services (Vanke Service).

Mr. Yang has over 20 years of experience in the property
management industry. After joining our Company in April 1997,
Mr. Yang consecutively served in multiple positions within
our Company, including an environment executive, a quality
executive, a quality manager, a business supervision manager,
the general manager of Hangzhou Vanke Property Service Co.,
Ltd., the general manager of residential projects operation
center Shanghai region, the general manager of Shanghai Vanke
Service Co., Ltd., the chairman of Zhejiang Yaojiang Real Estate
Management Co., Ltd. GHVIIBIYEERHBRAF]), a leading
partner of East China region and the chief customer services
officer.

Mr. Yang obtained his bachelor's degree in Landscape
Architecture from the Inner Mongolia Forestry College (AR5 &4k
%) (now known as the Inner Mongolia Agricultural University
(REHEEZEAKE)) in the PRC in July 1994. Mr. Yang obtained
the Special Award for the Executive Officer of 2019 granted
by our Company, the Industry Contribution Award granted by
Shanghai Property Management Association in November 2019
and was elected as the vice president of the sixth Council of
Shanghai Property Management Association in July 2020.

Mr. Li Qingping (ZE¥), aged 45, has been Chief Investment
Officer of our Company since January 2019 and Chairman of
Cushman & Wakefield Vanke Service since January 2020. Mr. Li is
primarily responsible for the Company’s mergers and acquisitions,
investment activities, post-investment management and
operation, new business incubation related matters. He directly
oversees investment and innovation development center of the
Company, Xiangying Enterprise Service, Cushman & Wakefield
Vanke Service, Yuying platform and Onewo growth capital. Mr. Li
has served as the chief executive officer of Cushman & Wakefield
Vanke Services since July 2023. Mr. Li served as Chief Financial
Officer of our company from September 2016 to January 2019.

ENEEMMBRBBRNDERRF 2023FFH

A\, DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BREEE > 525% - B2021F3 AREMER
NRRABKE BEREFPENBE2022F1 A
BETERMEBUEREARA - BLEEE
BEARAEEMERS (BRYWE) HES

I o

BREHEBA20FNMEESBITELS -
R1997F 4 AMARRGIE » BIELEE
TZEBMN - BIEEEREXE - E2HF
B HEISKE  EBEELRE - UNER
MERBBRARBLE - FTEHEELHF
D EEBREEKE - ESBERYEREER
DRI NIRRT EETEERARE
ER EFEEBOIPEEESEA  BEERF

%

BoRAENRI1994F 7 A EFHESREHME
B RABAASRHBERE) MR EES
TEM - BAEENMERSARRIBEEMN2019
FEHITERAE - R2019F 11 A ESBH
FEMYEERBITEBERENITERER
2 WHR2020F7AEE AR L EMYWEEE
TEBeEAEREECREeER -

ZEBYELE 455 0 B2019F 1 AREMR
RARIEEREE  B2020F1 AREEE
MBITEER  EXBEEAQANHFE -
B RETERES HEBBEES
B HEREBHEBIFERPL  HFRER
BEYMRT BEYE  BYUKEES - B
2023F7 AR FEAFRTENRITEELN
118 > H2016F9AZE2019F1 8 » F4h4k
BIEEARNREREMEE -



DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
£ BEEkeAEEE

Prior to joining our Company, Mr. Li served as a vice president
of China Minsheng Trust Co., Ltd. (FEIRAZE AR A F]) from
March 2013 to September 2016, where he had senior leadership
responsibility successively for investment banking department
and real estate investment department. He also served as
a director and the general manager of Minsheng Capital
Investment Management Co., Ltd. (REBXRKEEIEFR AR
from February 2016 to June 2017. Previously, from April 2011 to
March 2013, Mr. Li served as a vice president of CITICPE (FR{5
EXEE), where he was primarily responsible for multi-strategy
mezzanine investment. Earlier, starting from October 2004 to
April 2011, Mr. Li served in various leadership positions, in China
Foreign Economy and Trade Trust Co. Ltd. (FE¥IMNEEE 51z
B[R AF]), a subsidiary of Sinochem Group Co., Ltd., including
the general manager of auditing & legal department, transaction
department, and investment management department. He was
later appointed as a general manager assistant, and began to
have an executive oversight of real estate trust department and
Shanghai headquarter.

Mr. Li obtained his Bachelor of Science degree from China
Pharmaceutical University (FBIZEEIKE) in the PRC in July
2000, and Master of Economics in Finance from Peking University
(At FKE8) in the PRC in July 2006. He obtained his master’s
degree in Business and Administration from China Europe
International Business School in October 2013. From November
2018 to November 2019, he was selected to study at Hillhouse
Value Investing Institute (S EEKR AW EPT), and he has been
studying at TencentX Industrial Academy (db X — FHARKE
BT since June 2021. He has been selected to study in the
Hupan Learning and Research Center since May 2023. Mr. Li was
awarded the Gold Robin Medal, our Company’s top honor, in
January 2020 and the 2019 Group Gold Award of China Vanke.

Ms. Ye Fei (¥3E), aged 41, has joined the Company since July
2023 and has served as the deputy general manager of the
Company since March 22, 2024. She is in charge of Onewo
Platform, including the planning and development department,
the finance and capital management center and the data and
information technology center, leading the work of Onewo target
service team.
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Ms. Ye has excellent strategic vision and management innovation
capabilities, with rich international perspective as well as in-depth
industry experience in corporate governance, capital operation,
investment and mergers and acquisitions, business innovation and
incubation, etc. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Ye successively
served as deputy CFO of the Group, CFO of CJIA Apartment,
senior vice president of the Group/head of the capital operation
center in H World Group Limited from March 2016 to July 2023.
She successively served in important management positions in
BOOZ & COMPANY and direct investment department of CITIC
Capital from July 2004 to February 2016.

Ms. Ye graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong University in June
2004 and obtained her bachelor’s degree in Economics; she
graduated from Harvard Business School in the United States
in June 2009 and obtained her master’'s degree in Business
Administration.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Huang Min (EX), aged 34, was appointed as our joint
company secretary of the Company on March 1, 2022. Mr.
Huang joined our Company in June 2014 and serves as a partner
of the planning and development department currently, and
primarily responsible for strategy research, strategy operation
management and investor relations related affairs.

Mr. Huang successively served as a financial management
director, an investor relations director, a partner of strategy
mergers and acquisitions and a partner of the planning and
development department of our Company since joining in June
2014. In addition, Mr. Huang also serves in directorship of
the companies in which our Company invested, a director of
Shenzhen Vanyu Securepro Technology Co., Ltd. (FIIT &M%
B AR BRI ABR A F]) since November 2019. Prior to joining our
Company, from July 2012 to June 2014, Mr. Huang served in
Huarun Power Wind Power (Shantou) Co., Ltd. (ZEHE HREBEC
SR)BRAF).

Mr. Huang obtained his bachelor’s degree in Financial
Management from Xiamen University in the PRC in July 2012.
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Ms. Ng Wai Kam ({L{fEZ), was appointed as our joint company
secretary of the Company on March 1, 2022. Ms. Ng is a senior
manager of Corporate Services of Tricor Services Limited, a
global professional services provider specializing in integrated
business, corporate and investor services. Ms. Ng has over 10
years of experience in the corporate secretarial field. She has
been providing professional corporate services to Hong Kong
listed companies as well as multinational, private and offshore
companies.

Ms. Ng is currently the company secretary/joint company
secretary of listed companies on the Stock Exchange, namely,
Hebei Yichen Industrial Group Corporation Limited (At B K& %
EER D AR AR, stock code: 1596), Genertec Universal Medical
Group Company Limited (GBAIRIKEE LB FR AR, stock code:
2666), Mega Genomics Limited (ERERABRR A R]; stock code:
6667) and UBTECH ROBOTICS CORP LTD (FIITTEEBHE IR
APBRAT]; stock code: 9880).

Ms. Ng is an Associate of both The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries) and The Chartered Governance Institute
in the United Kingdom. Ms. Ng obtained her bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration from Hong Kong Shue Yan University in
July 2011.
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The Board of Directors hereby presents to the Shareholders the
report of the Board of Directors for the financial year ended
December 31, 2023.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the PRC on February 20, 2001
and was converted into a joint stock limited company on March
20, 2018. The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock
Exchange on September 29, 2022.

The basic information of the Company is set out on pages 21 to
24 in the "Corporate Information” of this report.

SHARE CAPITAL

As of the Latest Practicable Date, the Company’s issued Shares
were 1,181,237,429 Shares. Details of the Company’s share
capital during the year ended December 31, 2023 are set out in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PRINCIPAL BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS

The Group is a leading omni-space service provider in China
that has continuously effected improvements in the industry
over the past three decades. 33 years ago, we kick-started our
journey with the simple purpose of pursuing excellent property
management services for more people — a purpose which still
guides the way we do business in a highly competitive and
fragmented sector today. Drawing on our brand strength and
service quality, we have expanded our business beyond property
management services and become a leading service provider
with a growth model built upon the synergy of businesses across
community, commercial and urban spaces, serving a diverse array
of properties such as residential communities, workspaces and
public premises, and a broad customer base covering property
owners, corporate and other institutional clients. Leveraging R&D
investments, we have developed AloT and BPaa$ solutions aiming
to digitalize workflows, mobilize resources and improve efficiency
of the spaces we serve. As our service offerings intertwine and
further integrate with purpose-built technologies, we become
well-prepared to achieve economies of scale and capture
adjacent opportunities. In terms of geographic focus, we strive
to provide quality services to customers in high-tier cities with
strong economic fundamentals.

Details of the names, principal places of business, countries of
incorporation and issued share capital of the Group’s principal
subsidiaries are set forth in note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements. For the year ended December 31, 2023, there was
no material change in the nature of the principal business of
the Group. As of the date of this annual report, the Board of
Directors had no intention to substantially change the principal
business of the Group.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group's businesses for the year and a discussion
on their future development are set forth in the sections headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis”. An analysis of the
Group's performance for the year using key financial performance
indicators is set forth in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis”. The Group had no significant events
taking place during the period from the financial year-end falling
on December 31, 2023 to the date of this annual report.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS,
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

During the year ended December 31, 2023 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Group had not made any significant
investments, acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures.

In addition, save as the plans disclosed in the section headed
“Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus, the Group
has no specific plans to make significant investments or acquire
material capital assets. However, the Group will continue to
seek new opportunities for business development in accordance
with the Company’s strategy. For further details, please refer to
the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the
Prospectus.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS RAISED FROM IPO
AND OVERALLOTMENT OPTION

The H Shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange on the Listing Date by way of Global
Offering. The net proceeds from the Global Offering received by
the Company (after the full exercise of the Over-allotment Option
in part) was approximately RMB5,617.2 million, after deduction
of underwriting commissions and other related expenses payable
by the Company in connection with the exercise of the Over-
allotment Option.
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The proceeds from the Global Offering will continue to be Z2MBEEMESRBBISEIRBRERD K
utilized in accordance with the plans disclosed in the section R:tZIRFIEXRIERAS | —ETIEEANTE
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. BN o F&&EHFIEEZN2023FE12A318H
The following table sets forth a breakdown of the utilization PT{SFNIE HEEE) B L E) A B NERA -

and proposed utilization of the net proceeds as of December 31,

2023:
Net proceeds Amount Expected
Percentage  disclosed utilized as timetable for the
of total in the of December full use of the
Items amount  Prospectus 31, 2023 Balance balance
RRER HZE2023F
fHAE BENFE 12A31AL BYERGEN
HE Bk REFE CBRALE BE BAHREX
(Approximate) (RMB million) (RMB million) (RMB million)
(AR UN: (AR
(#47) BET) BET) BET)
Financing the development of ~ #77[ &9 EHE | £ 35% 1,966.0 253.4 1,712.6 By the end of 2027
our replicating the success of ~ REEE S - BRBEME 2027 EE AT

our “Onewo Town"” model to
achieve economies of scale

Investing in the development of & AAloT }:BPaaSEE R 7 5 25% 1,404.3 4142 990.1 By the end of 2027
our AloT and BPaa$ solutions ~ HJFf% 2027 FF &R
Incubating the Onewo e B A RS FR A 8 R AT 20% 1,123.5 0.8 1,122.7 By the end of 2027
ecosystem through £ F T EERBRGEE 2027 FF KA
acquisitions of majority MAZHRERE L ENE

interests in value-added ERERG

service providers and service
providers along the upstream
and downstream supply chain
of our industry

Attracting and nurturing talents AR RIEE AT 10% 561.7 6.1 555.6 By the end of 2027
12027 F FEAT
For working capital and for LEEER—RATRAE 10% 561.7 532.9 28.8 By the end of 2027
general corporate purposes 2027 FF KA
Total At 100% 5,617.2 1,207.4 4,409.8
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

During the Reporting Period and as of the Latest Practicable
Date, the list of Directors and Supervisors is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Baoquan (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. He Shuhua

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Wenjin
Mr. Zhang Xu
Mr. Sun Jia

Mr. Zhou Qi

Mr. Yao Jinbo

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Law Elizabeth
Mr. Chen Yuyu

Mr. Shen Haipeng
Mr. Song Yunfeng

Supervisors

Ms. Xiang Yun

Ms. Han Huihua

Mr. Wu Jianxia (resigned as an employee representative
Supervisor of the Company with effect from March 22, 2024)
Mr. Zou Ming (appointed as an employee representative
Supervisor of the Company with effect from March 22, 2024)

Changes in Information of Directors and
Supervisors

Biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior
management of the Company are set out in the section headed
on pages 56
to 73 of this annual report. During the Reporting Period, save

“Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management”

as disclosed in the section headed “Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” of this annual report, there has been no
other information that is required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules as of December 31, 2023.

ENEEMMBRBBRNDERRF 2023FFH

EERES

BEHALHERRERAT
HEFREMT

HITES

KRERE(EFER)
BB EE ST A

FHITES

IXEkE
SRABST A
FEELE
EEF s
PRSI e

VEHTES

BEXLL
REFRE
Wit P
REHTE

S

=i+

BREEL L

Re|REE (B2024F3 A22HRBREARRD
ABITRARES)

BRALAE (B2024F3 22 HEERT AR
RABTRRES)

BHtzE=S

i

T
IH

2 38 ¢

ESRESERHREE
ARFMES  EEREBREREORESF

SENAFRFECSCET/IE[EE EENS
MEEE] 8  c RWEHRN - BRRAFE
WEES ESRSREEE| —EFAHAE
TEEIN BE2023F12A31H  iEEAM
BECETRADEI3SIBNEEEREN

.
= o
(=R



REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEEHE

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Service Contracts

The Company has entered into a service contract with each of
Directors and Supervisors in respect of, among other things, (i)
compliance of relevant laws and regulations, (ii) observance of
the Articles of Association, and (iii) provisions on arbitration.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or Supervisors has
any service contract of Directors or Supervisors with any member
of our Group (other than contracts expiring or determinable by
the relevant employer within one year without the payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation).

Independence Confirmation Letter of
Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received the independence confirmation letter
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed the
independence of all independent non-executive Directors and
confirmed that all of them are independent pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

As of December 31, 2023, save as disclosed below, none of the
Directors has any interests in any business that competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of our Group:

(a) Anjuke Group Inc. (“Anjuke”): Mr. Yao lJinbo, a non-
executive director of the Company, is the executive
director, chairperson, chief executive officer, and a
controlling shareholder of Anjuke. Anjuke is an open
online platform for real estate information and transaction
services in China; and
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Ltd. (HT#4E
("Siweideng”): Mr. Yao Jinbo,

(b) Siweideng Real Estate Consultant Group Co.,
BEXEREEBRAR)
a non-executive director of the Company, is a director of
Siweideng. Siweideng is a global accommodation operator
focusing on the provision of chain-owned homestay,
apartments and villas (paragraphs (a) and (b) collectively,
the “Relevant Director Businesses”).

There is neither any substantial competition between our
businesses and the Relevant Director Businesses, nor any material
conflict of interests arising from Mr. Yao lJinbo’s position and
shareholding in Anjuke and Siweideng, having taken into account
that (a) our Group is a leading service provider in community,
commercial and urban spaces, which offers, among others,
home sale and rental brokerage services as an extension of
our residential property services only while (i) Anjuke focuses
on developing its online real estate service platform business
and serves as an intermediary and (ii) Siweideng is a global
accommodation operator focusing on the provision of chain-
owned homestay, apartments and villas; and (b) the role of Mr.
Yao in our Company is non-executive in nature and he has not
involved in the day-to-day management of the operations of our
Group.

Mr. Yao Jinbo confirms he is also aware of his fiduciary duties
as a Director which require, among other things, that he must
act for the benefit of and in the best interests of our Group and
not allow any conflict between his duties as a Director and his
personal interests. In the event that there is a potential conflict
of interest arising out of Mr. Yao's positions held in the Relevant
Director Businesses, Mr. Yao shall abstain from voting on any
resolutions of our Board approving any contract or arrangement
or any other proposal in which he has a material interest and
shall not be counted in the quorum present at the relevant Board
meetings.

Our Directors are of the view that such Relevant Director
Businesses will not result in any substantial competition issues
under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.
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Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the other
Directors or their associates engaged in any business (other
than the business of our Group) which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of
our Group, or had any interest therein, which would require
disclosure under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules as of December
31, 2023.

H Share Full Circulation

On October 24, 2023, the Company completed the conversion of
1,050,420,000 Unlisted Shares into H Shares. Immediately after
the conversion and listing, the Company's share capital structure
consists of 1,178,468,700 H Shares. For further details, please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated October 24, 2023.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

According to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the details of the
continuing connected transactions of the Company during the
Reporting Period are as follows:

1. Property Lease

On September 13, 2022, our Company (for itself and
on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into a framework
property lease agreement (the “Framework Property
Lease Agreement”) with China Vanke (for itself and on
behalf of members of the Retained China Vanke Group
and their respective associates). Accordingly, we will
lease certain properties from members of the Retained
China Vanke Group (including their respective associates)
for office use (the “Property Lease”). The Framework
Property Lease Agreement has a term commencing from
the Listing Date to December 31, 2024, which may be
renewed as the parties may mutually agree, subject to
compliance with the requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules and all other applicable laws and
regulations.
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The annual caps payable to members of the Retained
China Vanke Group and their respective associates by
our Group in respect of the Framework Property Lease
Agreement for the three years ended December 31, 2024
are RMB28 million, RMB48 million and RMB68 million,
respectively.

China Vanke is the controlling shareholder of our
Company and therefore constitutes a connected person
of our Company. Therefore, the transactions under
the Framework Property Lease Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions for our Company.
During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group’s
expenses on leasing certain properties from members of
the Retained China Vanke Group and their respective
associates for office use amounted to RMB30.3 million,
which did not exceed the annual cap of RMB48 million.

Property Services

On September 13, 2022, our Company (for itself and
on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into a framework
property services agreement (“Framework Property
Services Agreement”) with China Vanke (for itself and
on behalf of members of the Retained China Vanke Group
and their respective associates), pursuant to which our
Group agreed to provide property services to members
of the Retained China Vanke Group and their respective
associates, including (i) residential property services in
respect of the unsold residential properties developed and
to be developed by members of the Retained China Vanke
Group and their respective associates; and (ii) property and
facility management services in respect of the commercial
properties owned or used by members of the Retained
China Vanke Group and their respective associates (the
“Property Services”). The Framework Property Services
Agreement has a term commencing from the Listing Date
to December 31, 2024, which may be renewed as the
parties may mutually agree, subject to compliance with
the requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
and all other applicable laws and regulations.
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The annual caps payable to our Group by members of
the Retained China Vanke Group and their respective
associates in respect of the Framework Property Services
Agreement for the three years ended December 31, 2024
are RMB936 million, RMB1,078 million and RMB1,244
million, respectively.

China Vanke is the controlling shareholder of our
Company and therefore constitutes a connected person
of our Company. Therefore, the transactions under
the Framework Property Services Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions for our Company.
During the year ended December 31, 2023, the total
revenue from property services provided by our Group to
members of the Retained China Vanke Group and their
respective associates was RMB1,074.4 million, which did
not exceed the annual cap of RMB1,078 million.

Value-added Services

On September 13, 2022, our Company (for itself and
on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into a framework
value-added services agreement (“Framework Value-
added Services Agreement”) with China Vanke (for
itself and on behalf of members of the Retained China
Vanke Group and their respective associates), pursuant to
which we agreed to provide value-added services to the
properties owned or used by members of the Retained
China Vanke Group and their respective associates,
including but not limited to (i) sale center and model room
management services; (ii) predelivery support services;
and (iii) building maintenance services in respect of the
properties developed by members of the Retained China
Vanke Group and their respective associates (the “Value-
added Services”). The Framework Value-added Services
Agreement has a term commencing from the Listing Date
to December 31, 2024, which may be renewed as the
parties may mutually agree, subject to compliance with
the requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
and all other applicable laws and regulations.
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The annual caps payable to our Group by members of
the Retained China Vanke Group and their respective
associates in respect of the Framework Value-added
Services Agreement for the three years ended December
31, 2024 are RMB2,729 million, RMB2,706 million and
RMB2,703 million, respectively.

China Vanke is the controlling shareholder of our
Company and therefore constitutes a connected person
of our Company. Therefore, the transactions under the
Framework Value-added Services Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions for our Company.
During the year ended December 31, 2023, the total
revenue from value-added services provided by our Group
to members of the Retained China Vanke Group and their
respective associates was RMB2,382.8 million, which did
not exceed the annual cap of RMB2,706 million.

AloT and BPaa$S Solution Services

On September 13, 2022, our Company (for itself and on
behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into a framework AloT
and BPaaS solution services agreement (the “Framework
AloT and BPaa$S Solution Services Agreement”) with
China Vanke (for itself and on behalf of members of
the Retained China Vanke Group and their respective
associates), pursuant to which we agreed to provide AloT
and BPaaS solution services of (i) design, construction,
operation and maintenance of smart property equipment
and system, and related services (such as smart property
consultancy services and integrated smart space solutions);
and (ii) remote space operation services (such as intelligent
urban space workflow management services and operation
data analysis services) to members of the Retained China
Vanke Group and their respective associates (the “AloT
and BPaaS Solution Services”). The Framework AloT
and BPaaS Solution Services Agreement has a term
commencing from the Listing Date to December 31,
2024, which may be renewed as the parties may mutually
agree, subject to compliance with the requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and all other applicable
laws and regulations.

ENEEMMBRBBRNDERRF 2023FFH

HZE2024F12A31HIL=EFE -
BRTENEEKRKEATREZAHE
AREEREERBZRAAERZ
NHEELERPAABARKE2,7298
Br ARE2706BEBTRARK
2,703B&7TT °

ERERARRIMNIZERRE - A
RATMEEALT - Bt - BERS
ERBZEEB NETHOXSHENART]
MIFEBERS - REIE2023F12
AMBLEFER AEERBTER
EEKERARMES OB B ARMEIE
ERBRABERARK2,382.88
B ZeBAHBTELRAREK
2,706 A& T °

AloT K BPaaS## R A R

7202298138 » A=A (BEX
FERARREMBAR) BERME (B
HEAGEREB TEREEKE AT
MEXBHE A) I AloT & BPaaSfE
R ERARFSHELE % ([ AloT R BPaa$S
BRAFRBRBELRBR]) - Bt
ZMRAEMBHTENEBRXE AT R
HEBMEARHEOSEDERBL
RFHRAT - B EERBEEUAR
HARS (W EEMEBARS LR
EEEBETEEBAFTR)  R(HVEREZ
MEERY (B mERIER
EEERBMELEBED RS M
AloT K& BPaaSHR AT =R ([ AloT
K BPaaSBRARBBE ) - AloTk
BPaaSH# R 77 &R AR FSHIE R 1 iz 6 HARR
BT BEE#EE2024%F12831H
I AKEFRERTUNEE  HA
BT EMRAD)EI1AAZTE THRE
KErBHMBERERER -



REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEEHE

The annual caps payable to our Group by members of
the Retained China Vanke Group and their respective
associates in respect of the Framework AloT and BPaaS
Solution Services Agreement for the three years ended
December 31, 2024 are RMB1,029 million, RMB1,237
million and RMB1,373 million, respectively.

China Vanke is the controlling shareholder of our
Company and therefore constitutes a connected person
of our Company. Therefore, the transactions under the
Framework AloT and BPaaS Solution Services Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for our
Company. During the year ended December 31, 2023,
the total revenue from AloT and BPaaS solution services
provided by our Group to members of the Retained
China Vanke Group and their respective associates was
RMB676.9 million, which did not exceed the annual cap
of RMB1,237 million.

Property Agency Services

On September 13, 2022, our Company (for itself and
on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into a framework
property agency services agreement (the “Framework
Property Agency Services Agreement”) with China
Vanke (for itself and on behalf of members of the Retained
China Vanke Group and their respective associates),
pursuant to which we agreed to provide property agency
services to members of the Retained China Vanke Group
and their respective associates, and receive service fees
as consideration. The property agency services mainly
include conducting marketing and sale activities, sourcing
potential clients to enter into property sale and purchase
agreements in respect of (i) the residential and commercial
property units; and (ii) the carpark space and other
properties developed and to be developed by members
of the Retained China Vanke Group and their respective
associates (the “Property Agency Services”). The
Framework Property Agency Services Agreement has a
term commencing from the Listing Date to December 31,
2024, which may be renewed as the parties may mutually
agree, subject to compliance with the requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and all other applicable
laws and regulations.
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The expected maximum service fees payable to our Group
by members of the Retained China Vanke Group and
their respective associates in respect of the Framework
Property Agency Services Agreement and maximum daily
balance of the Deposits payable by our Group to members
of the Retained China Vanke Group and their respective
associates for the three years ended December 31, 2024
are as follows:

Annual Caps of Service Fees RIS EFE LR
Maximum Daily Balance of the ReMEHRaEH

Deposits

HZE20245F12831BIE=EAEE -
BRTEREEKRBERARRESAHE
A ERIBIRSIER HE R AEE
INMERESREEEAEE R H
TENEEREARKESEBHEA
SRS BAREESRIIINT

For the year ended December 31,
BZ12831B8LEE

2022 2023 2024
20224 20234 20245
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT R

410,000 447,000 496,000
1,643,056 1,643,056 1,643,056

China Vanke is the controlling shareholder of our
Company and therefore constitutes a connected person
of our Company. Therefore, the transactions under
the Framework Property Agency Services Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for our
Company. During the year ended December 31, 2023,
the total revenue from property agency services provided
by our Group to members of the Retained China Vanke
Group and their respective associates was RMB339.5
million, which did not exceed the annual cap of RMB447
million. During the year ended December 31, 2023, the
maximum daily balance of the Deposits paid by our Group
to members of the Retained China Vanke Group and their
respective associates was RMB1,562 million, which did not
exceed the cap of RMB1,643 million.
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CONFIRMATION FROM OUR INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
aforementioned continuing connected transactions, and
confirmed that these transactions were conducted in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, on normal
or better commercial terms and in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing these transactions on the terms that were
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.

CONFIRMATION FROM THE AUDITOR

The Company's auditor has been engaged to report on the
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised)
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The letter with unqualified
opinion issued by the auditor in respect of the results and
conclusions of the review of the disclosed continuing connected
transactions is set out below:

(a) nothing material has been found that would prevent the
disclosed continuing connected transactions from being
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company;

(b) in respect of connected transactions relating to the
provision of goods or services by the Group, it is not found
that the Group has not entered into the transactions in
accordance with the pricing policy of the Group in all
material aspects;
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(c) nothing material has been found that would lead it to
believe that the transactions have not been entered into
in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements
governing such continuing connected transactions in all
material aspects; and

(d) in respect of the total amount of all continuing connected
nothing material has been found that
would lead them to believe that the disclosed continuing

transactions,

connected transactions have exceeded the relevant caps
for the year ended December 31, 2023.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related party transactions conducted by the
Group during the year ended December 31, 2023 is contained in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group in
this annual report.

With respect of the note 33 to “Related Party Transactions” to
the consolidated financial statements contained in the annual
report, those transactions which constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company have been disclosed above or
constitute fully exempted connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions of the Company due to all applicable
percentage ratios are less than 0.1%. The Group has complied
with the disclosure requirements for connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules during the Reporting Period.
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DIRECTORS" AND SUPERVISORS’
INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements of our Group in this annual report, “Directors’
or Supervisors’ Service Contracts”, “Directors’ Interests in
Competing Businesses” and the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions”, none of the Directors, Supervisors or
their related entities of the Company has any material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company, any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its
parent is a party, and which subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year ended December 31, 2023.

MAIN RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Main risks and uncertainties the Group is exposed to include,
among others, that:

The Success of Our Business is Dependent on
General Economic and Market Conditions.

Our operation covers the community space living consumption
services market, commercial and urban space integrated services
market and intelligent city tech services market in China, the
growth of which is affected by general economic and market
conditions, including, but not limited to: changes in international,
national, regional and local economic conditions; volatility in local
real estate market, fluctuations in levels of consumer spending,
and adjustment in relevant laws and regulations.

In case of economic environment weakness or recession, rising
interest rates, increasing fiscal or political uncertainty, falling real
estate values, volatilities in the global capital or credit markets,
the markets we operate in may be negatively affected, which
could, in turn, have a material adverse effect on our business.
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The Amounts We Collected from Properties
Managed on a Remuneration Basis May Not
Cover Our Costs.

When we are contracted to manage properties on a remuneration
basis, we essentially act as an agent of the property owners.
As of the end of a period, if the working capital of a project
accumulated is insufficient to cover the expenses such project
incurs to provide property management services, the shortfall
will be recognized as other receivables. We cautiously assess the
recoverability of the shortfall and make provision for impairment
losses on a project-by-project basis. We take into consideration
various factors during the assessment, including but not limited
to (i) the credibility and payment record of our customers;
and (ii) the profit or loss of the project for the year. We make
corresponding reversal when the shortfall is received. However,
we face the risk of failing to recover the shortfall and reverse
impairment losses, which may materially and adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

The Strategy of Promoting “Onewo Town
Model” Would Result in Fluctuations in Our
Profit in the Short Term.

We strategically selected sub-districts in which we have multiple
properties under management and our employees could commute
between managed properties within 20 to 30 minutes, breaking
through traditional geographic boundaries of community,
commercial and urban space services. By connecting all managed
properties in Onewo Towns, we can provide comprehensive
services across community, commercial and urban spaces through
resource sharing and expedited response. Our strategy has
achieved initial success at present. However, due to the measures
such as investment in infrastructure improvement required for
constructing Onewo Towns, our profit may be affected in the

short term.
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Brands and Reputation Are Our Key Assets
and Affect How We Are Perceived in the
Market. Any Damage to Brand Image Could
Adversely Affect Our Business.

Brands are our key assets. We carry out our community space
living consumption services, commercial and urban space
integrated services and AloT and BPaa$S solution services primarily
through our “Vanke Service (BEH7%)"”, “Cushman & Wakefield
Vanke Service (8#1277)", "City Up” and “Vanrui IntelliTech (8
ABHE)" brand names. Our ability to attract and retain customers
is highly dependent upon the external perceptions of our level
of service, trustworthiness, business practices, management,
workplace culture, financial condition, our response to
unexpected events and other subjective factors. The success of
our business depends substantially upon our continued ability
to increase brand recognition and further grow brand equity.
As certain trademarks, such as “Vanke Service”, are licensed by
China Vanke Group, if we and relevant entities or our and their
respective directors, management personnel or other employees
take action that damages such brand names or corporate image,
or if any material negative publicity is associated with any of
them, for example, as a result of regulatory investigations into,
or other proceedings involving, wrongdoing or corrupt practices
engaged in by any such entity or person, our brand image and

reputation as well as our market value may be adversely affected.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has compliance procedures in place to ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations which
have a significant influence on the Group. As at the date of this
annual report, save as disclosed herein, the Group has complied
with, in all material respects, all relevant and applicable PRC laws
and regulations governing the property management business.
The Group has obtained all licenses, permits and certificates for
conducting its business operations.

As at the date of this annual report, the Group was not involved
in and the Board of Directors was not aware of any non-
compliance incidents which may have adverse effect on the value
of the Group therein.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF OUR COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As of December 31, 2023, the interests and short positions of
Directors, Supervisors and senior management in the Shares,
underlying shares and debentures of our Company or its
associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance), which were required to be entered in
the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or which were required, under the Model Code (as defined
below), to be notified to our Company and the Stock Exchange
were as follows:
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Interest in Shares of the Company RAEQXTRDHIESE

Approximate
percentage in
the total share

Nature of Class of Number of capital of our
Name Title interest Shares Shares™ Company®
ERRARRAEE
HE Bz EEMtE R 43 48 Bl RGEHEEO WENBE D@
Mr. Zhu Baoquan® Executive Interest in H Shares 90,351,600 (L) 7.67%
Director, the controlled
chairman of corporations
the Board
and the
general
manager
KREEESD WITES MR EE#EDE HR 90,351,600 (L) 7.67%
BER
Franpers
Mr. Yao Jinbo® Non-executive  Interest in H Shares 30,042,000 (L) 2.55%
Director controlled
corporations
RS e @ FHITES R EE#ED  HR 30,042,000 (L) 2.55%
Notes: Htat -
(1) (L) —long position (1) (L — e

(2) The approximate percentage of shareholding in the Company was ~ (2) EARRBRENENE DL BB BEITRG

calculated based on the total number of issued Shares, which was HWE (HZE2023F12831851,178,468,700
1,178,468,700 H Shares as of December 31, 2023. BRHAR) 5T & ©

(3) Ruida I Limited directly held 35,000,000 Shares of the Company,  (3) BEF-BRAFEEFEA2AT35,000,000

Ruida Il Limited directly held 23,284,000 Shares of the Company, BiRGD  BEEEF_BRAREEFEAQA

Ruida Il Limited directly held 23,408,600 Shares of the Company, 23,284,000/ - BEFE=HARAFIEER

Ruida IV Limited directly held 2,970,000 Shares of the Company, BARNF]23,408,600 kM - EEFMARA

and Ruida V Limited directly held 5,689,000 Shares of the RIEEFBANE2,970,0000 010 - LAREE

Company. ERERAREEFAARFS,689,000 8%
,f/'\ °
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Each of Ruida I Limited and Ruida Il Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Ruida Investments | Limited Partnership. Ruida
Il Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ruida Investments
IV Limited Partnership and Ruida V Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Ruida Investments Il Limited Partnership. Glorious
Falcon Investment Limited is the general partner of each of
Ruida Investments | Limited Partnership, Ruida Investments IV
Limited Partnership and Ruida Investments Ill Limited Partnership.
In addition, Shenzhen Yuying No. 23 Investment Management
Partnership Enterprise (Limited Partnership) (FIJITHEESE —
TR EEEABCEBEREE)) is a limited partner holding
approximately 62.86% interests in Ruida Investments | Limited
Partnership and the remaining interests are held by the general
partner, Glorious Falcon Investment Limited. Ruida IV Limited is a
limited partner holding approximately 50.00% interests in Ruida
Investments Il Limited Partnership and the remaining interests
are held by the general partner. Glorious Falcon Investment
Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ruida IV Limited, which
in turn wholly owned by Shenzhen Yuying No. 21 Investment
Management Partnership Enterprise (Limited Partnership) (Z&3I
TEREFEF-_T-—REEBEABLEX(BEREE)) ("Yuying 217).
The general partner of Yuying 21 is Shenzhen Yuying Investment
Management Co., Ltd. (RYITHEEREEEEMR A A]) (“Yuying
Investment”). Mr. Zhu Baoquan, our chairman of the Board, an
executive Director and the general manager of our Company,
holds 67% of interests in Yuying Investment.

Therefore, Mr. Zhu Baoquan is deemed to be interested in the
aggregate 90,351,600 Shares of the Company held by Ruida |
Limited, Ruida Il Limited, Ruida Ill Limited, Ruida IV Limited and
Ruida V Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Dream Landing Holdings Limited (“Dream Landing”) directly
held 30,042,000 Shares of the Company. Dream Landing is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Dream Warrior Inc., which is an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of 58.com Inc.. 58.com Inc.
is ultimately controlled by Mr. Yao Jinbo, our non-executive
Director. Therefore, Mr. Yao Jinbo is deemed to be interested in
the 30,042,000 Shares of the Company held by Dream Landing
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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Interest in Underlying Shares of Associated
Corporations of Our Company

Name of
Associated Nature of Class of
Name Title corporation interest Shares
M EE
] B =1 BEME  ROER
Ms. Han Huihua Supervisor ~ China Vanke Beneficial A shares
owner
BEELT E=% BREE ERBEAEA AR

Notes:
(1) (L) — long position

(2) The total issued shares of China Vanke was 11,930,709,471
shares as of December 31, 2023, comprising 9,724,196,533 A
shares and 2,206,512,938 H shares.

As of December 31, 2023, save as disclosed above, none of the
Directors, Supervisors or senior management of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(as defined in Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (ii) which were entered in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (iii)
which were required, under the Model Code (as defined below),
to be notified to our Company and the Stock Exchange.

gﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%&ﬁmﬂ

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the relevant

Approximate
percentage of

class of the shareholding
underlying in the total
shares of share capital

the relevant of the relevant

Number of associated associated

Shares”  corporation®  corporation@
LR

EEEBRER R

HERADH ZERFEED

REEEY BAKKREIL® BOFREI L@

141,000 (L) 0.0014% 0.0012%
141,000 (L) 0.0014% 0.0012%
Hiiz -

(1 L — "

(2) HZE2023412H318  BRICED#T
D48 A11,930,709,47 1AM - A
9,724,196,533% A% }22,206,512,938 & HAX
4K o

bBr EXFTHETEEIN - HE2023F 12 A31
H BMEEE BEITFIAQASREEAS
RARRISEAEEZE (EERA((EHFLEE
REIYEXVER) AR - HHERD RE#EE
PR ()VREBE(ES REBERN) EXVHET
k8D IAME AR R REEZ T T =
SRR (BERB(ESLBERN) B @EIK
NHWEESIRIEREENERSRAR) - (i)
RENARARBE(ES RS EGI)E352
BEFENESLMANEAERIORE X
(IRBEETA(EERTX)BEMEARR
B MBS TR S SOA R o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE

COMPANY

Long Position in Shares of the Company

As of December 31, 2023, as far as the Company is aware, as

recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company

pursuant to Section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance,

other than our Directors, Supervisors or senior management of

the Company, the following persons hold 5% or more interests

in the Shares or underlying shares:

Name

China Vanke™

Shenzhen Wanhuguanyuan
Management
Consulting Co., Ltd.
("Wanhuguanyuan")"

Shenzhen Wanging
Management Consulting
Co., Ltd. ("Wanqing")"

ENEEMMBRBBRNDERRF 2023FFH

R

Ehgz0

RIMEMREEEHIARAA

(TEMRR))"

RIMEEEEANERAA
([8&)"

Capacity/
Nature of
interest
Beneficial owner
Interest in
controlled

corporations

Beneficial owner

Beneficial owner

i/
BEHE

mih

E&fBA

AV 3

hads)

mih

EafBA

FTERRRALGRGRE
B 7 hy 2 R E

RAEARFRGOEFR

FARFIFTA - B E2023F12A318 @ #
AR BIREBEC(ES K EEED) FE3361KE
GEMZLMAREE  BRESE BEE4ARQ
AEREEABI T AN KAEHA
PEAD B 5% B LA H 12

Approximate

percentage in the

total share

Number of capital of our

Shares @ Company ®

ERAR

Class of RAEED
Shares  RHEF RGHEW BaEIRE
HShares  HIR 600,000,000 (L) 50.91%
HShares  HIR 60,602,000 (L) 5.14%
HShares  HIR 35,602,000 (L) 3.02%
HShares  HIR 5,000,000 (L) 0.42%
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Approximate
percentage in the
total share
Number of capital of our
Shares ® Company ®
Capacity/ EARE
Nature of 5/ Class of R
Name £ interest BRitE Shares  RAER RHHEW CRERA
Shenzhen Wanhu MITEREEFHERAT Beneficial owner ~ EXEAA Hhares  HI 5,000,000 (L) 0.42%
Management Consulting ([Em)w
Co., Ltd. ("Wanhu")"
Shenzhen Wanmazhengiian  AAMESE X EEZHER Beneficial owner ~ EZHEHA HShares  Hik 5,000,000 (L) 0.42%
Management AR ((BEBENO
Consulting Co., Ltd.
("Wanmazhengxian")"
Shenzhen Yingda Investment  RAMEELEELERERDE Beneficial owner ~ EZHEHA Hhares  Hik 5,000,000 (L) 0.42%
Fund Management Co., ([BEREES])"
Ltd. ("Yingda Investment
Fund")"
Interest in TREEER HShares  Hik 55,602,000 (L) 4.72%
controlled
corporations
Shenzhen Wanshuzhimao ~ RAMEHR P EERHERAT Beneficial owner ~ E&EAA HShares  Hik 5,000,000 (L) 0.42%
Management ([EHzg )0
Consulting Co., Ltd.
("Wanshuzhimiao")"
Radiant Sunbeam Limited” ~ Radiant Sunbeam Limited? Beneficial owner ~ E&EAA HShares  HER 180,000,000 (1) 15.27%
Bumper Harvest Limited® Bumper Harvest Limited® Interest in ZRiEEER HShares  Hik 180,000,000 (L) 15.27%
controlled
corporations
Boyu Capital Fund I, LP2  Boyu Capital Fund I, LP.2 Interest in REEEER HShares  Hik 180,000,000 (1) 15.27%
controlled
corporations
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Approximate
percentage in the
total share
Number of capital of our
Shares ® Company ®
Capacity/ EARE
Nature of it/ Class of RAAEH
Name £ interest BRitE Shares  RAER RHHEW CRERA
Boyu Capital General Boyu Capital General Partner Il LP.%  Interest in REEEER HShares  Hik 180,000,000 (L) 15.27%
Partner Ill, L.P.2 controlled
corporations
Boyu Capital General Boyu Capital General Partner Ill, Ltd.?  Interestin REEEER HShares  Hik 180,000,000 (L) 15.27%
Partner Il Ltd.? controlled
corporations
Boyu Capital Group Holdings ~ Boyu Capital Group Holdings Ltd.®  Interest in REEERS HShares  Hik 182,856,500 (L) 15.52%
(td.? controlled
corporations
Boyu Capital Investment Boyu Capital Investment Interest in REEEER HShares  Hik 2,856,500 (1) 0.24%
Management Co., Ltd? Management Co., Ltd? controlled
corporations
Boyu Capital Opportunities ~ Boyu Capital Opportunities Master Beneficial owner  EREBA HShares  HIR 2,564,200 (1) 0.22%
Master Fund® Fund®
Boyu Capital Vantage Boyu Capital Vantage Master Fund” ~ Beneficial owner ~ EzHAA HShares  HER 292,300 (L) 0.02%
Master Fund®
Ruida | Limited (BE%—~  ERE-ARAAY Beneficial owner  EREBA HShares B 35,000,000 (1) 297%
BRAR
Ruida lllimited (B2E=  BEE_ARATY Beneficial owner  EmEEA HShares R 23,284,000 (1) 1.98%
BRAR)
Ruida Investments | Limited ~ Ruida Investments | Limited Interest in REEEER HShares  Hik 58,284,000 (L) 4.95%
Partnership® Partnership® controlled
corporations
Ruida Il Limited (B8=  BREZARATY Beneficial owner ~ EmEBA HShares iR 23,408,600 (1) 1.99%
BRAR
Ruida Investments IV Limited  Ruida Investments IV Limited Interest in REtEER HShares  Hik 23,408,600 (L) 1.99%
Partnership® Partnership® controlled
corporations

98 EVEEMMBRRBEMHERAIF 2023FFH




Name #

Ruida V Limited (BEERER BEZRARLAY
AR

Ruida Investments lll Limited
Partnership®

Ruida Investments lll Limited
Partnership®

Glorious Falcon Investment ~ Glorious Falcon Investment Limited®

Limited®

e=tl]

Ruida IV Limited (EE2ERAR ZEENERATY
S|

Shenzhen Yuying No. 21 MImEEE-T-RE
Investment Management ( -
Partnership Enterprise
(Limited Partnership) (#3117
ERE_t-RAEELY
EE(ERA) ("Yuying
21)

Shenzhen Yuying No. 23 MITERE-_T=REERARAE
Investment Management (
Partnership Enterprise
(Limited Partnership) (3
EEE_T-REEEGY
EE(ERAE) ("Yuying
23')

MIEERAERERLRY
([BRRE)

Shenzhen Yuying Investment
Management Co., Ltd. (3
MEERAEEERAR)
("Yuying Investment”)
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Capacity/
Nature of
interest

Beneficial owner

Interest in
controlled
corporations

Interest in
controlled
corporations

Beneficial owner

Interest in
controlled
corporations

Interest in
controlled
corporations

Interest in
controlled
corporations

Interest in
controlled
corporations

REEEED

REEmER

E&EAA

REEER

XetERL

REEEER

XEEER

Approximate

percentage in the

total share

Number of capital of our

Shares ® Company ®

ERAR

Class of AR
Shares  RAER RHHEW CRERA
HShares  HIR 5,689,000 (L) 0.48%
HShares  HR 5,689,000 (L) 0.48%
HShares  HE 87,381,600 (L) 741%
HShares  HER 2,970,000 (1) 0.25%
HShares  HE 87,381,600 (L) 741%
HShares  HIR 90,351,600 (L) 7.67%
HShares  HE 58,284,000 (L) 4.95%
HShares  Hi% 90,351,600 (L) 7.67%
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Notes:

(A) (L) - Long position; (S) - Short position

(B) The approximate percentage of shareholding in the Company was
calculated based on the total number of issued Shares, which was

1,178,468,700 H Shares as of December 31, 2023.

(1). Each of Wanhuquanyuan, Wanging, Wanhu, Wanmazhengxian,
Yingda Investment Fund and Wanshuzhimiao is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Vanke. As such, China Vanke is deemed
to be interested in the shares of our Company held by each of
Wanhuquanyuan, Wanging, Wanhu, Wanmazhengxian, Yingda

Investment Fund and Wanshuzhimiao pursuant to the SFO.

(2). Radiant Sunbeam Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Bumper Harvest Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by Boyu
Capital Fund lll, L.P. and Boyu Capital General Partner Ill, L.P. is
the general partner of Boyu Capital Fund Ill, L.P.. Boyu Capital
General Partner I, Ltd. is the general partner of Boyu Capital
General Partner Ill, L.P. and Boyu Capital General Partner I,
Ltd. is wholly owned by Boyu Capital Group Holdings Ltd.. As
such, each of Boyu Capital Group Holdings Ltd., Boyu Capital
General Partner Ill, Ltd., Boyu Capital General Partner Ill, L.P.,
Boyu Capital Fund Ill, L.P. and Bumper Harvest Limited is deemed
to be interested in the shares of our Company held by Radiant
Sunbeam Limited pursuant to the SFO. Boyu Capital Opportunities
Master Fund and Boyu Capital Vantage Master Fund are wholly
owned by Boyu Capital Group Holdings Ltd. As such, Boyu Capital
Group Holdings Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the shares of
our Company held by Boyu Capital Opportunities Master Fund

and Boyu Capital Vantage Master Fund pursuant to the SFO.

ENEEMMBRBBRNDERRF 2023FFH

Hiat
(A)

(B)

L) —F& (- KR

HARRRIRENBLOE D HIREE BTG
A8 (EZ2023F12A318/41,178,468,700
BEHA%) 5T & ©

EMRR - BE - Bf BERELE BERE
Ao RERZPHREMEENZEWE R
A Bt REBEC(GEFRBEKD)  BRE%
HRAREBARR BE Bl - BEFL .-
BERERSNBR2YZAFANRRAMR
AR o

Radiant Sunbeam Limited&Bumper Harvest
Limited®) &= &K B AR - fBumper Harvest
Limited@Boyu Capital Fund lll, L.P.2& %
A + BBoyu Capital General Partner Ill, L.P. &
Boyu Capital Fund Ill, L.P.HE@BEE A ° Boyu
Capital General Partner Ill, Ltd. &Boyu Capital
General Partner Ill, LP.EYEBEAE A - BBoyu
Capital General Partner Ill, Ltd.FfiBoyu Capital
Group Holdings Ltd. 2 & # A ° BEL - RIEGE
% R B9 141) - Boyu Capital Group Holdings
Ltd. » Boyu Capital General Partner I, Ltd. »
Boyu Capital General Partner Ill, L.P.
Boyu Capital Fund I, L.P.5&Bumper Harvest
Limited 3445 A# Radiant Sunbeam Limited
FAMARRBRMFHAES - Boyu Capital
Opportunities Master Fund#1Boyu Capital
Vantage Master FundfiBoyu Capital Group
Holdings Ltd. 2&# A - Eilt - RE(EHR
i 15f1) - Boyu Capital Group Holdings Ltd.
157 AF Boyu Capital Opportunities Master
FundfBoyu Capital Vantage Master Fund#§48
AR RIRG R ER
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(3). Each of Ruida I Limited and Ruida Il Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Ruida Investments | Limited Partnership. Ruida
Il Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ruida Investments
IV Limited Partnership and Ruida V Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Ruida Investments Il Limited Partnership. Glorious
Falcon Investment Limited is the general partner of each of Ruida
Investments | Limited Partnership, Ruida Investments IV Limited
Partnership and Ruida Investments Ill Limited Partnership. In
addition, Yuying 23 is a limited partner holding approximately
62.86% interests in Ruida Investments | Limited Partnership and
the remaining interests are held by the general partner, Glorious
Falcon Investment Limited. Ruida IV Limited is a limited partner
holding approximately 50.00% interests in Ruida Investments I
Limited Partnership and the remaining interests are held by the
general partner. Glorious Falcon Investment Limited is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Ruida IV Limited, which in turn wholly
owned by Yuying 21. The general partner of Yuying 21 is Yuying
Investment. Mr. Zhu Baoquan, our chairman of the Board, an
executive Director and the general manager of the Company,
holds 67% of interests in Yuying Investment.

Therefore, Mr. Zhu Baoquan is deemed to be interested in the
aggregate 90,351,600 Shares of the Company held by Ruida |
Limited, Ruida Il Limited, Ruida lll Limited, Ruida IV Limited and
Ruida V Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed in this report, as of December 31, 2023, the
Company had not been notified by any person (other than a
Director, a Supervisor or senior management of the Company)
that he had an interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying shares, which was required to be recorded in the
register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

(3). BEFEBERAAKBEEZE_EARLAYH
#Ruida Investments | Limited Partnership
WEEMBRAR BEE=ZBRRAAAR
Ruida Investments IV Limited Partnership
WEEWBLR  MEEFRABERAAR
Ruida Investments Il Limited Partnership®J
2 & MEQF ° Ruida Investments | Limited
Partnership * Ruida Investments IV Limited
Partnership &2Ruida Investments Il Limited
Partnership#) & @& % A9 A Glorious Falcon
Investment Limited ° Ib5h + BE = += A%
BRuida Investments | Limited Partnership
#6286 % MERMNEREBA R TR
REiMAE % AGlorious Falcon Investment
Limited# 8 - @EEMAR A A RFHERuida
Investments Il Limited Partnership#750.00% )
EENEREBA SR TRZHTBAR AR
A ° Glorious Falcon Investment Limited & &
FEHNERAGNEZEMNBAR  MEEFNA
RARBEE-_+—248%F BB -1+
LTBEBAREEBIRNE ARREFER - #9117
EERBLBARELENEEIRERET%
BB o

Ht - IRIBCES KBS GBI EXVES + KIR2
EEWRARBTEE—EGRAA - BEF_F
RAF - BEE=ZERAAF - BEFNEARA
AIREEFTAERARFEAEREE90,351,600
AR RN PR

BRAMEMHFETEEIN - BiE2023F12 A31
H: XAABEERRMAL(ES EEL
RRARISRERABRIN SMERR DK
HERDFTHEAERBE(ESFRBEKD)F
336 IKBREREAEARAFEME LM Z#

SL P A
MEGRE °
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
Major Customers

For the year ended December 31, 2023, revenue from the largest
customer of the Group accounted for approximately 13.8% of
the total revenue of the Group, while revenue from the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of
the total revenue of the Group.

Major Suppliers

For the year ended December 31, 2023, purchases from the
largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 15.5%
of the total cost of the Group, while purchases from the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of
the total purchase of the Group.

BNEERMERBRMOERRF 2023FFH

TBREFRMHERN
TERF

HZE2023F12A31BILEE » K KAE
EEAEPHBAGAERNREKAL
13.8% * MAKRBRAARFRAMLAEE
U ANR30% o

TEHRER

HZE2023F12A8318BILtFEE > mAEE
EAHEENRBEOERNEENBK ALY
15.5% - T [A)ZN 5 B A oK (e m SRR (G R
SEBKERE/N30% °
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognizes that its employees, customers and
suppliers are critical to the sustainable development of the Group
and is keen on developing and maintaining long-term and stable
relationships with all stakeholders. The Group places significant
emphasis on human capital and is committed to fostering a good
environment in which employees can develop their full potential
and achieve their personal and career development. We promise
to provide a fair, safe and inclusive workplace, promoting
diversified development of employees, and offering competitive
compensation and benefits as well as wide career development
opportunities based on their achievements and performance.

In order to constantly improve employees’ capability and quality,
the Group will put on-going efforts to provide employees with
high-quality training and development resources to enable them
to keep abreast of the latest development trend in the market
and industry, so as to improve their performance and achieve
self-fulfillment. In the meantime, we are well aware that it
is essential to maintain a good relationship with customers,
thus establishing an optimized customer complaint handling
mechanism and conducting regular customer satisfaction surveys
to ensure that customer opinions can be responded timely and
effectively.

We regard suppliers as long-term and reliable partners in
cooperation, and are committed to developing stable and
trusting relationships with them to ensure a stable supply of
materials. We strengthen business communication with suppliers
and contractors through active and effective contacts and
collaboration with them to ensure quality and in-time delivery
of products and services. Such measures help to improve the
competitiveness of the entire supply chain and consolidate the
Group’s leading position in the market.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

For the year ended December 31, 2023, no contract had been
entered into by the Company in respect of the management and
administration of the Company as a whole or any significant part
of the business of the Company, nor did any contract subsist.

B E R EBEE

AEERHD - BE  BEPFRHEBENSE
BHHERRNAFEENESR - BtHRM
LREFMARFNEEUS #ERPRENS
ERER - AEESEERANERKRA -
THOREE—BENRNEEZEZREE H
BRETEREARBEANRNERIRE - &
PigzRIEH AT - 22 BENIESH -
BEETI LT BER  WREMMIET
RARBEEBRFNOFHEEN - AKLE
FMBRERES

RTTERAEENENMEE - AEE K
FERABENEIMBERER - EHFIsE
WMERTIGRITENRHERBR - EME
ETERBABERERER - FAE - BIRX
MERFREEPNRIFARERESE - FitH
ETTENTPIRFEERS - WEHET
EEFmEERE  UBREFPNBERI R
R AR EE -

EEHEENSET  RARE SRR
MEERH  BORNEMPARLRE  BE
BRER - ARIEE R VIR EHIE - BBTE
BB BHEBERE - R PITE R 8 e
B R ABENERHE - AMRE @RS
VEmE EERRZN BERETMEAPRN
RABREHERNSGS )  EAPREEAN
SEETISTHRTHAL -

EEEHN
HZE2023F 12831 B ILEE  AAFHE
MARBBEKRTAEATDESNEER

TRATHEILEREGL R FEEBEE
# o
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ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE PURCHASE OF
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

For the year ended December 31, 2023, none of our Directors or
their respective spouses or children under the age of 18 had been
granted any right to acquire benefits by means of the purchase
of shares or debentures of the Company, nor had they exercised
any of such rights. In addition, neither the Company, its holding
company nor any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries had
entered into any arrangement to enable the Directors to obtain
such rights in respect of any other body corporate.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF
THE LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

On June 16, 2023, the annual general meeting, the class meeting
of Domestic Shareholders and Unlisted Foreign Shareholders, and
the class meeting of H Shareholders of the Company respectively
considered and approved the grant of general mandate to
the Board to repurchase H Shares. The amount of H Shares
repurchased shall not exceed 10% of the total number of H
Shares in issue as at the date of the annual general meeting,
the class meeting of Domestic Shareholders and Unlisted Foreign
Shareholders, and the class meeting of H Shareholders.

BNEERMERBRMOERRF 2023FFH

BERONEEFENZH

BE2023F12A831HILEE » FRMEEH
"5SS BHRMICRM18A F B mER
(RN EBEALRRRRMNKEERE
BN - RENDBITEEMZFERN - I3t
Hh - AR TE - EERA RS EERME AR
KA RM B AR INEET A%k - B E
R BB EMEMEABERZEER -

BE LEIBEEALQFZ
Em

2023F6A16H * AARIBRFBREFRE - A
BRI EMIANEREBERIRE NS RHAREE
FIRRAEEDRBREMERTESEM
BHRO—MBUERE  BETBAERKRESA
FRE -  REREIELFTINERIERIREXR
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The Company started the H Shares repurchase on December 11,
2023. As of December 31, 2023, the Company had repurchased
2,185,600 H Shares in total on the Stock Exchange, representing
0.19% of the total share capital of the Company as of December
31, 2023, and the total amount paid was approximately
HK$53,538,882.52 (excluding transaction fees). The monthly
report on H Shares repurchase is as follows:

2023F12A118 » AR AIFBREBHRME
B o BlE2023F12HA31B AL ARFIE
B P RET R BEHA% A% 192,185,600 -
MARRTHE2023F12 A31HAIEBRRAK
LB £0.19% @ EXHRSEL B
53,538,882.52 L (&R SEMA) - HIRAR
HEEANSARSHT

Price per Share

SREE
Number of Highest Lowest Total
Shares  Repurchasing (HK$/per (HK$/per Amount
Repurchased Method Share) Share) (HKS)
BS BRIE BRARE
Month of Repurchase B A6 EERE EELE (Br,/R) (Br,/R) (B7)
On the Stock
December 2023 2023F12A 2,185,600 Exchange 26.00 22.60  53,538,882.52
B

The Board believes that repurchase of shares under the current
market conditions will demonstrate the Company’s confidence in
the development and prospects of its business and will ultimately
benefit the Company and create a return of value for the
Shareholders, which is in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

Save as set forth above, during the Reporting Period, the
Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem
any listed securities of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision under the Articles of Association or the
laws of the PRC (i.e. the jurisdiction in which the Company is
incorporated) relating to pre-emptive rights that require the
Company to offer new shares to existing Shareholders based on
the percentage of shareholding.

TAX RELIEF

As of the Latest Practicable Date, the Company is not aware of
any tax relief available to any holders of the Company’s securities
as a result of holding such securities.

FERIE  AENTR TEERGHYE
ARAYEFEGRREABTAED
SREARDTE2%RBRREIEEEE R -
HARDERARR MRS -

B EXEPIES - MEHRE - AR REME
AfBARMERE  HEXBEIAQEE
fa] EHRES -

BrRBERE

REIER P B (AR R RGP )
R FRYEAHEELEERNEMR
T BRARRARIRA BRIR R B 2%
SRR o

BLIER
BESEERATES AR L FOEA

RRAEARFRHBEARSRERTRFME
FEMHERR
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Group
are set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” in this annual report.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

Our journey as a company providing property services started
in 1990. Over the last three decades, we have established
a strong service culture as well as a customer-centric and
creative service team. We have further developed an inheritable
corporate culture and operating system centered on the values of

7]

“Service”, “Champion” and “Positivity”, which are crucial for us
to keep attracting and retaining talents that meet our business
development needs. In addition, the structure of our human
resources includes talents in areas such as customer service, sales
and marketing, research and operations, property and project
delivery, as well as functional support, forming a diversified and
all-rounded talent team that lays the foundation for our business

development.
Employee Diversity

As of December 31, 2023, the Group had 101,284 employees
(December 31, 2022: 97,930 employees), and the total staff
cost during the period was approximately RMB11,288.7 million.
Remuneration and benefits of the employees of the Group
include basic salaries, discretionary bonus, social security fund
and housing provident fund, which are determined based on
the nature of work, work performance and market conditions.
The Group also offers competitive remuneration and employee
stock ownership plan for its employees, especially key employees.
The Group is committed to creating favorable conditions in the
working environment in order to continue to maintain the gender
diversity of the Group’s employees. At present, the proportion of
male and female employees in the Group is relatively balanced,
with 54,564 male and 46,720 female employees (representing
53.87% and 46.13%), respectively. The Group strictly complies
with the various provisions of the Labor Law of the PRC (#
ZARKEFBEL X)), and has internally formulated the
Management Systems for Recruitment (BEEEHIE)) to
unify and standardize the employee recruitment process and

ENEEMMBRBBRNDERRF 2023FFH
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AEERANEIELRERAFTRANANFE
WEREEARE | —5 -

BE K HMECR

WM 1990 FREME EMHERIF AR - B
3088 - FERK T RBEMRAB UL - WEBET
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] TXFE-IRIGAERE|NEEEDN

PELRGLRE - FHEWRS|I BB R ER
EHRBERFEOATBM - 14 HADA

NEREBBEREPIRFEAR - HEME
HEAR  BIMEZEAR MERTE
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Bt 2BEANEREBERFTENATK
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BETIZrft

HZE2023F12H318 * K£EHE101,284
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resolutely eliminate any forms of employment discrimination. We
deeply respect the unique background of every employee and
treat them equally and fairly regardless of nationality, ethnicity,
race, gender, religious belief or cultural background. During
the recruitment process, we always adhere to the principles of
diversity, co-fusion and meritocracy to recruit talents widely
and inject vitality into the Group’s continuous development.
We have a zero-tolerance attitude towards any discrimination in
the recruitment process and resolutely maintain a fair and just
recruitment environment to ensure that outstanding talents are
fairly attracted and introduced. We are committed to cultivating
a diverse talent team to provide strong intellectual support and
talent guarantee for the Group's development.

In accordance with the diversity policy, the Group has set the
following measurable goals:

o The Group is committed to maintaining a diverse balance
of skills, experience and perspectives in the process of
business growth. We pay special attention to ensuring the
recruitment and selection process for the Board and other
staff at all levels has complete structure, to attract and
input high-quality candidates with different backgrounds
for the Group to consider;

o The Nomination Committee is required to discuss regularly
(if applicable) and to review and agree measurable
indicators aimed at achieving diversity goals such as
gender diversity at the Board meeting, as well as to
put forward its recommendations to the Board. The
Nomination Committee will review the diversity policy
from time to time based on actual circumstances to ensure
its continued effectiveness.

The human resource-related department of the Group will
continue to monitor and review the gender proportion of
employees, and strive to maintain a balanced proportion of male
and female employees.
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EMPLOYEE TRAINING PLAN

Onewo built a broad development platform for employees.
According to the business needs and employees’ personal career
planning and development, a training system that is beneficial to
employees’ development was established to provide diversified
career development paths and learning opportunities.

1. "Onewo Dream” Development

The Group has launched the employee development
project since 2019 and built a multi-path development
mechanism with professionalization, diversification and full
business scenarios for front line employees, to encourage
them to explore new career paths and help them move to
a larger development stage and gain more labor income.
The Group provides front line employees with rich skill
trainings and diversified business direction choices, and
helps front line service staff transition to other positions
that are more skilled and more irreplaceable. During the
Reporting Period, the Group assisted 2,598 front line
employees to successfully transfer to grid coordinators,
asset coordinators, mechanical and electrical experts, and
digital operation, etc. Since the inception of the “Onewo
Dream” Development project in 2020, the Group has
successfully helped a total of 7,771 front line employees
transfer to other positions.
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Kilo Plan

The Group actively supports front line workers to pursue
advanced study, and subsidizes front line employees to
achieve “senior high school to junior college transfer (&=
FE)" and “junior college to bachelor's degree transfer
(FFHA)" by providing scholarships, helping them improve
their academic qualifications. In 2010, the Group launched
the “Double Hundred Plan (#&%t£l)", and planned to
provide 200 front line employees with the opportunity
to improve their academic qualifications through “senior
high school to junior college transfer” every year. In 2021,
the Group had upgraded the “Double Hundred Plan” to
the “Kilo Plan”. The Group plans to provide 1,000 front
line employees with the opportunity to improve their
academic qualifications through “senior high school to
junior college transfer” and “junior college to bachelor’s
degree transfer” every year, and provide each participant
with a scholarship of RMB5,000 to RMB7,000.
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Talent Training and Development

We are well aware that talent is the core driving force for
promoting the sustainable development of enterprises.
Therefore, we attach great importance to seeking and
empowering talents, and establish talent reserves for
key positions such as supervisor and manager. In 2023,
the Group continued to implement the prevailing talent
system, innovated constantly, optimized talent selection
mechanism, and improved the quality of talent selection,
to meet the requirement of business development better.
We continued to strengthen new employee induction
training and provide the on-the-job professional skill
training and first aid skill certification course to ensure
that employees are equipped with necessary skills and
knowledge to play a role when necessary. To promote
talent development, the Group planned and implemented
a series of talent training and development projects in
2023, including:

o Leadership training camp: improving the leadership
level of administrators at each level,

o Key position ability certification: arranging key
positions in business operation to ensure that key
position personnel are equipped with professional
abilities required for;

o Digital compass project for talent: achieving
more precise talent management through digital
technology-assisted talent selection and training;

o Executive coach program: professional training
by retired senior management through external
executive coaches, and guidance for active
senior managers, to drive the improvement of
organizational performance;

o First aid skill training for positions facing customer:
providing necessary first aid skill training and
certification for front line service staff; currently,
it has covered more than 39,000 on-the-job
employees;

o Other skill and knowledge training for front line
service staff.
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EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP PLAN

China Vanke introduced and adopted an internal business
partnership scheme (FX&Z AMKSE]) for employees of its
property service business, being our Company, in June 2015
to attract and retain talents and to enhance the Company’s
competitiveness for long-term development. Before the Listing,
the Company has further amended and consolidated the
business partnership scheme as the Employee Stock Ownership
Plan. Please refer to the section headed “Statutory and General
Information — 5. Employee Stock Ownership Plan” in the
Prospectus for details.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE

Environmental Protection

The Group is subject to PRC laws in relation to environmental
protection matters. The Group considers the protection of the
environment to be important and has implemented measures
in the operation of businesses to ensure its compliance with all
applicable requirements. Given the nature of its operations, the
Group believes that it is not subject to material environmental
liability risk or compliance costs.

For the year ended December 31, 2023 and as of the date of
this annual report, the Group had not been subject to a fine or
punishment and any material administrative penalties as well due
to violation of environmental laws in the PRC.
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Social Responsibility

The Group has entered into employment contracts with its
employees in accordance with the applicable PRC laws and
regulations.

The Group maintains social welfare insurance for its full-time
employees in the PRC, including pension insurance, medical
insurance, personal injury insurance, unemployment insurance
and maternity insurance, in accordance with the relevant PRC
laws and regulations.

Health and Work Safety

The administrative measures for employees adopted by the Group
contain the policies and procedures regarding work safety and
occupational health matters. The Group provides its employees
with annual medical checks and safety training, and the
properties of the Group are equipped with public safety facilities.

The quality management-related department of the Group is
responsible for recording and handling work accidents as well as
maintaining health and work safety compliance records.

During the year ended December 31, 2023 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Group did not encounter any material
safety accident or material claims for personal or property
damages or make material compensation payouts to employees
in respect of claims for personal or property damages related to
safety accidents.

For more information about our environmental, social and

governance performance, please refer to the 2023 Environmental,
Social and Governance Report of the Company.
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INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE PROVISIONS

The Articles of Association provides that the Directors, managing
directors, alternate Directors, auditor, secretaries and other
officers of the Company for the time being and the trustees (if
any) for the time being acting in relation to any of the affairs of
the Company, and their respective executors or administrators,
should be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them, their
or any of their executors or administrators, should or may incur
or sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty or supposed duty in
their respective offices or trusts. The Company has arranged
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance in respect of
legal actions against Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group for
the year ended December 31, 2023.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

The Group had no material events after the Reporting Period.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Stock Exchange has granted the Company a waiver from
strict compliance with the requirements of Rule 8.08(1) of the
Hong Kong Listing Rules, provided that the minimum public float
of the Company shall be the higher of: (a) 10.0%; and (b) such
percentage of H Shares to be held by the public after the exercise
of the Over-allotment Option, of the enlarged issued share
capital of the Company. Based on the information that is publicly
available to the Company as of the Latest Practicable Date and
to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed
that the Company has maintained the aforementioned minimum
public float required by the Stock Exchange during the Reporting
Period and up to the date of this report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group made
charitable and other donations in a total amount of RMB0.77
million.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young has reviewed the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2023. The resolution on the re-
appointment of Ernst & Young as the auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the annual general meeting for approval.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration and payment of dividends shall be determined
at the sole discretion of the Board. The Board shall also take
into account the following factors when considering whether
to propose dividends and determining the dividend amount:
our results of operations, cash flows, financial condition,
payments by our subsidiaries of cash dividends to us, business
prospects, statutory, regulatory and contractual restrictions on
our declaration and payment of dividends, general economic
conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business and other
internal or external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the Group, as
well as other factors that our Board may consider important. No
dividend will be declared or payable except out of our profits
lawfully available for distribution.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group for the
year ended December 31, 2023 are set out in the consolidated
statements of changes in equity in this annual report. As at
December 31, 2023, the distributable reserves of the Group were
approximately RMB3,358.1 million.

DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend with
RMBO0.777 per share (including tax), totalling RMB916 million, for
the year ended December 31, 2023 to Shareholders (2023 Final
Dividend”), which is subject to the approval by Shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. 2023
Final Dividend is expected to be paid in cash on or about June
3, 2024 to Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on May 21, 2024.

If there are any changes in the total number of shares on the
record date for dividend distribution as a result of additional
issue, repurchase, conversion of convertible bonds into equity
and other circumstances prior to the record date for dividend
distribution, the amount of the dividend per share shall remain
unchanged and the total amount of dividend shall be adjusted
accordingly based on the total number of shares registered on
the record date for dividend distribution.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(@) For Determining the Entitlement of the
Shareholders to Attend and Vote at the
Annual General Meeting

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from May 7, 2024 to May 10, 2024 (both days inclusive),
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to determine the identity of
members who are entitled to attend and vote at the
annual general meeting, all share transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the H Share Registrar of the Company, Tricor
Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on May 6, 2024.

(b) For Determining the Entitlement of the
Shareholders to the Proposed 2023 Final
Dividend

Subject to the approval by Shareholders of the Company
at the annual general meeting, the 2023 Final Dividend
will be paid on or about June 3, 2024. For determining
the entitlement to the proposed 2023 Final Dividend,
the register of members of the Company will be
closed from May 17, 2024 to May 21, 2024 (both days
inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to qualify for the entitlement
to the proposed 2023 Final Dividend, all share transfer
documents of the Company accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the H Share
Registrar of the Company, Tricor Investor Services Limited
at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on May 16,
2024.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will be
held on May 10, 2024. The notice of the annual general meeting
will be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange (http://
www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (https://www.onewo.com)
and despatched to the Shareholders in due course.
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PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

In accordance with the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China and its implementation rules and the Notice
of the State Taxation Administration on Issues Concerning
Withholding the Enterprise Income Tax on the Dividends Paid by
Chinese Resident Enterprises to H Shareholders who are Overseas
Non-resident Enterprises (Guo Shui Han [2008] No. 897) (EIZ
MBRRH(ARTEERPRMARIMEKIEERPEBRRIRERS
KM EPAETA R ER@mANE T K[2008]8975%)), as
a PRC domestic enterprise, the Company will, after withholding
10% of the final dividend as enterprise income tax, distribute
the final dividend to non-resident enterprise Shareholders whose
names appear on the H Shares register of members (i.e. any
Shareholders who hold H Shares in the name of non-individual
shareholders, including but not limited to HKSCC Nominees
Limited, other nominees, trustees, or H Shareholders registered
in the name of other organizations and groups). After receiving
dividends, the non-resident enterprise Shareholders may apply to
the competent tax authorities for enjoying treatment of taxation
treaties (arrangement) in person or by proxy or by the Company,
and provide information to prove that it is an actual beneficiary
under the requirements of such taxation treaties (arrangement).
After the competent tax authorities have verified that there is
no error, it shall refund the tax difference between the amount
of tax levied and the amount of tax payable calculated at the
tax rate under the requirements of the relevant taxation treaties
(arrangement).

Pursuant to the Notice on the Issues Regarding Levy of Individual
Income Tax after the Abolishment of Guo Shui Fa [1993] No.
045 Document (Guo Shui Han [2011] No. 348) (BR Bz
(19931045 5% 3 {4 % 1L 1& 75 B A P15 250 0 Pl 78 9 38 S0 (B A5 1
[2011]3485%)), the Company shall withhold and pay individual
income tax for individual holders of H Shares. If the individual
holders of H Shares are Hong Kong or Macau residents or
residents of other countries or regions that have a tax rate of
10% under the tax treaties with the PRC, the Company will
withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate of 10% on
behalf of such Shareholders.
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If the individual holders of H Shares are residents of countries
or regions that have a tax rate lower than 10% under the tax
treaties with the PRC, the Company will withhold and pay
individual income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of such
Shareholders. If such shareholders claim refund of the amount in
excess of the individual income tax payable under the relevant tax
treaties, the Company may apply, on behalf of such shareholders
and according to the relevant tax treaties, for the treatment
under tax treaties, provided that the relevant Shareholders
submit the relevant documents and information required by
the Administrative Measures on Enjoying Treatment under Tax
Treaties by Non-resident Taxpayers (State Taxation Administration
Announcement, 2015, No. 60) (3EERMIAZZH W IHZTFE
EEIENERHBERAE2015556058)) and the provisions
of the relevant tax treaties in a timely manner. The Company
will assist with the tax refund for the overpaid tax subject to the
approval of the competent tax authorities.

If the individual holders of H Shares are residents of countries
or regions that have a tax rate higher than 10% but lower than
20% under the tax treaties with the PRC, the Company will
withhold and pay individual income tax at the applicable tax rates
stated in such tax treaties on behalf of such Shareholders.

If the individual holders of H Shares are residents of countries
or regions that have a tax rate of 20% under the tax treaties
with the PRC, or have not entered into any tax treaties with the
PRC, or otherwise, the Company will withhold and pay individual
income tax at the rate of 20% on behalf of such Shareholders.

If the shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of
any rights in relation to the shares, they are advised to consult an
expert.

On behalf of the Board
Onewo Inc.

Zhu Baoquan
Chairman

Shenzhen, April 18, 2024
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
EEeHE

The Board of Supervisors of the Company hereby presents the
Shareholders the report of the Board of Supervisors for the
financial year ended December 31, 2023.

In 2023, the Board of Supervisors of Onewo Inc. (the “Board of
Supervisors”) conscientiously performed its duties and obligations
with a high sense of responsibility and mission in compliance
with relevant regulations of Listing Rules, Articles of Association
and Procedural Rules for the Board of Supervisors, etc. With the
principle of being accountable to shareholders, the Board of
Supervisors stood firmly on the Company’s culture and values,
conducted comprehensive and meticulous supervision over the
Company’s financial accounts, management and operation, the
implementation of the resolutions approved at general meetings
and the compliance with relevant laws and regulations and
Articles of Association by Directors and senior management in
discharging their duties.

The Board of Supervisors was of the view that the Company
was in standard operation in accordance with the requirements
of relevant laws and regulations such as Listing Rules and
management systems such as Articles of Association and that
the diligent performance of Directors and senior management
has effectively safeguarded the interest of the Company and
shareholders in 2023.

THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS AND MEMBERSHIP CHANGE
DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

As of December 31, 2023, the membership of the Board of
Supervisors remained stable at three members, comprising
one chairperson of the Board of Supervisors, one Supervisor
and one employee representative Supervisor. All Supervisors
conscientiously performed their duties in compliance with the
provisions of Articles of Association, and there were no changes
before the expiration of their term of office. According to Articles
of Association, the term of office of each Supervisor shall be
three years, renewable upon re-election and re-appointment.
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The composition of the Board of Supervisors is as follows: BEEelAKmT

Name Position mE Bz

Ms. Xiang Yun Chairperson of the Board of Supervisors AEZ+ ELEeTE

Ms. Han Huihua Shareholder Representative Supervisor BEEL 4 RERARKES

Mr. Wu Jianxia Employee Representative Supervisor C L e BITRRES
THE MAJOR WORK PERFORMED BY THE 2023 FEESESTETHE
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS IN 2023 P

The major work performed by the Board of Supervisors in 2023 20234 ' BEEE €@ X E T {0 -

was as follows:

1. Holding the Meetings of the Board 1.
of Supervisors and Conscientiously
Performed the Duties of the Board of
Supervisors

In 2023, a total of 2 meetings of the Board of Supervisors
were held by the Board of Supervisors. The attendances
of Supervisors at the meetings of the Board of Supervisors
are as follows:

Name Supervisor category

"L EE=EA

Xiang Yun Chairperson of the Board of Supervisors
ME EERER

Han Huihua Shareholder Representative Supervisor
BEE BRERRKRESE

Wu Jianxia Employee Representative Supervisor
R BTRRES

2. Supervising the Performance of Duties 2.
by Directors and Senior Management

The Board of Supervisors conducted comprehensive
supervision over the performance of duties by Directors
and senior management by attending the meetings of
the Board of Directors, reviewing each proposal of Board,
and inspecting the Company’s daily operations and
management, etc. The Board of Supervisors is of the view
that Directors and senior management have diligently
performed their duties and conscientiously implemented
the Company's decisions, and is not aware of any acts
in violation of laws and regulations or detrimental to the
interests of the Company.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
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Supervising the Operations of the
Company

In 2023, the members of the Board of Supervisors
continued to supervise the operation of the Company by
attending Board meetings and other various important
meetings, reviewing reports on special projects and
conducting on-site inspections and interviews. The Board
of Supervisors is of the view that the decision-making
procedures of the general meeting of the Company
and the Board are legal and that the Board and the
management team of the Company have faithfully and
effectively fulfilled the resolutions of the general meeting
in compliance with relevant provisions of laws, regulations
and the Articles of Association, and is not aware of any
actions in violation of laws, regulations and Articles of
Association or detrimental to the interest of the Company
when Directors and senior management performing their
duties.

In 2023, the Board of Supervisors of the Company
strengthened its tour of inspection of each business unit,
and gave a warning to the areas with unsatisfactory
investigation results on employee integrity and prominent
internal control risks in some business units during on-site
visits, interviews, seminars and trainings, urging relevant
management personnel to be more attentive to their
duties, improve internal control construction, and prevent
the exposures to career limits breakdown; and promoted
the establishment of integrity systems for all business units
to create an honest working environment.

INDEPENDENT OPINIONS ON CERTAIN
MATTERS OF THE COMPANY

1.

Compliance of the Company’s
Operations with the Law

The Board of Supervisors believes that the Company has
been able to operate under the law and standardize its
management, and the operating results are objective and
authentic. The Company’s internal control management
has been gradually improved, and a relatively sound
and comprehensive internal control system has been
established to enable effective risk identification and
control, ensure the normal and orderly operation of each
business of the Company, and ensure the safety and
integrity of the Company’s capital assets. The Directors
and senior management of the Company have been able
to carefully exercise their functions and powers pursuant
to relevant laws and regulations, and have safeguarded
the legitimate rights and interests of the Company and
the interests of shareholders.
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Inspection of the Company’s Financial
Position

The Board of Supervisors carefully supervised, inspected
and audited the financial position, financial management
and operating results of the Company during the
Reporting Period, and reviewed the Group’s audited
financial report and other financial information for the
year ended December 31, 2023. The Board of Supervisors
is of the view that the audited report gives a truthful,
accurate and complete reflection of the operating results
and financial position of the Company, without any false
records, misleading statements or material omissions.

Performance Evaluation of Directors
and Senior Management

Through the evaluation of the performance of duties
by the Directors and senior management, the Board
of Supervisors believes that the Directors and senior
management of the Company have been law-abiding,
dutiful, pragmatic and dedicated and have adopted a
legal decision-making process, effectively safeguarding the
interests of the Company and its shareholders.

Continuing Connected Transactions

In 2023, the continuing connected transactions of the
Company were carried out in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group on normal or better
commercial terms and under the relevant agreements
governing such transactions and the terms are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
as a whole. The consideration, voting, disclosure and
performance in connection with the continuing connected
transactions were compliant with the relevant provisions
of laws, regulations and the Articles of Association.

Onewo Inc.

Board of Supervisors
April 18, 2024
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to implementing high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders of the Company and enhance the corporate value
as well as the responsibility commitments.

The Group is fully aware of the importance of the Board of
Directors in providing targeted guidance for the Group's business
and ensuring the operational transparency and accountability
system. The Board of Directors fully understands that good
corporate governance is key to leading the Group to success and
enhancing Shareholders’ value. Therefore, the Board of Directors
has elaborated a series of corporate governance policies and
systems with the aim of fully protecting Shareholders’ interests
and continuously enhancing corporate value. At the same time,
all Directors shall adhere to the principle of impartiality, lead by
example and actively promote and practice the corporate culture
to jointly facilitate the steady development of the Group.

The Company has adopted the CG Code as its own code of
corporate governance, and to the knowledge of the Directors,
the Company has complied with all applicable code provisions
set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended December
31, 2023 and as of the Latest Practicable Date, save as disclosed
below.

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. Zhu Baoquan is the
chairman of our Board and the general manager of our Company
and the roles of Mr. Zhu Baoquan have not been separate as
required under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code.
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In view of the fact that Mr. Zhu Baoquan has been managing
and operating the Company as the Chairman, an executive
Director and the general manager of the Company since February
2011, the Board believes that Mr. Zhu Baoquan should continue
to assume the responsibilities of the general manager of the
Company as this arrangement will improve the efficiency of the
Group’s decision-making and execution process, and provide
strong and consistent leadership to the Group. Further, the
Company has put in place an appropriate check-and-balance
mechanism through the Board and the independent non-
executive Directors. In light of the above, the Board considers
that the deviation from code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code is
appropriate in the circumstances of the Company. The Board will
review the current structure from time to time and will make any
necessary arrangement as appropriate.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, Mr. Zhu Baoquan,
Chairman of the Board, held a meeting (without other Directors’
attendance) with Independent non-executive Directors to discuss
the Group's strategy and future development direction. At the
same time, Mr. Zhu Baoquan encouraged all Directors to actively
express their opinions on the Group’s operation and development
and matters of concern to the Group, to ensure that appropriate
steps were taken to effectively communicate with Shareholders,
to ensure that Shareholders’ views could be delivered to the
entire Board of Directors, and to take appropriate steps to ensure
that Shareholders could measure the application of relevant
corporate governance principles.

Directors use their best endeavors to procure the Company to
continue to comply with the CG Code.
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INDUCTION TRAINING AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Group provides necessary induction training information and
data to ensure that each Director has a full understanding of the
operations and business of the Group and his/her responsibilities
in accordance with the relevant regulations, statutes, laws and
rules. Moreover, the Group organizes seminars regularly to
provide Directors with the latest development and changes of
Listing Rules and other relevant laws and regulations in a timely
manner. Meanwhile, we also regularly provide the updates
on the performance, positions, and prospects of the Group to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to better perform
their duties. These measures aim at ensuring that the Directors
are well-informed and contribute to the steady development of
the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has provided the
training material for Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to Directors and management of the Company.

Name of Directors EEnE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zhu Baoquan KREEAE
Mr. He Shuhua fAIREEESE
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Wang Wenijin FX&EE
Mr. Zhang Xu SRS A&
Mr. Sun Jia RerE
Mr. Zhou Qi A&kt
Mr. Yao Jinbo PSR
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Ms. Law Elizabeth BEFw+
Mr. Chen Yuyu PREFHE
Mr. Shen Haipeng NG ST
Mr. Song Yunfeng RERTE
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THE BOARD

1.

Responsibilities

The Board is the core decision-making organization
of the Company and assumes the responsibilities
for the leadership and control of the Group, and
supervising and approval of financial performance,
strategic development objectives and major business
decisions. Meanwhile, the Board has delegated to the
management the responsibilities for the Group’s daily
operations and business management according to the
Board’s instructions. The Board has established three
special committees, namely the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
(together, the “Board Committees”), and has delegated
to the Board Committees various duties to improve
governance efficiency. All the Board Committees perform
their distinct roles in accordance with their respective
terms of reference and jointly facilitate the steady
development of the Group.

The Board should also establish the Company’s purpose,
values and strategy, and satisfy itself that these and the
Company’s culture are aligned. All Directors shall act
with integrity, lead by example and be committed to
promoting the desired culture. Such culture should instil
and continually reinforce across the enterprise the values
of acting lawfully, ethically and responsibly.

All Directors shall always adhere to the principle of good
faith, strictly comply with applicable laws and regulations
to ensure that all decisions and actions are in the best
interests of the Group and Shareholders.

Under the leadership and supervision of the general
manager, the senior management of the Company is
responsible for the coordination of the daily operation
and management, and the smooth operation of
various functions. The Board gives clear direction and
requirements to the senior management by reviewing the
annual key work and other issues. At the same time, the
Board delegates to the management to make decisions
independently on daily business operation and ensure
compliance within the framework of established strategies
and instructions.
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The Board retains its final decision-making power on all
major matters of the Company, including the approval and
supervision of corporate governance and policy matters,
planning of overall strategies and budgets, establishment
and improvement of risk management and internal control
systems, approval of major transactions involving potential
conflicts of interest, review and analysis of financial data,
appointment of Directors and other material financial and
operational decisions. Through these measures, the Board
ensures that the Group is able to continuously grow on a
sound basis and create long-term value for shareholders.

Board Composition
Executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Baoquan
Mr. He Shuhua

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Wenjin
Mr. Zhang Xu
Mr. Sun Jia

Mr. Zhou Qi

Mr. Yao Jinbo

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Law Elizabeth
Mr. Chen Yuyu

Mr. Shen Haipeng
Mr. Song Yunfeng
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There is no material financial, business, family or other
relationship between any members of the Board. The
biographies of the Directors are set out under the section
headed “Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management”
in this annual report. All the Directors, including the
independent non-executive Directors, bring a wide
spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. The independent non-executive
Directors are invited to serve on the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company.

The Company has complied with Rule 3.10 and Rule 3.10A
of the Listing Rules, which relates to the appointment
of independent non-executive Directors representing at
least one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The Board has
assessed their independence and concluded that all the
independent non-executive Directors are considered to be
independent pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a service contract with the Company for a term of three
years.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.
Mr. Zhu Baoquan is the chairman of our Board and the
general manager of our Company and the roles of Mr.
Zhu Baoquan have not been separate as required under
code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code.

In view of the fact that Mr. Zhu Baoquan has been
managing and operating the Group as the Chairman,
an executive Director and the general manager of the
Company since February 2011, the Board believes
that Mr. Zhu Baoquan should continue to assume the
responsibilities of the general manager of the Group
as this arrangement will improve the efficiency of the
Group's decision-making and execution process, and
provide strong and consistent leadership to the Group.
Further, the Company has put in place an appropriate
check-and-balance mechanism through the Board and
the independent non-executive Directors. In light of the
above, the Board considers that the deviation from code
provision C.2.1 of the CG Code is appropriate in the
circumstances of the Company. The Board will review the
current structure from time to time and will make any
necessary arrangement as appropriate.
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Board Meetings

Code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code prescribes that
at least four regular Board meetings should be held in
each year at approximately quarterly intervals with active
participation of majority of directors, either in person or
through electronic means of communication.

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board
meetings regularly. Notices of not less than 14 days are
given of all regular Board meetings to provide all Directors
with the opportunity to attend and include matters in the
agenda. For other committee meetings, a notice will be
given 3 days prior to the meeting. When the Directors or
committee members are unable to attend a meeting, they
are advised of the matters to be discussed and given an
opportunity to make their views known to the chairman
prior to the meeting.

Minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings
are recorded in detail and include the matters considered
by the Board and the committees and the decisions
reached, including any concerns raised by the Directors.
Draft minutes of each Board meeting and committee
meeting are sent to the Directors within a reasonable time
after the date on which the meeting is held, which allows
enough time for them to request amendments.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company HZE2023F12A831HIEFE - AR
convened 5 Board meetings, 1 annual general meeting RIEARMSAEESEH 1 AREB
and 1 extraordinary general meeting. All Directors FRERIABEERREAE - TA=
attended in person (including on-site attendance and ENHY (RS HEHEEG FRE
online remote attendance) or appointed other Directors HE)SETXTHMWEELFAFESE
as his/her representative to attend Board meetings of FEeex [ KIFIZZeZEEH
the year. The table below sets forth the details of the FHENS

attendance of Directors at these meetings in person:

Number of meetings
attended in person/held
during the Director’s
term of office’

EEANTHRABELE
BTEBNRE
Extraordinary
Annual General General
Name of Directors Board Meetings Meeting Meeting
EEnR Ex=ges REBERE MREFIR R AR
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Zhu Baoquan KREEAE 5/5 171 171
Mr. He Shuhua L E 5/5 11 01
Non-executive Directors JEHTESE
Mr. Wang Wenjin EXEEE 5/5 0/1 0/1
Mr. Zhang Xu SRS A 5/5 0/1 0/1
Mr. Sun Jia REEE 5/5 0/1 0/1
Mr. Zhou Qi A&HxEE 5/5 0/1 11
Mr. Yao Jinbo RS e 4/5 0/1 0/1
Independent non- BIYEHTES
executive Directors
Ms. Law Elizabeth BAEXL 5/5 1/1 11
Mr. Chen Yuyu BREFEAE 4/5 0/1 0/1
Mr. Shen Haipeng ENE ST 2/5 0/1 0/1
Mr. Song Yunfeng REETE 5/5 1/1 11
Note 1. The following Directors were unable to attend the #1: ARKERERA G LWTEFREESHER
Annual General Meeting/Extraordinary General Meeting RAEXRE GHEHRRAE -

in person due to business engagements.
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The combination of executive Directors and non-
executive Directors in the Board of Directors is balanced,
so that the Board of Directors maintains independence
and can make effective independent judgments. The
functions of the non-executive Directors mainly include:
(i) actively participating in Board meetings to bring
independent opinions and suggestions on core resolutions
such as strategy making, policy implementation, the
Company’'s performance assessment, accountability
system optimization, resource allocation improvement,
key appointments and standards of conduct compliance,
(ii) playing a key role of guiding and coordinating where
potential scenarios of interest conflict arise; (iii) serving
as members of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee as and when
necessary, to provide professional support and supervision
on the work of each committee; and (iv) scrutinizing the
Group's actual operation to ensure its consistency with
agreed corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the
Company’s performance reporting.

Meanwhile, to ensure the fairness and transparency of
the Board’s decision-making, when there is a Director
who is connected to companies involved in a resolution
of the Board meeting and has a material interest in a
resolution or there are other abstention circumstances
stipulated by laws, such Director shall take the initiative
to abstain from voting on the resolution and shall not
exercise the voting rights on behalf of other Directors.
When calculating the quorum of Directors present at the
meeting, such Director shall not be counted. The fairness
and legality of resolution is so guaranteed. Implementation
of such measures may help to maintain the authority
and credibility of the Board and promote the healthy
development of the Group.

ZEREMBRBRNDERRE 202355
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established the Audit Committee, the

Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. Each

of these committees has specific written terms of reference

which clarifies their powers and duties. The chairpersons of these

committees will report their findings and recommendations to

the Board after each meeting.

1.

Audit Committee

The Board has established an audit committee in
compliance with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the Listing Rules
and code provision D.3 of the CG Code, and has adopted
corresponding written terms of reference. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to supervise and
evaluate the external and internal audit process, review the
Company's financial reports and express opinions on them,
and coordinate communication between management,
internal audit department, relevant departments and
external audit agencies. The Audit Committee currently
consists of one non-executive Director (namely Mr. Wang
Wenjin) and two independent non-executive Directors
(namely Ms. Law Elizabeth and Mr. Chen Yuyu). The Audit
Committee is currently chaired by Ms. Law Elizabeth, who
possesses suitable professional qualifications.

EXZEE

ARAERIBIERT  FHERRRIE
LEER - FEEARRABEEEMAR
B OEWIAERRRRE - XS EARN
TREREREEAEESWE LT RS
3 -

1. BIZEE®

EEgOREBECEMRADE321ER
F3. 22 R(EEEATR) TRE
D3GRUENLZEE  WEEMNE
HMBERLE  FAREENTIRRE
REBREIIBEFITIE AEE
BRFHEABESLE AEEHA
NP BREAUHEERER - B8
HAEEEE - ABEPE AT R ABR A
FIERSNERRAT HIBR BB - BAt R B
SEAMBE—BFATEST (BIEXE
FE)  RMBBIMIENITES (AE
BERZXTHEREFILE) AKX - FSF
ZEeHRBBEEILTHETRE -
HBABEEEXRER -
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The Audit Committee convened 2 meetings during the RN EHRE - B8 2dM2AE
Reporting Period to review the annual financial results and U RIEBEZE20225F12 A31
reports in respect of the year ended December 31, 2022 BIEFFENTFEMEESEMNRE KE
and the interim financial results and report in respect of Z£2023F6 A30H IE/N1E AR AR EREF
the six months ended June 30, 2023, respectively, as well FEEBENERE - ANREBETEER -
as significant issues on the financial reporting, operational BIENARITHNEARAZBATMES
and compliance controls, and reported the results of the LEBDBRIER - TREIZS2E
review to the Board of Directors. The table below sets M HEE

forth the details of the attendance at these meetings:

Number of meetings attended/

Name of committee held during the Director’s term

member of office

EEREHRLE

EEERENR BOSENRHY

Ms. Law Elizabeth (Chairperson) BEERZLT(F/E) 2/2
Mr. Wang Wenjin EFX&EE 2/2
Mr. Chen Yuyu PREFHE 2/2
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2023 and confirmed that it has complied
all applicable accounting principles, standards and
requirements, and made sufficient disclosures. The
Audit Committee has also discussed the matters of
audit and financial reporting. The Audit Committee
has also reviewed the significant issues on the financial
reporting, compliance procedures, internal control and
risk management systems and connected transactions, and
has discussed with the auditor of the Company about the
tasks it had performed.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the remuneration
of the auditor for the year ended December 31, 2023
and has recommended the Board to re-appoint Ernst
& Young as the auditor of the Company for the year
ending December 31, 2024, subject to the approval by
Shareholders at the annual general meeting.

The duties and priorities of the Audit Committee during
the relevant period included, among others, the oversight
of the Company’s financial reporting system and internal
risk management and control system, monitoring the
integrity of the preparation of the Group’s financial
information (including interim and annual results of the
Company), reviewing the Group's financial and accounting
policies and practices and monitoring the effectiveness
of the internal audit function. The Audit Committee also
supervises and manages the relationship with the Group's
external auditor, which covers reviewing and monitoring
the external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process conducted in
accordance with applicable standards.

B ZBeCENASEHE20235F
12A3MALEFENEERERAYH
HR o WHERHECETHAERSR
RAI - ERIRRE - YEFHFTD H
E B RBEENCABEZNMBE
BEFETHR - BFREENCHE
BIERMISIER AREF - AEE
7 REREERGELAEIZFNEKR
SN NNCIE Y - Gl R RS
B TAE ©

B ZESEBEHEZE2023F12 A
MBI FERBAN SR - WEED
EeENEALRKSAMEBFIAR
NAEIHE2024F 12 A31BIEFER
ZEA  MASFKRERREBEFRS
EBLAER - FAIEE -

EZEeNARSEETORE R
TETHERE (EFERE)EBAR
AR RS B R kAR R EE M
EREG ERAKERHEVBEEN
(BREARRNTHEE2FEE) N5T
Bt BHARENMEESEFTBRR
MIEG - A RERABEZBENE
Mt - BAZEENEBERERAR
SEIERBMNEER  BERA R
ERSNEZ B ) B 1 BRI
ARREREANETHNEREFES
B e
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2. Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a remuneration committee in
compliance with Rules 3.25 and 3.26 of the Listing Rules
and code provisions E.1.1 to E.1.5 of the CG Code, and
has adopted corresponding written terms of reference. The
primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
are to review and make recommendations to the Board
regarding the annual performance of our Directors and
senior management, the terms of remuneration packages,
bonuses and other compensation payable to our Directors
and senior management, and other matters authorized by
the Board. The Remuneration Committee currently consists
of one executive Director (namely Mr. Zhu Baoquan) and
two independent non-executive Directors (namely Mr.
Shen Haipeng and Mr. Song Yunfeng). The Remuneration
Committee is currently chaired by Mr. Song Yunfeng.

The Remuneration Committee convened 1 meeting during
the Reporting Period. The table below sets forth the
details of the attendance at these meetings:

Name of committee

member
ZEEREMA
Mr. Shen Haipeng (Chairperson) RBIE R E (F/E)
Mr. Zhu Baoquan NN
Mr. Song Yunfeng RESEEE

EMEEEMBRBRNDERRF 202355

FMEES

B2 BREB(LETRANDE325ER
F3.26UAR(EEESFE]) SFA]
FENVVEEFENSIERIFMER
2 WEHENEEBESE - FE
BEEgNTIEREARESZLAAER
ENFREES ENESEaREE
BRI BN B  TEAL M H b TREN A 15
FALRESEERENEMBEEETS
BYRESSRHEZ FWNEES
MR —BRTES (RREEE)
NMMEBBILIFENTES (BILEEEE
AEEREREE)EN - FHEES
MEFARESLEREESE ©

RBREME  FHEESEAMIRE
& PREVIZFEZNLFFS

Number of meetings
attended/held during

the Director’s term of office
EERTEHRLEE
BTEBNRH™
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The duties and priorities of the Remuneration Committee
during the Reporting Period include the following, among
others: considering the remuneration packages of the
Company'’s Directors, Supervisors and senior management
and submitting them and making recommendations
to the Board; approving the terms of the executive
Directors’ service contracts, and reviewing and approving
material matters relating to share schemes during the
financial year; considering the Terms of Reference of the
Remuneration and Evaluation Committee and proposing
amendments and submitting them to the Board for
approval; as well as considering the appraisal criteria,
performance evaluation procedures, remuneration and
rewards and punishment policies for Directors, Supervisors
and senior management members. The Remuneration
Committee may also seek independent professional advice
if necessary.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the
Remuneration Committee has reviewed and approved
the matters concerning allowances of the senior
management and submitted them to the Board for
further consideration. In the meantime, the Remuneration
Committee received briefings from the management on
the remuneration management system of the Company,
and were able to provide constructive opinions on
improving the management system of the Company.

FMEZE e BEHRBITHORE
REBZBTERE (EPEE)ATH
B BBRARAESE  EERERE
BEAEBNFHEBIRIMNEESZ
HREZE HERTEFRHAOK
RARERN - #HERSTFERNER
BRIDETENEAFE  EXH(HFME
“EZEE THRARDIRLETZZYL
RBEFTSRIEFTSHE - AR
REF EENSREEABEZEN
R EUEIERF - B R RN
e HMEEeMAT RN A Z K
VEXRER -

REZE2023F12A31HIEFER -
FMZEeCBHRILEEEREN
ERRER  TRXEZTCE—TE
FoRAK FHNZECRENMEEERE
BARREHNEERANER Y
EEANAEEREBRIBHERMER
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Remuneration of Directors and senior management

Directors and members of senior management receive
remuneration from the Company in the form of salaries,
bonuses and other benefits in kind, such as contributions
to pension schemes.

In order to better reflect the contribution of the
Directors and Supervisors of the Company and the
value the Directors and Supervisors have created for
the Shareholders, and to attract and retain outstanding
individuals with rich professional experience, extensive
industry reputation and international vision to serve
as the Directors and Supervisors, the remuneration
of the Directors and Supervisors working full-time in
the Company was determined in accordance with the
remuneration system of the Company and their work
performance during the Reporting Period.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the expenses
incurred by the Company for Director’'s remuneration
(including fees, salaries, contributions to pension schemes
and social welfare, discretionary bonuses, housing and
other allowances, and other benefits in kind) were
approximately RMB11.7 million.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the expenses
incurred by the Group for the remuneration of the five
highest paid individuals (including Directors), which
included fees, salaries, contributions to pension schemes
and social welfare, discretionary bonuses, housing and
other allowances, and other benefits in kind, were
approximately RMB22.6 million.

ZEREMBRBRNDERRE 202355
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For the year ended December 31, 2023, a total of four
Directors, including Mr. Wang Wenjin, Mr. Zhang Xu,
Mr. Sun Jia, and Mr. Zhou Qi, confirmed their waivers of
Director's remuneration by submitting the “Confirmation
Letter of Voluntary Waiver of Director’'s Remuneration”
to the Company. Mr. Zhu Baoquan and Mr. He Shuhua
as Directors working full-time at the Company, do not
receive Director’'s remuneration, but receive remuneration
according to the Company’s remuneration system and
work performance. The Board will review and determine
the salaries and remuneration packages of Directors and
senior management, and take the recommendations and
advice from the Remuneration Committee on board. The
Remuneration Committee will consider salaries paid by
comparable companies, the time committed by Directors
and their duties, as well as the Group's performance. No
payment of remuneration was made by the Group to any
of our Directors or Supervisors as salaries to induce them
to join or to join the Group or as compensation for loss of
office during the Reporting Period. The remuneration plan
of Directors for this year will be proposed at the general
meeting of the Company for further approval.

HZE2023F12A831HIEFE » X
CEE RBES BRES A
DEETHA4ZEETRBAMRAER
[EFENEZEEME ORI - A
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For further details of Directors’ remuneration and data
about the highest paid individuals for the year ended
December 31, 2023, please refer to notes 9 and 10 in
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In addition, in accordance with code provision E.1.5 of the
CG Code, the annual remuneration ranges for the senior
management members (other than Directors) during the
year ended December 31, 2023 are as follows:

Remuneration range

N E

HKD3 million to HKD3.5 million
HKD3.5 million to HKD4 million
HKD4 million to HKD4.5 million

BEIEEITE3ISES
BEISHETLE4IRE
BEARBILE4SEE

BREEZE2023F12A31BILFESE
EHMEAE—TFHE  UERESHFA
THER  F2EaHMBHREME
FIFIEES ~ 10 ©

BEAN - BIBCREE VA ST A SFRIE
FENSE EREEREKRE (BRES
4N RELZE2023F12 A31 B IEFER
FEFMEERDT

Head count

AB

[T

Nomination Committee

The Board has established a nomination committee in
compliance with code provision B.3 of the CG Code, and
has adopted corresponding written terms of reference.
The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board regarding the
appointment of Directors and senior management, the
related criteria and procedures of the appointment and
other matters authorized by the Board. The Nomination
Committee currently consists of one executive Director
(Mr. Zhu Baoquan) and two independent non-executive
Directors (Mr. Song Yunfeng and Mr. Chen Yuyu). The
Nomination Committee is currently chaired by Mr. Zhu
Baoquan.

ZEREMBRBRNDERRE 202355
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The Nomination Committee convened 1 meeting to receive
and review The Performance Report of the Independent
Directors for 2022 during the Reporting Period. The table

R EHRE  REZEedMIAE
2 ERLEHQIN2EEBVES
BERE)  TREFZEHNOHEF

below sets forth the details of the attendance of the 15 :
meeting:
Number of meetings
Name of committee attended/held during
member the Director’s term of office
EEREHRALE
EEERENE BTEBNRH™
Mr. Zhu Baoquan (Chairperson) KRB AE (FE) 1/1
Mr. Song Yunfeng RNEBKE 1/1
Mr. Chen Yuyu PREFHE 1/1
Board diversity policy BEezgelE

The Company regards the board diversity policy as a key
driver of sustainable development. In order to enhance
the operational efficiency of the Board and to maintain
an excellent standard of corporate governance, the
Company has actively implemented a board diversity
policy which clearly sets out the approach to achieve and
maintain diversity in our Board. Pursuant to this policy,
selection of Board candidates will take into account a
wide range of diversity factors, such as gender, age,
cultural and educational background, industry experience,
technical capabilities, professional qualifications and
skills, knowledge and length of service, etc. We will also
fully consider the Group's unique business model and
special needs. When finalizing Director candidates, the
candidates’ advantages and the value that they can bring
to our Board will be our primary consideration. We are
committed to building a diverse, efficient and dynamic
Board that will provide strong support for the long-term
development of the Group through these initiatives.

ARBIKBEZTENZ TEBRRSHE
BABEERNEZERS N - RET
EXENEFRRYUFRF[ELVNER
BIRKE - RRRBEBRETEEFSS
TUEESR - BRI T BEIRAMNRIFE
EEEZTBRT - BIBE—BCR -
BMERBREZTEREAR 5K
BEBEZREZ TR E - WEH - F
B XERBEER  TELR &
Mgy - EXREMEREE - MRER
B BRBFRE AERENEEAE
BRESOEBEANFERRK - £&K
IRETERREAR - RAKARE
ARBENERETEFRNEER
TBEZEERE - BBE—RIMNE
B BAPZIRBEE-—EZTE &
MAFMENNESTE  RAKEN
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The Board has reviewed and considered the implementation EE2CRNIERALTILRENE
of the diversity policy to be effective. The diversity policy MBBEN - LTt RELAEEWR  HE
has been well implemented as there are both female and BEERMEATRITERED &R
male Directors from a diverse age group with experience METEFRANNDZERBEME
from different industries and sectors. The Directors have a = ESEEHEHESNMB R -

balanced mix of knowledge and skills.

An analysis of the Board’s current composition based on BREFAGENERHESTSEATANX
the measurable objectives is set out below: B AT -
1. Gender 1. 5
Gender group Male Female
1 B 45 B B pogi3

Number of Directors

BEAH 10 1
2. Age 2. FR
50 and
below 51-55 55-60 Above 60
Age group FE 4R 508 L T 51-557%% 55-605%  60B%FMA Lt
Number of Directors BEAH 6 2 2 1
3. Length of service of Directors 3- EHERBER
Less than More than

1year 1-3 years 3-10 years 10 years
Length of service PR 7% 5 IR PRA1E 1-3%F 3-10F  KR10%F

Number of Directors FEAH 0 4 6 1
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Professional qualifications and industry

experience

Directors

Mr. Zhu Baoguan

Mr. He Shuhua

=

Mr.

=

Wang Wenjin

Mr.

=

Zhang Xu

Mr. Sun Jia

Mr. Zhou Qi

Mr. Yao Jinbo

=

Ms. Law Elizabeth

n

Mr.

=

Chen Yuyu

Mr.

=

Shen Haipeng

Mr.

=

Song Yunfeng

Bz

Ar2EE

fMEERL

Ixekt

G ib i

BaiE

80 Y b

BEXLL

REFEE

oy

Role

Executive
Director

Executive
Director

Non-executive
Director

Non-executive
Director

Non-executive
Director

Non-executive
Director
Non-executive
Director
Independent
non-executive
Directors
Independent
non-executive
Directors
Independent
non-executive
Directors
Independent
non-executive
Directors
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At

9178

BIES

FHTES

FUTES

FUTER

FHITES

FHITES

BAIFHIT
E=x

BT
B

B AT
E=x

BT
2

4. HEXERRITEER

Professional
qualifications and
industry experience BEERRITELR
MEER  IBEE-
TEER KRB

BREf

Property management, business
administration, corporate
governance, investment and
financing, capital operation

Property management, business ~ ¥IXER - THER -

administration, corporate rEER
governance

Real estate development and sales, FEiiEFIZEHKE -
investment and financing, capital ~ R&% « ERE(E
operation, financial accounting B

Real estate development and sales, FEHERMEHEHFE -

investment and financing, capital ~ &g& « BARE(E
operation

Real estate development and sales,
investment and financing, capital
operation

Investment and financing, capital
operation

Information technology, investment £S5 fi7 - % E1E
and financing

Expert in the financial accounting
field

FHERZEHEE
RRE  EXER

BRE  AANEME

M et EEER

Expert in the economics field

Expert in the business management H¥EEEHER

field

Expert in the legal field EREHER
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The Company's Board members have a balanced
mix of knowledge and skills, covering a number of
key areas such as overall management and strategic
development, human resources management,
information technology, accounting and financial
management, risk management and corporate
governance. The Directors also have a wide range
of educational backgrounds, including economics,
business administration and accounting and
other majors. In addition, the Board has three
independent non-executive Directors with different
industry backgrounds, representing one-third of
the members of our Board, providing a diverse
perspective on the Board's decision-making.
Furthermore, the Board also has one female
Director, reflecting the Company’s active efforts in
gender equality.

In combination with the current business model,
specific needs and the diverse backgrounds of
the Directors, the composition of the Board is
fully in line with the requirements of the Board
diversity policy. In order to ensure the continued
and effective implementation of the Board
diversity policy, the Nomination Committee will
be responsible for monitoring and evaluating the
implementation of the policy on an annual basis.
When necessary, the Nomination Committee will
make recommendations to the Board to ensure
that the composition of the Board is balanced
and diverse. At the same time, the Company will
disclose the implementation of the Board diversity
policy in the Corporate Governance Report on
an annual basis to enhance transparency and
accountability.

Through these initiatives, the Company is
committed to building a board of directors with
comprehensive knowledge, complementary skills
and diverse backgrounds to drive the sustainable
development of the Group and create greater value
for Shareholders and other stakeholders.

MRBRBRDER AT 202355
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set
out in code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code. Pursuant to code provision B.1.4 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the Company has formulated internal
policies and mechanisms (including but not limited
to the Articles of Association, Directors’ Nomination
Policy, Terms of Reference of the Remuneration and
Nomination Committees) to ensure that the Board has
access to independent views and opinions. These policies
and mechanisms cover the Company’s selection criteria,
election and appointment procedures for Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors), the
recusal mechanism for Directors to vote on relevant
proposals to be considered by the Board, and the Directors
being entitled to seek independent professional advice
according to the Company’s policies to perform their
duties when necessary. In addition, the Board comprises
four independent non-executive Directors, who play
important roles in the Board by virtue of their independent
background, judgment and views. The Company will
review the implementation and effectiveness of the above
mechanisms annually to ensure that the Board has access
to independent views and opinions.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Board held
1 meeting to review the corporate governance policies and
practices of the Company, the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company, the policies and practices
of the Group in compliance with laws and regulations, the
compliance of Model Code, and the compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code by the Group.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE
FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as its code for dealing
in securities in the Company by the Directors, Supervisors and
related employees. The Directors and Supervisors have confirmed
their compliance with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended December 31, 2023 and up
to the Latest Practicable Date. During the Reporting Period, no
incident of non-compliance of the Model Code by the employees
was noted by the Company.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the fees paid/payable to
the external auditor of the Company in respect of audit services
and non-audit services are set out as follows:
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For the year ended
December 31,

2023
BZ2023F
12A318LEE
RMB million
AR¥BETT
Audit and related services FExREE R
Annual audit and other services FEEZIRTE R H AR 5.8
Non-audit services BRI 2.9

BNEERMERBRMOERRF 2023FFH




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

THE RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT OF THE
DIRECTORS ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The responsibility statement of the Directors on financial
statements below shall be read in conjunction with that of the
auditor included in the independent auditor’s report in this
annual report, while both statements shall be comprehended
separately.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for each financial year that give a true
reflection of the operating results of the Company. To the
knowledge of the Directors, during the Reporting Period, there
were no material events or circumstances which would have a
material adverse effect on the operations of the Company as a
going concern.

The Directors are aware of their responsibility for preparing all
data and statements contained in the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended December
31, 2023 that give true and fair opinions on the position,
performance and cash flows of the Company for the relevant
period. The Directors believe that the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended December 31,
2023 have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
accounting standards and regulations and the amounts reflect
the best estimates and reasonable, informed and prudent
judgment of the Board of Directors and management. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly,
the Directors have prepared the financial statements of the
Company on a going concern basis. The statements of the
auditor’s responsibility for reporting the consolidated financial
statements of the Company are set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Company has formulated its internal control management
system in accordance with the Listing Rules, the Enterprise
Internal Control Regulatory Systems and the COSO Internal
Control — Integrated Framework to better improve the
governance structure of the Group, strengthen and standardize
the internal control and management, guarantee the legitimacy
and compliance of the Group’s operation and management,
the safety of capital and assets, the authenticity and integrity of
financial reports and relevant information, improve operational
efficiency and effectiveness, and respond to the changes in
the external environment so as to facilitate the realization
of development strategies. The Group's internal control is a
process implemented by the management and all employees of
the Company to achieve control objectives. It is closely aligned
with strategic objectives, adapts to changes and fully identifies
risks, and has a certain level of management. The Company has
established a self-circulation closed-loop management supervision
mechanism, accurately attributing to responsible persons at
all levels and tracking improvement management. It provides
training and consultation for the Company’s internal control
activities, supports process control improvement, organizes self-
inspection and overall internal control assessments.

The Board is responsible for the establishment, improvement
and effective implementation of the Company’s internal control
and risk management functions to ensure that the Group
establishes and maintains effective risk management and
internal control systems, covering all key monitoring aspects
of the Group, including financial, operational and compliance
monitoring, and to continuously monitor the Group’s overall risks
(including environmental, social and governance risks), and the
scope, quality and procedures of risk management and internal
monitoring. During the Reporting Period, the Board reviewed the
risk management and internal monitoring systems. The scope of
the review covers, among other things:
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the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training courses received by the staff and
budgets regarding the Group’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions, as well as
environmental, social and governance performance and
reporting;

the changes in the nature and extent of significant
risks (including environmental, social and governance
risks) since the last review, as well as the Group's ability
to respond to changes in its business and external
environment;

the scope and quality of the management’s ongoing
monitoring of risks (including environmental, social and
governance risks) and risk management and internal
control systems, the work and effectiveness of the
internal audit function and the assurance provided by the
management;

the extent and frequency of communication of monitoring
results to the Board to enable the Board to assess the
status of the Group's controls and the effectiveness of risk
management;

any material monitoring failures occurred or significant
monitoring weaknesses identified at any time during the
review period, as well as the extent to which they have
resulted in unforeseen outcomes or contingencies that
have had, could have had, or may in the future have, a
material impact on the financial performance or condition
of the Group; and

the effectiveness of the procedures relating to financial
reporting and compliance with statutory and regulatory
requirements.

The Board considered such systems to be adequate and effective,

with no material monitoring failures occurred or significant

monitoring weaknesses identified. Such systems are designed

to manage rather than to eliminate the risk of failure to achieve

business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not

absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)
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The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the design
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
on an ongoing basis, directing and coordinating internal audits
and other related matters, etc. It also evaluates the effectiveness
of the Group's risk management and internal monitoring by
reviewing the inspection report on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control issued by the Group annually.

The Supervisory Committee oversees the establishment and
implementation of internal controls by the Board.

The management is responsible for organizing and leading the
day-to-day operation of the internal controls of the Group.

The Risk Management and Internal Control Report for the
current year has been submitted to the Audit Committee for
consideration and reviewed by the Board through the Audit
Committee.

In accordance with the criteria for identifying internal control
defects in financial reporting and non-financial reporting as
set out in the Risk Management and Internal Control Report,
the Board considers that there were no material or significant
internal control defects in the Group during the Reporting Period.
As of December 31,
internal control systems are generally sound, and no deficiencies

2023, the Group's risk management and

and anomalies that have a significant impact on corporate
governance, operation management and development have been
identified.

The Board also confirms that the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems have sufficient professional and
experienced staff in resources, accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions, and the training courses received by
the staff and the relevant budgets are sufficient.
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Business Ethics

The Group has always adhered to the “Positivity” corporate
culture. During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group
had adopted the Whistle-blowing Policy to provide channels and
guidelines for reporting possible irregularities, malpractice, and
corruption relating to the matters of the Group and guaranteed
to the whistleblower or entity (whistleblower) that the Group
would protect whistleblowers from dismissal, persecution or any
form of retaliation for making any true and sincere reports under
the Policy.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group had
adopted the Anti-Corruption Policy to ensure that relevant
employees maintain simplicity, openness and transparency in
all business transactions, and establish a clean and win-win
cooperative relationship with partners.

Information Disclosure

In order to regulate the Company’s information disclosure
practices, strengthen the management of information disclosure
matters and protect the legitimate interests of investors, the
Company has formulated the Information Disclosure System in
accordance with the Listing Rules, the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong
(“SFC"”) and other applicable laws and regulations, in which it
sets out the procedures for the timely processing and release of
the Company’s periodic reports (including annual and interim
reports), interim reports (announcements and disclosures other
than periodic reports made by the Company in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations, including notifiable
transactions, inside information, etc.), and the management
of information disclosure to keep stakeholders informed of
the Group’'s latest position. The Board regularly reviews the
framework and its effectiveness.
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Internal Audit

The Board is responsible for the establishment, improvement and
effective implementation of the Company’s internal control and
risk management functions. The Audit Committee is established
under the Board, which is committed to overseeing the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group on an
ongoing basis, assessing the effective implementation of internal
controls, and guiding and coordinating internal audit and other
related matters. Meanwhile, the Supervisory Committee is
responsible for overseeing the establishment and implementation
of internal controls by the Board, so as to ensure that various
measures are effectively implemented. The management is
responsible for organizing and leading the day-to-day work
of the internal controls of the Company in daily operations to
ensure its stable operations.

The Company has internally set up a special audit department,
which comprehensively evaluates the efficiency and effect of
internal control design and implementation by conducting
comprehensive audits, special audits or special investigations.
The audit department supervises and inspects the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control design and operation with the
aim of promoting the continuous improvement and enhancement
of the Group's internal control work quality. If any internal
control deficiencies are identified in audits or investigations, the
audit department shall report to the Supervisory Committee,
Audit Committee or management in a timely manner according
to the severity of the issues, and urge relevant departments
to take active measures to rectify. In addition, through regular
communication and inquiry with the management, the head of
finance and employees of different levels, analysis of the business
operating data and financial data of the Company, and review of
the internal control reports as well as the inspection of records
of the Company, the Group was able to implement relevant
processes to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks.
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The Board, through the Audit Committee, fully reviews the
overall effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems annually. After careful assessment, the
Board confirmed that the Group's risk management and internal
control systems are generally sound, effective and adequate to
meet various challenges for the year. During the review process,
no deficiencies and anomalies that have a significant impact on
corporate governance, operation management and development
of the Company have been identified. The implementation of
these measures ensures the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control and risk management, and provides a solid guarantee for
the steady development of the Group.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Huang Min and Ms. Ng Wai Kam have been appointed as
the Company’s joint company secretaries. Ms. Ng Wai Kam is
currently a senior manager of Tricor Services Limited, a global
professional services provider specializing in integrated business,
corporate and investor services.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
joint company secretaries on corporate governance and board
practices and matters.

Mr. Huang Min has been designated as the primary contact
person at the Company, and is responsible for working and
communicating with Ms. Ng on the Company's corporate
governance and secretarial and administrative matters.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, Mr. Huang Min and Ms.
Ng Wai Kam had undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training respectively in compliance with Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS

Communication with Shareholders and
Investors

The Company has always been committed to pursuing close
and effective dialogue with Shareholders to ensure timely and
accurate disclosure of information concerning the Group's
material developments and safeguard the Shareholders’ right to
know and participate.

Annual general meeting serves as an important bridge for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. We
make full use of this platform to propose resolutions on major
matters such as the election of Directors, for Shareholders’
consideration and voting. To enhance transparency, we pay
special attention to the attendance at annual general meetings,
to ensure all Directors, the chairpersons of all the Board
Committees, senior management and external auditor will
attend the meetings to address Shareholders’ inquiries onsite.
In case of special circumstances, if the chairman of the Board
or the chairperson of each Board Committee fails to attend the
meeting, then other members of committees will be invited to
attend on behalf of them, to ensure the communications with
Shareholders will not be affected.

All resolutions proposed at the general meetings will be voted
by poll. The voting results will be posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company timely to ensure the
information is open and transparent.

In addition, to facilitate the Shareholders to keep abreast of
the latest developments of the Group, the Company maintains
a dedicated website to regularly publish relevant information,
such as business operation, corporate governance and investor
relations. Meanwhile, the Company has established various
communication channels with its Shareholders, including regularly
releasing annual and interim results reports, annual and interim
reports, announcements and circulars, etc., and held results
press conferences, to provide the Shareholders with a chance to
communicate directly with the Company.
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During the Reporting Period, we have comprehensively reviewed
the information disclosure on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange and confirmed that the Shareholder
Communication Policy is effective. In the future, we will continue
to optimize this policy to ensure that Shareholders and the public
have timely access to the Group’s latest information and witness
the growth and development of the Group together.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting

In accordance with Article 45 and Article 62 of the Articles of
Association:

(1) The shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding ten
percent or more of the Company’s total voting shares
may sign one or more written requests in the same
format requesting the Board of Directors to convene an
extraordinary shareholders’ general meeting and stating
the matters to be considered at the meeting. The Board
of Directors shall convene an extraordinary shareholders’
general meeting as soon as possible after receipt of
the aforesaid written request. The abovementioned
shareholding shall be calculated as of the day on which
the written request is made.

(2) If the Board of Directors does not agree to convene the
extraordinary shareholders’ general meeting or fails to
make a response within ten days after the receipt of the
above written request, the shareholder(s) individually
or jointly holding ten percent or more of the shares of
the Company shall have the right to propose to the
Supervisory Committee to convene the extraordinary
shareholders’ general meeting. Such request shall be made
in writing.
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(3) If the Supervisory Committee fails to issue a notice of
holding shareholders’ general meeting within five days
after the receipt of the request, it shall be deemed
that the Supervisory Committee shall not convene and
preside over the shareholders’ general meeting, and the
shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding ten percent
or more of the shares of the Company for more than
90 consecutive days may convene and preside over the
meeting by himself/herself/themselves.

Where the shareholders convene and preside over a meeting by
itself or themselves as the Board fails to convene the meeting
pursuant to the aforesaid request, the reasonable expenses
incurred therefrom shall be borne by the Company and deducted
from the amounts payable by the Company to the defaulting
Directors.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

Shareholders, who individually or jointly hold more than three
percent of the shares of the Company, shall be entitled to submit
ad hoc proposals and send them in writing to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at 1806-07, 18/F, Laws
Commercial Plaza, 788 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong
Kong, to submit to the convener ten days before the convening
of the shareholders’ general meeting. The convener shall issue a
supplemental notice of the shareholders’ general meeting within
two days after the receipt of the proposals. The Company shall
include matters as proposed in the proposals that are within the
scope of authority of the shareholders’ general meeting in the
agenda of such meeting, and announce the content of the ad
hoc proposals.
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Procedures for Directing Shareholders’
Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the investor relations, whose
contact details are as follows:

Address: 1806-1807, 18/F, Laws Commercial Plaza, 788
Cheung Sha Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Email: ir@onewo.com

AMENDMENT TO ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION

During the Reporting Period, in order to, among other things, (i)
reflect the amendments required by relevant Chinese laws and
regulations and continue to comply with all applicable regulatory
provisions, and (i) take into account the actual position of the
Company, the Company has made an amendment to the Articles
of Association. Such proposals of amendment to the Articles of
Association were considered and approved by Shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting held on December 8, 2023. For
details of the amendment to the Articles of Association, please
refer to the Company’s announcements dated October 25, 2023
and December 8, 2023 and circular dated November 21, 2023.
Save as disclosed above, there were no changes to the Articles of
Association of the Company during the Reporting Period.

BRROESSFHEHANER

BRABEREBREEFERAZALARE
EETHETARBIFE  HBEHIEH
CUB

Hodk BEAENERDEBETSSHEKRRE
¥ [Z35 1842 1806-1807
BFEHME : ir@onewo.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

N\ BURHERE

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King's Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of Onewo Inc.
A joint stock company incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China with limited liability

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Onewo Inc. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 168 to 320, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BME=RPMERBRMOER AT 2023FFR
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code"”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our

audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BB E

BERETSEHw
KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FAREFISEE

Key audit matter

EZRUHRARERRESNHRBEEERTMG

RPN ET N EEERETTEE
How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

Assessment of the expected credit losses of trade and retention receivables

The gross balance of trade and retention receivables as
at 31 December 2023 amounted to RMB6,781,100,000,
against which an allowance for impairment amounting
to RMB419,801,000 was made.

Management assessed the expected credit losses of
trade and retention receivables based on expected
credit loss rates. Factors that management considers
in making the assessment of expected credit losses
include the Group’s collection history, aging profile
of the receivables, available information concerning
the creditworthiness of customers, existing economic
and industry conditions as well as forward-looking
information at the end of the year.

MR2023F 12318  BESRKFIAEREWIRESHBLE
A ARYE,781,100,0007T © EFEFHRBEREAR
#2419,801,0007T °

ERERERAGEEER  FEEZREHARER
RELHEHEERE - EEEENLRBEEBER
ERZBAR  BF BERENELYFIER - YUK
HENERRIER  EREPEENTREN  RAEKAER
TTRAN - ARFROAEEES

BME=RPMERBRMOER AT 2023FFR

Our audit procedures in relation to the assessment of
the expected credit losses of the trade and retention
receivables included:

e Understanding, evaluating and testing
management’s key controls in relation to the
assessment of the expected credit losses of trade
and retention receivables;

e Obtaining the impairment assessments of trade and
retention receivables prepared by management to
understand the credit loss provisioning methodology
adopted by the Group;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B DR E

FEREETTEE @
KEY AUDlT MATTERS (continued)
HARETEE KPS NMEEEREETSZE»

Key audit matter (continued) How our audit addressed the key
audit matter (continued)

B RRRERERREENAREEBRNML (E)

Assessment of the expected credit losses of trade and retention receivables (continued)

We considered this area a key audit matter due to the e Assessing the estimated credit loss rates by

significance of the balance in the consolidated financial considering historical cash collection and movements
statements and the assessment of the expected credit of the ageing of trade and retention receivables, the
losses on trade and retention receivables involving market conditions and forward-looking factors;

significant estimates made by management.
e Checking the mathematical accuracy of the
The accounting policies and disclosures are included calculation of the provision for loss allowance;
in notes 3, 23 and 36 to the consolidated financial
statements. e Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing
analysis of receivables prepared by management;

e Examining, on a sample basis, the subsequent
settlement of the receivables to cash receipts and
the related supporting documentation; and

e Checking the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in connection with the
impairment of trade and retention receivable.

BARRE—RES—EBREAFFTE THARGHY o BEERELRESWEBRIARE S EKFIAKER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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BERETSEHw
KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

-+

EEETEE®

Key audit matter (continued)

BB R EE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had goodwill of
RMB3,700,222,000, which accounted for approximately
9% of the total assets of the Group.

The Group determined that the residential property
management business group and Commercial and
government-sponsored institution business group
("Commercial and GSI business group”) were separately
accounted for as two cash-generating units (“CGU")
for the purpose of impairment testing. Impairment is
determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
CGU to which the goodwill relates. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the CGU.

R2023F12831H EBEEENEEAEARE
3,700,222,0007C ' 1 EEBEEELEMNL9I% °

EEEEEEEMERIBL BN EXEEMEER
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-

EMEZEFERBRERNDERRE 2023FFH

BB NMEEBERENEEH @)
How our audit addressed the key
audit matter (continued)

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of goodwill included:

e Obtaining an understanding of management’s
assessment process of goodwill impairment;

e Assessing the appropriateness of the Group's
identification of the CGU based on the Group's

accounting policies and our understanding of the
Group's business;
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BERETSEHw
KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

HARETEE

Key audit matter (continued)

BB R ER G (E)

Impairment assessment of goodwill (continued)

Significant judgements and estimates were involved
in the impairment assessment of goodwill. These
significant judgements and estimates include the
adoption of appropriate model and methodology to
perform impairment assessment of goodwill and the
use of key assumptions in the value-in-use calculation,
which primarily include annual revenue growth rates,
long-term growth rate and pre-tax discount rates.

We considered this area a key audit matter due to the
significance of the goodwill balance and the significant
judgements and estimates made by management in the
impairment assessment of goodwill.

The accounting policies and disclosures are included
in notes 3 and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

ETHBRENGERAELERAB LGS - ZEEX
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B DR E

BB NAEEREETTEER @
How our audit addressed the key
audit matter (continued)

e Obtaining management’s assessment on
goodwill impairment and evaluated the model
and methodology adopted by management to
perform goodwill impairment assessment and the
key assumptions used by management, with the
involvement of our internal valuation experts;

e Performing a retrospective review by comparing the
prior year's cash flow forecasts with the current
year's results to assess the reliability and historical
accuracy of management'’s forecasting process;

e Checking the mathematical accuracy of the
calculations of the goodwill impairment assessment;
and

e Checking the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in connection with impairment
assessment of goodwill.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

N\ BURHERE

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit

Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

N\ BURHERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

REBM MBS BEERE
BARENETw

;T%%%%ﬁ?f%%%éﬁr% 2 H) 1R
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the |$ VER 455 » RIEFTERMEST
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty R TS FEHEERENBENAE

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of e

exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and &i[F
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Law Kwok Kee.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Bpfias

Year ended 31 December 2023

W 0023412 A31 BILEE

Notes 2023 2022
BtaE 20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBFIT
(Restated)
(&%)
REVENUE PN 5 33,183,458 30,105,803
Cost of sales SHE AR (28,371,691)  (25,875,053)
Gross profit ESl 4,811,767 4,230,750
Other income and gains, net HAang A Rz 558 6 719,923 570,614
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R HMAX (497,375) (450,316)
Administrative expenses TR X (2,073,304) (2,153,461)
Impairment losses on financial assets, net & @& & BUEE B F 58 (271,003) (156,037)
Finance costs SURID RN 7 (8,538) (11,228)
Share of profits and losses of joint JEIE & S5 R E R A]
ventures and associates M & Eia (23,649) (9,549)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX i A3 A E 8 2,657,821 2,020,773
Income tax expense FriSHi = 11 (621,992) (433,521)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERFIE 2,035,829 1,587,252
Attributable to: AT &5 G -
Shareholders of the Company PIN/NET)) 323 1,954,696 1,511,649
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR = 81,133 75,603
2,035,829 1,587,252
EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
SHAREHOLDERS OF AT EBERREMN
THE COMPANY, IN RMB BRK=E (ARY)
Basic and diluted ARG 13 1.66 1.40
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

a2 EWER
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

2023 2022

2023F 20025
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET R AREBFIL
(Restated)
(s E51)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ERFE 2,035,829 1,587,252
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hit2HEER
Other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified A RERREN S BEERN
to profit or loss in subsequent periods: Hi2HEES :
Cash flow hedges: BeREetn
Effective portion of changes in fair value of FRELNEFTARAEE
hedging instruments arising during the year EEHWLD - 11,759
Reclassification adjustments for gains included in FAEHBERR KGN EN
the consolidated statement of profit or loss DR - (11,759)
Exchange differences: R ER
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations BEBINEBRNER =58 (162) 355
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income that may be AR ERESREER D EEERN

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods HEth2E (B8)/ KaFE (162) 355
Other comprehensive loss that will not be TetkENRENIEE

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: BafEM2EBSR :

Equity investments designated at fair value through BEANANEBEFNEAEZDHEHA

other comprehensive income: Hi2ARRMRERZ

Changes in fair value DREEE (98,111) (586,631)
Net other comprehensive loss that will not be TeERESREN D BEEEN

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods Hin 2 EEEFE (98,111) (586,631)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR,

NET OF TAX EREMZEER  HRHE (98,273) (586,276)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ER2ENRLAR 1,937,556 1,000,976
Attributable to: W& :

Shareholders of the Company AREIRE 1,856,423 925,373

Non-controlling interests JErE i 81,133 75,603

1,937,556 1,000,976
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B o BRI R

31 December 2023

Notes 31 December 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022
Hrz 20235128318 20229128318 20261818
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT ARETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(EE7) (E=3)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment n% - BERR 14 678,625 666,151 500,639
Investment properties REMEME 15 548,290 579,912 657,110
Right-of-use assets RREAE 16 353,683 231,058 253,086
Intangible assets B AE 17 7,981,176 8,506,987 8,244,089
Investments in joint ventures and associates ~ RAEME REENAMERE 18 1,413,676 1,739,177 1,813,232
Equity investments designated at fair value ~ EEANAABETEELED
through other comprehensive income SIAEEARERNRESRE 19 812,719 910,830 1,497,461
Financial assets at fair value through profit AR (EE:E REEZEHA
or loss EREENEREE 20 976 976 976
Deferred tax assets BREREAE 21 207,037 150,302 114,361
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BT FE  REREMEUFE X4 2,501,888 2,388,804 1,992,483
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 14,498,070 15,174,197 15,073,437
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories RE 2 56,054 69,950 261,296
Trade and retention receivables EoRbTERERGES 23 6,781,100 6,277,903 4514273
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables ~ BffFUE « REREMEUFTE X4 1,912,396 1,697,854 1,697,630
Financial assets at fair value through profit ~ JAAZL(EE:E REEEHA
or loss EHEENSREE 20 - - 3,664
Restricted bank deposits SRHBROIFR 25 390,446 376,188 305,250
Time deposits with original maturity of over
three months REBABB=EANENFR 29 172,568 21,830 495,713
Cash and cash equivalents HeRHEERED 25 15,572,483 13,345,063 6,430,557
Total current assets MEEERE 24,885,047 21,788,788 13,708,383
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Trade and notes payables BIARNTERENRE 26 5,764,491 5,319,717 3,243,250
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit AR/ (B8 B X &8 A
or loss EHEENSREE - 191,792 191,792
Contract liabilities ARBE 27 4,681,194 4,514,977 4,167,711
Other payables and accruals At AR R 28 7,148,543 6,839,543 7,821,982
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STERITER - - 11,500
Lease liabilities HEARE 16 99,772 109,438 100,938
Tax payable EmHE 988,559 738,077 744,715
Total current liabilities MENR EEE 18,682,559 17,713,544 16,281,388

ENEEMMBRB RN ERAE 2023FFH




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SOt &
31 December 2023
2023%F12H31H

Notes 31 December 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022
i3 2023%12A31H 2022%12 8318 202251818
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT AREFT
(Restated) (Restated)
(E=51) (&=3)
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RBEE/(8E) 3R 6,202,488 4,075,244 (2,573,505)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EBEAERFBARE 20,700,558 19,249,441 12,499,932
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FhBaE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STEBRITER - = 4,087
Other payables and accruals Ei R R ETRE 28 1,130,927 963,769 815,539
Provision b 29 146,910 117,283 72,874
Lease liabilities HEaf 16 251,589 124,106 149,609
Deferred tax liabilities EXREERE 21 950,891 1,042,779 1,145,880
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEER 2,480,317 2,247,937 2,187,989
Net assets EEFE 18,220,241 17,001,504 10,311,943
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to shareholders of the
Company RRARREGER
Share capital BA 30 1,178,469 1,178,469 1,050,420
Other reserves Hinfta 31 16,426,957 15,281,727 8,842,353
17,605,426 16,460,196 9,892,773
Non-controlling interests FERER 614,815 541,308 419,170
Total equity EnpE 18,220,241 17,001,504 10,311,943
Zhu Baoquan He Shuhua
KRE g
Director Director
= =

Onewo Inc. Annual Report 2023 171




>
=
=
(@)
L
=
(92)
L
(O)
=z
<<
n
(&)
L
o
-
Z
L
=
L
-
<
wn
(an]
L
-
<
=
-
(@)
(%)
Z
(®)
(&)

Year ended 31 December 2023

p0S'100'L  Q0€'LYS 9109791 FLELOL'T 141985 1091 (e67'526) 82070671 697'8LL'L (MEH) BIEH T 57000 (pa1exsai) 7707 Jaquiada L€ v
(661'61) (860°€) (Llor'al) - - - - (lo1'91) - B dihie 3 ) 15248101 6u1j011U03-UoU Jo UonIsInbdy
£87'201 6/6'59 #05'9€ - - - - 705'9¢ = (BT BN =T E GBS SaUepisqns Jo uonisinbde pue SaUeIpisans Jo [esodsip [erieg
- - - (L96'02) 19601 - - - - MENFHYYE Sy1j01d PaUIE}al WOJj PaLajSUel]
(£86'501) . (£86'501) - - (£86'501) - XEUEOY S3sUadka anss| leys
vE9'L2L'S . 9’121 - - - - 586'665' 61087 ULz Soleys J0 anss|
(op€'9L) (ap€'91) - = = = Y I E S13p|0YRIRYS BUI|0AU0D-UOU 0} PaIE[I3p SPUBPI]
9/6'000') €096/ £LE'ST6 6v9'118° T - q5¢ (1£9'989) - - (TER) (pare1sa) Jeak 8y} Joj BWIDUI/SS0]) aNSUBLRIAIOD [e10]
EHRl/(98) B3Ny
(49 - (449 - - G - - - WEEF Y EEE  suonelsdo UbRIOJ Jo UONeSUEL UO S3URI3})IP aBUeLDY
(1£9'989) = (1€9'985) - - (1£9'989) - - HHY - EEEEYY Xel 0 13U ‘3woau] ansuayadwod Jayjo ybnoiy
Y URY BT 3njen Jie Je suawisanul Aynbs 4o anjen Jiey ul sabuey)
YEBEHEEEBEYIN
BNETHEMY :1eaf 3y} 1o} BWODU BNISUBYRICWI0) JBUIQ
GT8SL €09'SL L o R - - - - (HEH) EbiE (paeisa) seaf ay) Jog yjoid
w6'LLEDL  0LL'6lY €LL'T68' 1€9'999 017526 9Ll 8E€'19¢ L0'88¢"L 077'050'] (WE) B L H 157000 (paveisat) 7oz Menver | 1y
(5e9) L€ (229) (cL9) - - - = = (07 7RS40 (LLED) ()77 910471 Syl 0) SWUBLIpUAW Jo Uondope Jo 193}3
LU E (8 HE) K
8/S'TIEDL  €cl'bly Svh'€68'6 #0€'199 017526 9Ll 8E€'197 L0'88¢"L 0770501 BIEH T2 100t 1207 13queXQ L€ 1Y
(lEEN)  (1EEM)  (1EBM) (LEEM)  (0cEH)
(l€aloN)  (JgaoN) (1€ lN) (lean) (o€ aioN)
Uiy  LigdY  Ligdy  LEgdY Lagdy LigdY  Lrgdy LigdY  LEgHEY
000,94 000,44 000,84 000,84 000,84 000,94 000,89y 000,94 000,94
LEEE S Lilvc . BuEt¥  GUHE SHEY YEEEYY  $EvE v
b4 £ BRRT
WENESHE
YEEEHE
ELEEYTN
finba SJsa13)Ul el syjoud NN3S3) 3NI3S3) 3wooul N33 lalli:3)
[e10] buyjonuo TGN snjdins uomenpnjy  ansuayRIdwiod  [ende) 3leys
-Uop Aiowngeis 3bueydx3 13430 yonoJy}
anjen Jiey 1
S1asse |elueul}
J0 9MI9Sa)
anjen Jiey
FHEHTY

Auedwo?) ay} Jo SI3P|0YRIeYS 0 3|qeINGLANY

EREBHERERNDER AR 2023FFH

S =
%f




o (e ‘uonisod

Y._+w.,\ AR ﬁvﬁooo LTL'18T'SLEYY : 7202)1£L000°L56'9C'91L [elDueUl} JO SluswWslels Palepljosuod syl ul ((pa1eisal) 000°£Z/'L8T'SLENY :2202)
_W .E 2 W SNV Y S WYY S HE Ry ey . 000°£S6'921'91 9INY JO S9AI9SI J9YI0 PaIepI|oSUOd 9y} 3sUdWOod SJUN0JJe SAI9S3I 359y | .

T AW
SE 3m
M JH m a5 wrozz'sk  S18'l9 970'509'LL  «080'8SE'E  «LLL'96S $6E€’) +(hOV'ETh) SOU'V68'TL  69Y'8LL' BIEH T ZE0TH €007 loquana( €Y
oy 9T

2\\& N
B4.m® (897 (Gh's) (e9') - - - - (€97'2) - BE it h sisaigju) Bujjoauo-uou 4o uopisinby
WA_H S\m L6v'st Lot'€T - - - - - - - [T E[E 2T ELES T SaURIpISONS Jo Uonisinbde pue SaUeIpISGns Jo [esodsip (e ed
< SN (z0L'8h) - (zoc'st) (z0L'sy) - - - - - Himge paseypIndal aieys
i o M (8z's59) - (8zz'ss9) (8zz'59) - - - - - EEERE PaIe[ap Spuspinq
m w@ (80z's2) (80z's7) - - - - - - - RN R e 4G sIapjoyaieys bujjouo-Uou o} pajeap spupIN

>

(@)
= 95LE6'L €8 EUr9S81 969561 - (z91) (114'6) - - E90Y /(49 B3NS Jea 3y} 1o} aui0DUY(ssol) ansUBLRIdWO) [elo]
L
W (z91) - (z91) - - (z91) - - - EZUFRYEEEY  suonelado UbRIO Jo UONe[SULL U0 SHURAYIP 8BURLDK
— (L11'86) - (b11'86) - - - (L11'86) - - HRY - EEEHVYT Xe} §0 33U ‘aui0Jul ansuayaiduwod Jayjo ybnoiy)
_Aln By ?Eg DB 3nje Jie} 18 SuaWisanul Anba Jo anjen Jiey ul sabuey)
n YEEEHEERBEYIN
m  BREIWEM S -1eak 3y} Joj BUIOdUI BNSU3YBIAWO) Jay)Q
— 678'E0T  EEL18 99'756'L 969756t - - - - - E(E 1eaf 3y} 0} 1jolq
M b05'100'2L  80ELYS 91'00%'9L  bLE'LOL'T  LLL'96S 105"} (e62'sz€) 820'706'7L  691'8LLL (TEH) HIH | 0T (pateisai) ez07 Mrenuer | v
_
= s 3 18y 18y - - - - - (007 720) B0 (w129) (Ol a0u) 71 Sy) o) Siuawpuawe Jo uondope jo 1ay)3
zZ U (e ) s
w 186'000°L)  ELT'MS 60L'6SP'9)  LT8'90L'T LL1'968 105') (€62's2€) 870'706'7L  69¥'8LL') BIEHTIHTI0TH {707 lRquansq €Y

(LEEH) (LERH) (0ETH)
(LealoN)  (LE®ON)  (LE dl0N) (LeawoN) (o€ BIoN)
Uigdy  Yig¥Y  YEREY  U4gHY YigdY YEgEY  LEEY YLgMY  YEig¥y
000,9INY 000,9INY 000,94 000,IN4 000,84 000,9NY 000,9Y 000,9WY 000,9NY
e BaNEE S BEYY  BUEEIE YBENRY HBEEVY  HEYVE
ELEES
HEREEHYE
YLEEEEH
ELEEYTY

S)S3IBYU| [e30] syjoud EIVELE] EIVELS) awodul EIVELS)
paue}ay snjdins uopenpnj}  snisuayaidwod  |ende) aleys
fi0inje)g abueyax3 J8ypo ybinoayy
anjeA Jiey Je
§)asse [enueul
JUEIVELEY
A JIed

HHERETy
fuedwo) ay} jo siapjoysIeys 0} 3|qeInqLRY

173

Onewo Inc. Annual Report 2023




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EHRERER
Year ended 31 December 2023
N = 2023 12 431 B ILFE

Notes 2023 2022
Hrit 2023% 20225
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBFT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReZDFRRERE
Profit before tax R TRAE 2,657,821 2,020,773
Adjustments for: HEEE :
Depreciation and amortisation EREH 8 1,016,165 854,702
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant and LEME - BE - ZER
equipment and investment properties REMMEIE A M (77,018) (22,502)
AR EEZBEEEEA
Fair value gains or losses on financial assets at EHERNEREENAL
fair value through profit or loss EEkELER 6 (72,230) (9,589)
AR BEEBEEEHA
Fair value gains or losses on financial liabilities at EHBERNERARENAA
fair value through profit or loss EBEYETEE 6 (191,792) =
Impairment losses on trade and retention B HR WA R ERRE S RE
receivables, net BRFE 823 193,937 91,001
Impairment losses on prepayments, TANGUE - ke RE M EWIE
deposits and other receivables, net REBEFE 824 77,066 65,036
Gain on disposal of equity interests i B R s (82,660) (30,957)
Gain on remeasurement of the previously BN ENRE BERT
held interest in an associate Eafls 6 - (215,563)
Share of profits and losses of joint ventures and EleaetEREEARMNER
associates B 18 23,649 9,549
Interest income FlEMA (124,479) (46,068)
Finance costs FBRA 7 8,538 11,228
Gain on cash flow hedge (transfer from equity) Reneiils (SE#R) - (11,759)
Foreign exchange differences, net FNEESE (5,613) (11,774)
3,423,384 2,704,077
Decrease in inventories FERDY 12,676 191,346
Increase in trade and retention receivables B S IEUGRIE I JEURE 238 m (728,957) (1,875,419)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and other BNHE - ke REMEKHE
receivables 0 (515,308) (493,063)
Increase in trade and notes payables Z RN TBREMNEZEEN 460,736 1,968,201
Increase in other payables and accruals Hth T30 R ST IR B 50 240,952 401,673
Increase in contract liabilities AREREEM 175,536 350,559
Increase in provision B 29,627 44,409
3,098,646 3,291,783
Tax paid BAHIE (512,416) (535,468)
Net cash flows from operating activities ReERMEReREFE 2,586,230 2,756,315

ENEEMMBRB RN ERAE 2023FFH




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EHBRERER
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

Notes 2023 2022
Wit 2023% 20225
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET ARBTTT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZBFGRERE
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEME - BRE RREER
plant and equipment g sR 40,671 14,116
Purchase of items of property, plant and equipment BEVE  BELELEEE (277,369) (217,934)
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties HEREEMEMETE 76,805 105,907
Purchase of investment properties BEREE (10,953) (84,360)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEVEE (87,612) (240,660)
Purchase of shareholding in joint ventures and associates ~ BBEAZ(ME REE N AIk1E (12,191) (20,360)
Dividends received from joint ventures and associates BRECERBANAIREINRS 34,162 15,876
Proceeds from disposal of joint ventures and associates HEREMERMEDRFMERE 198,815 78,343
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired WEMBEAR  NRMERS (22,099) -
Step acquisition of a subsidiary PRERE-FAREAR - (190,907)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HENBRRMEZA 136,483 (5,368)
Receipt from wealth management products el S B 72,230 13,253
Interest received B & 108,416 46,068
Decrease/(Increase) in pledged deposits BRzZRD /(38m) 45,782 (24,347)
(Increase)/Decrease in time deposits with REBEBBE=(AANTHER
original maturity of over three months (m),/ W 25 (150,738) 473,883
REEBME /(FA)RenE
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities FE 152,402 (36,490)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BETDFRRERE
Proceeds from issue of shares BEIROMETA - 5,727,634
Proceeds from cash flow hedge BensymmissE - 11,759
Share issue expenses paid BENRNETRS (10,212) (97,171)
Disposal of non-controlling interests HEFARER 9,683 16,322
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Wit R (12,022) (19,199)
Repayment of bank loans BERTER - (15,577)
Interest paid ERFE - (625)
Dividends paid ERRE (284,010) (1,294,001)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders ENFEERRR AR E (47,453) (16,346)
Shares repurchased READEG) (42,558) =
Interest element of lease rentals paid EREENFEER (8,538) (10,603)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHENEAER (121,715) (119,276)
MEES (FTA)/ FiERERE
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities FE (516,825) 4,182,917
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EHRERER

% Year ended 31 December 2023

o I 002312 531 B ILEE

176

Notes 2023 2022

ik 2023 20226

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETTL

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ReRBESEYNEMTEE 2,221,807 6,902,742

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING

OF YEAR ENRERBLSEN 13,345,063 6,430,557

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net EEZHNTEFE 5,613 11,764

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR EXRERESESEN 15,572,483 13,345,063
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS STATED IN RERERBIINEEKREE

THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS =L 25 15,572,483 13,345,063

BME=RPMERBRMOER AT 2023FFR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ORI IR AR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION

Onewo Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) on 20 February 2001
as a limited liability company. On 20 March 2018, the
Company was converted into a joint stock company with
limited liability under the Company Law of the PRC.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following
principal activities:

o Community space living consumption services
o Commercial and urban space integrated services
3 AloT and BPaas$ solution services

In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding
company of the Company is China Vanke Co., Ltd. (the
“China Vanke"), a public company established in the PRC
with its shares listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

RFAREBER

EWETHEMERBERKRDERA A
([ARAF])R200142 5208 EHE
ARZEFME ([HE])FMKZLAE K
BMRAR - R2018F3 8208 » AR
AIRIE (R E AR LFIB A RE) 2
BRNBRAR °

FA AKEREATEZERS

. IR EEE B RS
. 1 F T Z= B4R A IR TS
. AloT M BPaaS# A7 2= AR 7%

EEZRR ARANRAKER AT
REBMEEERONARAR ([BRE
X —RKRPERIH EHAR] A&
BOERIIBZRZANEEBAR
SRBRAB [BRFT] EH)
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1.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

 Year ended 31 December 2023
I 22023512 A31H IEEE

CORPORATE AND GROUP

INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries, all of which

are limited liability companies:

Company name

Ak

RIHEMDEREBR A

REEMNEREER A

REMERDERBERAA

LBEMDEREER AT

EEEMNEREERAH

IR IMEERERAR

EREBRRINEZEEARAR

Place of
incorporation/

registration

and business
ERAYL/ BER
T e

PRC/Chinese Mainland
HE /B
PRC/Chinese Mainland
HE /B
PRC/Chinese Mainland
HE /RER
PRC/Chinese Mainland
HE /BN,
PRC/Chinese Mainland
FE /B,
PRC/Chinese Mainland
B/ HER
PRC/Chinese Mainland
HE /BN,

178 ENEZMEBERBEIRMNDER AR 2023FFH

1. AAREEER »

ERMEBLRER

UTREZMBRAABE -

AA ST

NEZERBRATE

Registered
share capital

&R A

RMB50,000,000
AR¥50,000,0007T
RMB10,000,000
AEK#10,000,0007T
RMB12,000,000
AR#12,000,0007T
RMB12,260,000
AE#12,260,0007C
RMB10,000,000
AEK#10,000,0007T
RMB50,800,000
AR#%50,800,0007T
RMB50,000,000
AR#50,000,0007T

Percentage
of equity
attributable
to the
Company
LNl 2
LD

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

65

65

65

65

Principal
activities

EL-EY

Property management
NEER
Property management
NxEER
Property management
MEER
Property management
NEER
Property management
NxEER
Property management
MEER
Property management

MEER

Erlaray



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ORI IR AR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BLEFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and business
SR ERER
T

1. RAREEERE »

Registered

share capital

i fff R A

Percentage
of equity
attributable
to the
Company
RN EEL
BEEDL

EBEMBATER »

Principal
activities

TRERNEREER AR PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB50,000,000 100 Property management
E /HER AR#50,000,0007C 100 NEER
RIENEENERBERAR PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB50,000,000 65 Property management
e/ HER AR#50,000,0007C 65 MEER
FERTWEZH(LE)BRAF PRC/Chinese Mainland USD5,800,000 65 Property management
R B 5,800,0003 7T 65 MEkER
REBERNERE BB AR PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB100,000,000 100 Property management
R B AR#100,000,0007C 100 MEER
REERDEREERAR PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB20,000,000 100 Property management
e/ E AL AR #20,000,0007C 100 NEER
LEERERMERBERAR PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB10,580,000 100 Property management
i /HER AR#10,580,0007T 100 MEER
BT ERNEREER AR PRC/Chinese Mainland RMBS5,000,000 100 Property management
hEl /B, ARK5,000,0007 100 MEER
REmERMMERBEERAR PRC/Chinese Mainland RMBS5,000,000 100 Property management
e/ R E AL, ARK5,000,0007 100 NEER
EFTERMEREERAR PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB20,010,000 100 Property management
e/ RN AR#20,010,0007 100 MEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

8% Year ended 31 December 2023

W =023 12 431 A IHEE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

mHERNEREARAF

EREMNEEEERAR

A HEENEREERAR

ERENFENERBERRA

AHERDEZRERAF

MIREZNFEERBARAF

BMIERS (@B BRAA

R HENEEREERAR

RINTEDRRERERAA]

BEEEEREREARLA

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and business
FRRL BRR
e

PRC/Chinese Mainland
E/HER
PRC/Chinese Mainland
RE / RER
PRC/Chinese Mainland
hE/HER
PRC/Chinese Mainland
R B
PRC/Chinese Mainland
HE/ RER
PRC/Chinese Mainland
hE /R EAL,
Hong Kong

B

PRC/Chinese Mainland
B/ HER
PRC/Chinese Mainland
hE/REAL,
PRC/Chinese Mainland
hE /BN

180 EVEZMEBRERBEIRNDER AR 2023FFH

1. AAREEER »

Registered

share capital

i fff R A

RMB125,000,000
AE125,000,0007T
RMB12,000,000
AE#12,000,0007C
RMB 100,000,000
AE%100,000,0007C
RMB50,000,000
AEK#50,000,0007T
RMB217,293,558
AE#217,293,5587C
RMB20,280,000
AER#20,280,0007C
HK$150,000,000
150,000,000 7T
RMB12,820,500
AR%12,820,5007T
RMB5,000,000
AK5,000,0007T
RMBS5,000,000
AR5,000,0007T

Percentage
of equity
attributable
to the
Company
RPEEL
EEEDL

100
100
100
100
100
100

65

65
100
100

54

54
100
100

61

61
100
100
100
100

EBEMBATER #

Principal
activities

TEXY

Property management
NEER
Property management
MEER
Property management
NEER
Property management
NEER
Property management
MEER
Property management
NEER
Property management
MxEER
Property management
MEER
Property management
MEER
Property management

MEER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

LEBRNEREARAF

LEEAEREEREEE
BRRT]

REBENEEBARAF

RIEMEFREERBARAR

RIHEEEERBBRAA]

A HENKEHAREER AR

RTESTHERBERAT

AT EDTERERBEERAF

AT ERZEERR
BEARAR

Place of
incorporation/

registration

and business
HMEYL, BRER
" e

PRC/Chinese Mainland
hE/RERL
PRC/Chinese Mainland

hE /PR
PRC/Chinese Mainland
HE /B
PRC/Chinese Mainland
/BN
PRC/Chinese Mainland
HE /BN,
PRC/Chinese Mainland
hE /B,
PRC/Chinese Mainland
R/ R AL,
PRC/Chinese Mainland

FE/ HER
PRC/Chinese Mainland

RE /B

B ORI IR AR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BLEFE

1. RAREEERE »

Registered
share capital

&R A

RMB1,000,000
AR%1,000,0007T
RMB212,500,000

AE#212,500,0007C
RMB62,100,000
AE¥62,100,0007T
RMB10,000,000
AR#10,000,0007T
RMB100,000,000
AE%100,000,0007C
RMB10,000,000
AEK#10,000,0007T
RMB3,000,000
AR#3,000,0007C
RMB3,000,000

AEK#3,000,0007C
RMB1,000,000

AR#1,000,0007T

Percentage
of equity
attributable
to the
Company
LNl 2
LD

100
100
100

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

100
45

45

EBEMBATER »

Principal
activities

Property management
NEER

Property management

NEER

Property management
NEER

Enterprise service
EERS

Intelligent engineering
BaeIR

Investment management
REER

Real estate brokerage
FELL

Home decoration and
renovation
FEESIREE

IT service

TR A%

Onewo Inc. Annual Report 2023

181




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

Year ended 31 December 2023

CEF2023F 12 A31H IEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

registration

and business

AR BER

1. AAREEER »

Registered
share capital

EBEMBATER #

Percentage

of equity

attributable
to the Principal
Company activities

ENGI)

A HENENBZARAF

iR

PRC/Chinese Mainland

i fff R A

RMB1,000,000,000

HE/REAL AR#1,000,000,0007
wamENERKERAF PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000
FE/ RERAL AE#10,000,0007
AIMENERREERAA PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB30,000,000
FE/ RER, AR#30,000,0007T
A MEYERRHEERAR PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB5,000,000
HE /B AEH#5,000,0007T
RITENERERES PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB50,000,000
BEARAR
HE /R ERN AE#50,000,0007T
(1) The Group considers that it controls this company even (1)

though it owns less than 50% of the equity interest. This
is because the Group could control over the board of
directors and the financial and operating policies of this

company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company

BHEEAL TEXK

100 IT service

100 ITHRTS

100 IT service

100 ITHRAS

100 Industrial investment

100 EXRE

100 Public facility management
100 RHAREER

100 Public facility management

100 A*EBEE

#35 0 EBSIRAT - BREAS
£ E T R R A B E B GO RET
REBRE -

R ESRREIBREAFER

BABUAEBFEERK oD
ARAMBRAR - EERR > JIHE
B AR 2 FBERERREBRNIT

subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result Ko

which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other

in particulars of excessive length.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs, which comprise all
standards and interpretations approved by the
International Accounting Standards Board,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss, derivative financial instruments and
equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing
rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

FETBE

2.

1

fm B ELAE

ZEM BRI TIRIBECE R Y
BHEEL) (BHEAAKBEE
SR EAE S HIEMER
28)  FEAREHRAULE
B SR RHERR) 2 35 R TE AR
5L o HJh iR BRIE s2 A AN 18 Bl A
2D RAAEBEFENA
NRABEAEREEHFAE
HESNEREE  UARE
BfEREREHFAEHES
MEemMaE TEEMIAR
BERNMAAEBEAELRE
Bt AR RER
BRI - ZFHHHRRUAR
25 BREBEAN A
FEHNBESEON TR

mERE

FAEVBREREEAEEESR
2023F12A31BItFEZE
BHwE - B RARIEHAAR A
BEAEEEHNEE (BIELS
BHEER) BASEHK2HE
BHRNWEBTIESHAEE
BSr Ok BEENABE
HEBHRNEIMEEZS
Bl (BB BN AEEE A
BEENIREEHRNERE
g)) - AR RS HIRE -

Onewo Inc. Annual Report 2023

183




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B O AR IEE
Year ended 31 December 2023
N =023 12 A31 B IEEE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. 3 EE @

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 REEE @)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of
voting rights results in control. When the Company
has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other
vote holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential
voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

EREIRG D ERATE 2023FFH

REEE ()

R—REATIFEELZHERE
BEKEZEHEZETE - BEAR
RAERAHEREAREHRN
FZBERRERELUENE -
AEBEFHERTHBEYR
BHRWNENFSEEMAE
MEEELR - 8%

(a) HEREHRMEMERE
FBARILAB O

(b) ﬁﬂm AL PR FTE A O RE
ﬂ ;

(0 AEENREENEER
e

B 8 ) 4% 2 AN B A2 /) ) ¥k
THREVBRER - LHRA—
HHEFBE - MEBAR XS
BAREERFEGEZHES
B XRESHEZZFES
REARLE o

TEE& L fth 2 T Y0 a5 45 4L B BB
DHEBRASER]RAREESA
&3!5? Ptz - BMER RS
BOFEREm N R B A -
REBEKERFIRRZH R
EBESERLRBEERE
5 fEm WA  FAXKkBER
MENRA ARK 2EEE -



2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without
a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises the related assets (including goodwill),
liabilities, any non-controlling interest and the
exchange fluctuation reserve; and recognises the
fair value of any investment retained and any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group's share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

2.

&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

DEIEER @

2.1

mBEXE ()
A (G

MRFEMBERBR LA
EHN=ZHETEF —BAXZ
HEE  AAKEESENTG
HELMAZEMNREHR - W0
R—FXMBRANEAEED
3R & ) 1 I 4 B K K1
B RIBEEHIRAEEDER
2o

MRKEBRETHHME AT
EFE B - RIS AR R
MEE (BEBE) BE -
1 0] SF 22 S0 25 N I 5 O B ok
o LHEIRTARBRENR
REERERSETHILELEZ
EMARIEA - NEEZA
A EL b 2 T W o B B EY 8 K D
DEBEWE DR ABRE
SRR E AN - REEIMRAE
EERLERREEXRAERM
FEMER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. HBE
2.2 Changes in accounting policies and 2.2 EHHENEFLEE
disclosures
The Group has adopted the following new and NE BB 3K F B B 75 i % B2
revised IFRSs for the current year's financial WA TN ETET R A& =T By C B R B
statements. TSRS ZER Y o
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
(BIFR B 7 3RS R E 175 R & [F
Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates
(B gt 2R]) B85 (BETAN) B 1GETHE S
Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Disclosure of Accounting Policies
Practice Statement 2
(BB EDE1RE BRI E
(BRI B HRE LR BB RE )R 25 (BFTAR)
Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction
(B ST 2R)) E1258 (BATA) HE— X G EE A EER B EIER B A
Amendments to IAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules
(BRI F125% (BFTA) BIRR B 20 — o1 — OFRIR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. SEHBE®

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and 2.2 ETHENEERIEE
disclosures (continued) (%)

HERARAEBHFE REEET
(B s s 2R ) B &
FEHMMT

The nature and the impact of the new and revised
IFRSs that are applicable to the Group are described
below:

(EIBR gt R ) % 15%

disclose their material accounting policy (B R) ERERIFE

(a) Amendments to IAS 1 require entities to (a)

information rather than their significant BEARCTHEER - M3k
accounting policies. Accounting policy TESHHE - MRe:
information is material if, when considered R EL EE BB SRR
together with other information included FrEEMmER —HZE
in an entity's financial statements, it B naEEErE—RK
can reasonably be expected to influence REMBRENTEEH
decisions that the primary users of general EH N R RS R EL
purpose financial statements make on R E

the basis of those financial statements.

AZFEREB
BERX - (BB HRELE

Amendments to IFRS Practice Statement BIEBAEYE 2% (1B5]
2 Making Materiality Judgements provide ZIK) 1EH B Z 14 EF B
non-mandatory guidance on how to apply MERESTHREEZENE

the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures. The Group has disclosed

ZUB SR IR BT
5l « REBERI B MK

the material accounting policy information Msr2 i BE A @tHE
in note 2 to the financial statements. The Bl o ZE BT HAEH
amendments did not have any impact on the B &3 R R {E (] 1B B B9t
measurement, recognition or presentation = R E P I A0
of any items in the Group’'s financial E o

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

: Year ended 31 December 2023
W =023 12 A31 B IEEE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. EEHBE @
2.2 Changes in accounting policies and 22 EHRENETREE
disclosures (continued) (&)
The nature and the impact of the new and revised AR AKEB RN HT R&EIET
IFRSs that are applicable to the Group are described (BRI BRELER YN EE &
below: (continued) TEFHMMT : (8)
(b)  Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction (b) <(EBEF%8)FE85%
between changes in accounting estimates ({&=TA~ ) BB = =t (=t
and changes in accounting policies. SRR EE 2 H
Accounting estimates are defined as MEE - @Gt EE
monetary amounts in financial statements B EHRKRPEETE=T
that are subject to measurement uncertainty. ETENEBEEE o (&
The amendments also clarify how entities STZANJREEBE & A2 an{a] {E A
use measurement techniques and inputs =& 5% N A SIS iR E
to develop accounting estimates. Since the @ {EEt o N ANEEFE
Group's approach and policy align with )7k NI R EZ(EE]
the amendments, the amendments had no N—2  iE AT RS AN E
impact on the Group’s financial statements. BB SRR ELETE o
(c) Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related (c) (EBRez28)55 125
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single ({BETN) 81688 — X5 5 &5
Transaction narrow the scope of the initial B B E N B EEE A
recognition exception in IAS 12 so that FEEFIEGE N T AR
it no longer applies to transactions that =HAEBI| Y 55 12 5% AR ¥ 14 FE
give rise to equal taxable and deductible RHIINEREEE - FE
temporary differences, such as leases and THERNELEBESER
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, i 2 Rl R ET A =R A RS
entities are required to recognise a deferred S5 MHBEENRERSE-
tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable Rt » BEEBERZERLS
profit is available) and a deferred tax liability EANEREREERIEL
for temporary differences arising from these MIBEE (FIREEE 2%
transactions. KB R FIE ) RIRER
HAfE -
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

The nature and the impact of the new and revised

IFRSs that are applicable to the Group are described

below: (continued)

(@

(continued)

Prior to the initial application of these
amendments, the Group applied the initial
recognition exception and did not recognise
a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax
liability for temporary differences for
transactions related to leases. The Group
has applied the amendments on temporary
differences related to leases as at 1 January
2022. Upon initial application of these
amendments, the Group recognised (i)
a deferred tax asset for all deductible
temporary differences associated with lease
liabilities (provided that sufficient taxable
profit is available), and (ii) a deferred tax
liability for all taxable temporary differences
associated with right-of-use assets at
1 January 2022, with cumulative effect
recognised as an adjustment to the balances
of retained profits and non-controlling
interests at that date. The quantitative
impact on the financial statements is
summarised below.

2.

&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

2R BE @
22 B BENEHREE

(&)

BRRARE /R REER]
(BRI HREER)EE R
TEHMMT : (B)

(0 (&

R FE R ZIEET AR
AEEE ERVIRERD
HNIESR c BB E
HEAXSHNEREZEE
RIEIER 18 & B IR ET
HEE  ASECDEAHR
R2022F1 A1 BHZHEE
B EREEER] o 1
MFERAZIEFTAE » &
EBEMN2022F181H
R(VEEE R EMRBEN
Fir 75 o] $008 L B = BE A iR
ERIBEE (AIREB B
SR ERTAIE) ¢ (i)
HFAEEEMENRE
JE a7 T By 2= BB A IR RE T
HEE  REFEHRER
AERZE 2 RS EFE
NMIEfE R i = 2 R
B HHBMERNTEER
@z@zﬂuﬂto

= vor nE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

: Year ended 31 December 2023
W =023 12 A31 B IEEE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. HBE
2.2 Changes in accounting policies and 22 EHRENETREE
disclosures (continued) (88)
The nature and the impact of the new and revised AR AKEBRNHT R&(EST
IFRSs that are applicable to the Group are described (BRI BRELER YN EE &
below: (continued) SESMMT  (8)
() (continued) () (&)
Impact on the consolidated statements of $ A GEEI TR A S 2R B B2
financial position: &£
Increase/(decrease)
#m,/ (B)

As at As at As at

31 December [EENRBLIETNIo]ls 1 January
2023 2022 2022
R20235F 20225 120226
12A31H 12A31H 1A1HE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT ARBTTT

Assets BE

Deferred tax assets ELETIEE E 83,945 53,163 57,554
Total non-current assets FRBEERAE 83,945 53,163 57,554
Total assets BERE 83,945 53,163 57,554
Liabilities =

Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIEA R 84,504 52,641 58,189
Total non-current liabilities ~ JERENEE/A% 84,504 52,641 58,189
Total liabilities BELER 84,504 52,641 58,189
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and

disclosures (continued)

The nature and the impact of the new and revised

IFRSs that are applicable to the Group are described

below: (continued)

() (continued)

Impact on the consolidated statements of

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

2R BE @
22 B BENEHREE

(&)

38 FE A A 2 L O T AT R AR 48 2T
CEBS BT M £ A M0 T &

TEHMMT : (B)

(c)

(&)

HE G BENRIE %

financial position: (continued) £ (&)
Increase/(decrease)
2,/ (Ad)
As at As at As at
ERRDILY ] T 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022
R2023F R2022F R2022%F
12A31H 12H31H 1H1H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBFT
Net assets BERE (559) 522 (635)
Equity xR
Retained profits (included RABEAE (G AEA
in other reserves) ) (553) 487 (672)
Equity attributable to
shareholders of the
Company RARIRFREGER (553) 487 (672)
Non-controlling interests IR s (6) 35 37
Total equity AR (559) 522 (635)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

Year ended 31 December 2023
W =023 12 A31 B IEEE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. BitBE®w

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and 22 S BRENEFREE
disclosures (continued) ()
The nature and the impact of the new and revised AR AKEB RN HT R&EIET
IFRSs that are applicable to the Group are described (EBRMSREER YR EE &
below: (continued) SESMMT  (8)
(c) (continued) (c) (&)

Impact on the consolidated statements of A pHE S R

profit or loss:

Increase/(decrease)
For the year ended 31 December
#wm(R)
HZ=12A831HILEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT
Income tax expense FriSHi 5 2 1,081 (1,157)
Profit for the year F N F)E (1,081) 1,157
Attributable to: LA & 5 G
Shareholders of the Company ~ ANARIAEE (1,040) 1,159
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR A (41) (2)
(1,081) 1,157

Total comprehensive income

for the year FRNEEKELEE (1,081) 1,157

Attributable to: ATE A
Shareholders of the Company ~ ANARIAEE (1,040) 1,159
Non-controlling interests SEIE R A (41) (2)
(1,081) 1,157
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

The nature and the impact of the new and revised
IFRSs that are applicable to the Group are described
below: (continued)

() (continued)

Impact on the consolidated statements of
profit or loss: (continued)

The adoption of amendments to IAS 12 did
not have any material impact on the basic
and diluted earnings per share attributable
to ordinary shareholders of the Company,
other comprehensive income and the
consolidated statements of cash flows for
the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022.

2.

&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

2R BE @
2.2 S BENEHRFE

(&)

BRRARE /R REER]
(BRI HREER)EE R
TEHMMT : (B)

(0 (&

HEeHBRmXAZE
(&)

FMCEB g ER) %
125 (BT R) HEE
20234 2022412 A 31
HIEFEMNARQRLBR
REGEREAREER
- Hip 2wk R A O
ReERERTEMLMEKX

B2 488
5 gE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

: Year ended 31 December 2023
W =023 12 A31 B IEEE

2.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (ontinued 2. I BEw
2.2 Changes in accounting policies and 22 B BENEHREE

disclosures (continued) (&)

The nature and the impact of the new and revised AR AKEB RN HT R&EIET

IFRSs that are applicable to the Group are described (EBRMSREER YR EE &

below: (continued) FEFmmT : (8)

(d)  Amendments to IAS 12 International Tax d) (EBe:EA)FE12
Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules introduce 55 (B3] AN ) BY B 74 U 2%
a mandatory temporary exception from s,*—E*—:z"//E VU OFEEIR G
the recognition and disclosure of deferred AEMmKSHES EHRERE
taxes arising from the implementation of #84% (Organisation for
the Pillar Two model rules published by the Economic Co-operation
Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development) X H
and Development. The amendments also B Sz i = SLOAMR AR M A A
introduce disclosure requirements for HEIER B IER R F 5 o
the affected entities to help users of the ASR | R EA R o BZ{(E
financial statements better understand the HEVIGIIN S 23
entities’ exposure to Pillar Two income MR ERTE - AE B TE
taxes, including the disclosure of current tax MERFERAERN THEZE
related to Pillar Two income taxes separately Eﬁgﬁﬁuumiﬁ FTi5 %
in the periods when Pillar Two legislation % BIEESEZA
is effective and the disclosure of known or ’_:E)&HHF'? 5 & B BR B S A
reasonably estimable information of their — TSR fE 8 a9 BN ER R
exposure to Pillar Two income taxes in I8 - NFENEDEMAE
periods in which the legislation is enacted ' JE AR 1B M AR A R AR A
or substantively enacted but not yet in BZEERD A58
effect. The Group has not yet applied the st i SR E e
temporary exception during the current year BE BN EBEETE (8
because the entities comprising the Group HAER) NI HEZFE
are operating in jurisdictions in which the i RBAE B E B A
Pillar Two tax law has not yet been enacted FEERKEER - K
or substantively enacted. The Group will FEHE  NEEEARRE
disclose known or reasonably estimable AR e - KEBR K
information related to its exposure to Pillar REFIHERRAITEH
Two income taxes in the consolidated REFZFABEMGRE
financial statements by the time when BHREMEE k] 5B
the Pillar Two tax law has been enacted ARSI E_FERRRE
or substantively enacted and will disclose B B EEIRE g
separately the current tax expense or income BRGNS — AT
related to Pillar Two income taxes when it is TiAR R A BN ERR TR R 2 3k
in effect. e o

194 SENEZFERBERBENDERIE 2023FFH




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. SEHBE®

2.3 Issued but not yet effective IFRSs 23 D HEMHAEEEARERDN

The Group has not applied the following revised
IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements. The Group
intends to apply these revised IFRSs, if applicable,

(EIRR A 35 3R & 2 80)

AEE R AREZFMBRERT
RAKXTEHEMERKREXR
MEERTCERM B RE %
Al) - REBENE S EME

when they become effective.

RAZE BT B B 7 3R
HAER) (WERA) -
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture’
CEIBR B 5 S5 2RI ) B 1057 & KEEZHRIFE ) Ao &10R.2 [ B E L &8 M &7
CEIRR e a2 R ) 2285k (1851 A)
Amendments to IFRS 16
CEIBR B 5 2 Bl ) 28 165% (BFTAR)
Amendments to IAS 1
(BB gD E15% (BETA)
Amendments to IAS 1
(BRI FE 15% (BFTA)
Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7
(BEgERDFE 75 R
(BB B SR E2ER D F75% (BRI A)
Amendments to IAS 21

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback’
HEMEI R HE A

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current’
BESERTEKI R

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants’

W B RAE B FE BB BT

Supplier Finance Arrangements’

RIEBBELHE

Lack of Exchangeability?

CEIBR Rt 2RI ) 82158 ((BFTA) = ] 2

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 M2024F1 A1 Bk 2 &R
1 January 2024 FEHBER

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 2 M2025F1 A1 B2 BRIBH
1 January 2025 FEHRER

3 No mandatory effective date is determined but 3 REEER GBI A B E - BA#
available for adoption A
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The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of the impact of these revised IFRSs
upon initial application. So far, the Group has
expected that these standards are unlikely to
have significant effect on the Group’s financial
performance and financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

) Year ended 31 December 2023
W =023 12 A31 B IEEE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. 3 EE @

24 BEESTHEE

2.4 Material accounting policies

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long-term interest of generally not less than 20%
of the equity voting rights and over which it has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint
ventures are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at the Group’s share of net
assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Material accounting policies
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results
and other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate or joint venture,
the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's investments in the associates
or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition
of associates or joint ventures is included as part
of the Group’s investments in associates or joint
ventures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

: Year ended 31 December 2023
W =023 12 A31 B IEEE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. 3 EE @

2.4 EESHBE®)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

(continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss
of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its fair
value. Any difference between the carrying amount
of the associate or joint venture upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred
is measured at the acquisition date fair value which
is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether
to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a
business when the acquired set of activities and
assets includes an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability
to create outputs.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Material accounting policies (continued)
Business combinations and goodwiill (continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses
the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the previously held equity interest is remeasured at
its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified
as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount recognised for
non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the
acquiree over the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of
the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain
on bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

: Year ended 31 December 2023
W =023 12 A31 B IEEE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. 3 EE @

2.4 EESHBE®)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of
units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a
cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) and part of the operation within that unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of
in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Material accounting policies (continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, financial liability at fair
value through profit or loss and derivative financial
instruments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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: Year ended 31 December 2023
W =023 12 A31 B IEEE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (ontinued) 2. EETEEE @
2.4 Material accounting policies (continued) 24 BEESTBE®
Fair value measurement (continued) NRABEFE (&)

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in
the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required (other than inventories, deferred tax
assets, financial assets, investment properties and
non-current assets), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's
value-in-use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a
portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset
(e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an
individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise,
to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

X % Year ended 31 December 2023
BN =0023F 12 A31 B IEEE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

a) the party is a person or a close member of
that person’s family and that person

iii)

or

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent
of the Group;

b) the party is an entity where any of the

following conditions applies:

iii)

the entity and the Group are
members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or of a
parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Related parties (continued)

b)

the party is an entity where any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

iv) one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

V) the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group; and
the sponsoring employers of the
post-employment benefit plan;

Vi) the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a);

vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is @ member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

viii)  the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B O AR IEE
Year ended 31 December 2023
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2. BFHEHEw@
2.4 EESHBE®)

¥ BERRBEITE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost M - RE MK 1%¢;zﬁjz$/)jgj%\

less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying

at I & RAEARE B R 51 AR
ME - BE K& ﬁIEEE’JEXZIK
BRAREELRIMNEEEE
BUE (EAR T B 3t B LA E 42 E AR
B B R BRI

ME  BEERRKBEBRAE
FREENM - Bl
REMX  —RRELZHEB
BERTNE - £ A ERIE
EHBRT  TEREMAXRN
BEREBETEAMEAEEK
Ko NRYE - BB LRED

FEWHBEDHER  XEE
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are required to be replaced at intervals, the FHRERIEEIIE IS E I
Group recognises such parts as individual assets £ o

amount of the asset as a replacement. Where

with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

206 SNEZFERRBRNDERIE 2023FFH




2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Material accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings

ZEY

Machinery and motor vehicles
He2s R EDER

Electronic and other equipment
B MEMRE

Leasehold improvements

HEMERELE

\\)?r

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment
including any significant part initially recognised
is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. 3 EE @

2.4 EESHBE®)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings (including right-of-use assets) held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line
method to write off the cost of the investment
properties over the estimated useful lives. Where
the carrying amount of an investment property
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount,
it is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount. Any gains or losses on the retirement or
disposal of an investment property are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Customer relationship acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The customer relationship
has a finite useful life and is carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over the
expected useful life of the customer relationship,
which is 10 years. The expected useful life is
primarily related to property service contracts,
and is determined based on management’s best
estimate of the total period from which the benefits
will be derived from the customer relationship and
will reflect the consumption of future economic
benefits from the customer relationship, taking
into account: 1) the typical term of the property
service contracts, 2) the historical track record of
successful contract renewal. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

X % Year ended 31 December 2023
BN =0023F 12 A31 B IEEE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. 3 EE @

2.4 EESHBE®)

Research and development costs B B 2K

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

All research costs are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of

FrA AR E LR A
B e

MEMMEERBMELENH
{2 70 7 5 (B 5E 59 38 AR 52 X %
2 & 2E DAL A Bl B Y BT

completing the intangible asset so that it will be ATH - EETKEERNE
RAHEZEE ZBEEBN
MEERKEENZ - BFx
BX 7% TE B P % 1) & TR DA K e %A

available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the
asset will generate future economic benefits, the

availability of resources to complete the project St =ERAZHEEN Y
and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure B FeBaE RN IAELE S

during the development. Product development AR - T ZEEENE
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is AT BN EERTIERY -
expensed when incurred.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is
the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made
at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease terms and
the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

Buildings
EEEY)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. 3 EE @

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued) 24 EESTHBER®
Leases (continued) HE (&)
Group as a lessee (continued) AEEEREABEA (E)
(a)  Right-of-use assets (continued) (a) @EABEE &)

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or
the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

When a right-of-use asset meets the
definition of investment property, it is
included in investment properties. The
corresponding right-of-use asset is initially
measured at cost, and subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses in accordance with the Group’s policy
for “Investment properties”.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at
the present value of lease payments to
be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a
rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of
a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as an expense
in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

B ORI IR AR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

2. BifBEXw®
2.4 EESFBER @)
AE ()
AEBMERERA (5)

(b) HEERE

HERENHERHKA B
EHEHAELRNEEN
REIREFER - HERFK
BREENF(BREEZ
[B] 5E 15 3K ) R0 AE {7] W Al
BUR D48 B3 F
Ky ] S AHE R TAH
RARERI R EE RN
e - HEMNRITERE
REBESIB I TEITERE
BEERNTEERN
RIEEEM TR (RE
HIRMRASEITEZEE
RIERE) - THBURRIER
R R 1 B] 2R B A R
BHEBBNRNEFHB

&S

SRR RER AR o

Onewo Inc. Annual Report 2023

213




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

: Year ended 31 December 2023
W =023 12 A31 B IEEE

2.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. I BEw
2.4 Material accounting policies (continued) 24 BEESTBE®

Leases (continued) HE (')

Group as a lessee (continued) AEBEREBAA (BE)

(b)  Lease liabilities (continued) b) MHEEEGE)
In calculating the present value of lease NAEHRENTWNIRE
payments, the Group uses its incremental B AR HERSHRR
borrowing rate at the lease commencement BT B AKEEFBE
date because the interest rate implicit in the )ﬂﬁ&fﬁfﬁ'ﬂﬁ“ﬁ HAH) 38
lease is not readily determinable. After the SERFIETE - RFEH
commencement date, the amount of lease Az - HEBEMNSH
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion 38 0 DA fz Bt 1] B2 3488 0 N gk
of interest and reduced for the lease 21ELE B ENTK T LA
payments made. In addition, the carrying oo AN IR HIRE
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured =T FHEAE ) BERI
if there is a modification, a change in the =) (B - &S ek F
lease term, a change in lease payments RE (LB REHEE
(e.g., a change to future lease payments EAEEE)) WEEERHEE
resulting from a change in an index or rate) B Y i R R T (3R
or a change in assessment of an option to 8 AlEFH=t=HEaE
purchase the underlying asset. HBREE °

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value (c) MHHEEREEEZEH
assets E
The Group applies the short-term lease 7N £2 [E 1545 HAFE E R EA
recognition exemption to its short-term REANRFEHREE (A8
leases (that is those leases that have a s B EiEst 2 HE &
lease term of 12 months or less from NEBHKUATITETE
the commencement date and do not HEES®REENHEE) -
contain a purchase option). It also applies HNEGEBEEEHER
the recognition exemption for leases w%é%ﬁﬁﬁ#%ﬁﬁz%ﬁ{f
of low-value assets to leases that are BEMHAE - EHHEE MK
considered to be of low value. Lease ﬁfﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂfé’ﬁﬁfﬁ%&(
payments on short-term leases and of EHRBRNIZEREER S
low-value assets leases are recognised as X o

expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

214 SDEZFERERBERNOERIF 2023FFH




2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income, and
fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them. With
the exception of trade and retention receivables
that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied
the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect
of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value,
plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
and retention receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under
IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI") on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

:; Year ended 31 December 2023
W =023 12 A31 B IEEE

2. BFHEHEw@
2.4 EESHBE®)

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business
model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a
business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and
selling. Financial assets which are not held within
the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace are recognised on the trade date, that
is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Material accounting policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

(continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income (equity
investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to
classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income when they meet
the definition of equity under IAS 32 Ffinancial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for
trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are
never recycled to the statement of profit or
loss. Dividends are recognised as other income
in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, except
when the Group benefits from such proceeds
as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial
asset, in which case, such gains are recorded
in other comprehensive income. Equity
investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not subject to
impairment assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

X % Year ended 31 December 2023
BN =0023F 12 A31 B IEEE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (ontinued) 2. BiHE®
2.4 Material accounting policies (continued) 24 EEEFBE®
Investments and other financial assets REREMERERE (&)

(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or URABHEITEBESH T A
loss EHEENERNEE

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss LARBHEEBEHZFH T A
are carried in the statement of financial position at EHIEENEREETIUAAR
fair value with net changes in fair value recognised BENRMBERIESE WA
in the statement of profit or loss. NEESIFBAINIERXF
This category includes equity investments which %88 Bl B FE 7N £ B 3 4 S )
the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify EHRIEU AR EBEIERH
at fair value through other comprehensive income. et AHM A2 mWE D ER
Dividends on the equity investments are also fERESE - XS RERES. - IR
recognised as other income in the statement of AR B IR B R A RE
profit or loss when the right of payment has been RAEMUZS o

established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

3 the rights to receive cash flows from the
asset have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

TR ()
24 BEEESTHHE ®

RIEBRATHEE

ERIMBRT - BEAR R
—HEMEE (K (WER) —
HEMEEN—#D % — A
UNemEEN—& D) (B
REBEW A Gt TBAOR R+ M
BR)

REEWDRERENENE
JERm 8

AEEEEREEEWRDRSE
MERERN - XERE[ETF
LHARRAE =T BERER
EPREXMNABRERENE
T R@OAKECDEREEEN
BARE D B K EH  F(b)AR
SEB#EARERIREEENR
REoREBRE@DE  ECEE
BERESIE

Onewo Inc. Annual Report 2023




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

: Year ended 31 December 2023
W =023 12 A31 B IEEE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. 3 EE @

2.4 EESHBE®)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if,
and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs"”) for all debt instruments not
held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are
based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For
those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information. The
Group considers that there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

) Year ended 31 December 2023
W =023 12 A31 B IEEE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. 3 EE @

2.4 EESHBE®)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default
when contractual payments are 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also
consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that
the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they
are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for trade and
retention receivables which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit
risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade and retention receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or
when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B O AR IEE
Year ended 31 December 2023
BN = 2023512 A31 B ILFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. 3 EE @

2.4 EESHBE®)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial
recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or
payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of
loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
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attributable transaction costs. The Group’s financial IR - AR INBEEEGR

liabilities include trade and notes payables, other %&$?§ﬁ§;{{ o REEBMNE R

payables and accruals, financial liabilities at fair BEDRE S FENKIE K ER
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Subsequent measurement BETE
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depends on their classification as follows: A9 48 -

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss include financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss
are designated at the initial date of recognition,
and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied.
Gains or losses on liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss, except for the gains
or losses arising from the Group’s own credit
risk which are presented in other comprehensive
income with no subsequent reclassification to the
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain
or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss
does not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

: Year ended 31 December 2023
W =023 12 A31 B IEEE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. 2FEHE @

24 EESHBE ®

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, trade and notes payables,
interest-bearing bank borrowings, lease liabilities
and other payables and accruals are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of
financial position comprise cash on hand and at
banks, and short-term highly liquid deposits with a
maturity of generally within three months that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value
and held for the purpose of meeting short-term
cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, and short-term deposits
as defined above, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

: Year ended 31 December 2023
W =023 12 A31 B IEEE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. 3 EE @

2.4 EESHBE®)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of
a past event and it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation
to the provision of smart property solution
services for general repairs of defects occurring
during the warranty period. Provisions for these
assurance-type warranties granted by the Group
are initially recognised based on sales volume
and past experience of the level of repairs and
returns. The estimation basis is reviewed on an
ongoing basis and revised where appropriate. The
warranty-related cost is revised annually.

A contingent liability recognised in a business
combination is initially measured at its fair value.
Subsequently, it is measured at the higher of (i) the
amount that would be recognised in accordance
with the general policy for provisions above and
(ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, the amount of income recognised in
accordance with the policy for revenue recognition.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside
profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss and does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt IR M
‘ Year ended 31 December 2023
o N =003 12 A31B LLFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. EEHBE @
2.4 Material accounting policies (continued) 2.4 BEEESHHE @

Income tax (continued) FRBH (&)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible FrER R E R =58 - 458

temporary differences, and the carryforward of A AHMIEBEBE R L E A KB

unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. BREERYSERELTTIE

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent BE - EEFTIIEE E 1L 7] 62

that it is probable that taxable profit will be FERRIAE - B el 3R &R =

available against which the deductible temporary . AENRSERER? L

differences, and the carryforward of unused tax RE)AMIEEE A B A E

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, EERENBRT PR

except: R MEATIERERIN -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

2.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. BItEER®
2.4 Material accounting policies (continued) 2.4 BEEEHEE 5

Income tax (continued) FRiS Bt (&)
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is NEREHAREEELEHRIBEE
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and EFEEE YA THBEIgES
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable T PERF A LA B B & 2 ek
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to O EEFRIBEE ER - HIEH
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be BEZBREEE - AR IELER
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are HEESNEREERFFH T
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and & WIER e B B HIEZE A
are recognised to the extent that it has become B DA U [B] 2 26 3k 2f 9 1 A& 7 I8
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be BER T AER -

available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

: Year ended 31 December 2023
W =023 12 A31 B IEEE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. 3 EE @

2.4 EESHBE®)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or equity is recognised in
other comprehensive income or equity and not in
profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
are offset if and only if the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business
combination, but not satisfying the criteria for
separate recognition at that date, are recognised
subsequently if new information about facts and
circumstances arises. The adjustment is either
treated as a reduction to goodwill (as long as it
does not exceed goodwill) if it occurred during the
measurement period or if it occurred outside the
measurement period, it is recognised in profit or
loss.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Material accounting policies (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair
value where there is reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and all attaching conditions
will be complied with. When the grant relates to
an expense item, it is recognised as income on a
systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised when control of goods or services is
transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services.

The Group provides community space living
consumption services, commercial and urban
space integrated services and AloT and BPaa$S
solution services. Revenue from contracts with
customers is recognised when services are rendered
to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange of those services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a
variable amount, the amount of consideration is
estimated to which the Group will be entitled in
exchange for transferring the goods or services
to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

: Year ended 31 December 2023
W =023 12 A31 B IEEE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. 2FEHE @

24 EESHBE ®

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Community space living consumption services

Community space living consumption services
comprise: (i) Residential property services; (ii)
Home-related asset services; and (iii) Other
community value-added services.

Residential property services primarily include
cleaning services, security services, gardening
services and repair and maintenance services to
property owners, property owners’ associations or
residents for residential properties. For property
services, revenue is recognised when services
are rendered to the customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange of those services.

The Group charged property services fees in respect
of the property services on a lump sum basis and
on a management remuneration basis.

For property services income from properties
managed on a lump sum basis, where the Group
acts as the principal and is primarily responsible
for providing the property services, the Group
recognises the fee received or receivable from
property developers, property owners and residents
as its revenue and all the costs incurred in providing
the residential property services as its cost of
services.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Community space living consumption services

(continued)

For property service income of properties managed
on a management remuneration basis, the Group
acts as an agent and recognises the service
income, which is calculated by reference to the
total property management fee receivable from
the property owners, as its revenue for arranging
and monitoring the services provided by service
suppliers to the property owners.

Home-related asset services mainly include home
sale and rental brokerage services and home
redecoration and furnishing services. Revenue
from home sale and rental brokerage services is
recognised at the point in time when the services
are rendered and accepted by the customers.
Revenue from home redecoration and furnishing
service is recognised over time, in the amount the
Group has a right to bill, because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.

Other community value-added services mainly
include commission income from carpark space
sales assistance services, which are recognised on
a net basis at point in time when the control of
properties or the use rights of car park spaces are
transferred to the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

: Year ended 31 December 2023
W =023 12 A31 B IEEE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. 2FEHE @

24 EESHBE ®

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Commercial and urban space integrated
services

Commercial and urban space integrated services
mainly include property and facility management
services, value-added services for developers and
urban space integrated services.

The Company offers comprehensive property
and facility management services including (i)
commercial property services which focus on
tasks of the property management of commercial
premises and (ii) integrated facility management
services which focus on addressing the workplace
needs arising from the non-core business processes
of occupiers. The Group bills for services provided
on a monthly basis and recognises it as revenue
in the amount to which the Group has a right to
invoice and that corresponds directly with the value
of performance completed.

Value-added services for developers mainly include
(i) sales center and model room management; (ii)
and pre-delivery support services; and (iii) building
maintenance services. The Group agrees the price
for each service with the property developers
upfront and issues a monthly bill to the property
developers which varies based on the actual level
of service completed in that month. Revenue from
value-added services is recognised over time in the
amount to which the Group has a right to invoice,
because the property developers simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

AloT and BPaa$ solution services

AloT solutions mainly include smart property
solutions.

Smart property solutions mainly include equipment,
design, integration and construction which are
highly interdependent and interrelated. The Group
accounts for these goods and services as a single
performance obligation. Revenue from smart
property solutions is recognised over time, using an
output method to measure progress towards the
complete satisfaction of the service, because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance
as the Group performs and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

BPaaS solutions mainly include remote operation
services.

The service fees are charged based on the nature
of services the clients subscribe for as well as the
number of service requests, which are generally
payable on a monthly or quarterly basis. Revenue
from BPaa$S solutions is recognised overtime when
such services are rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt IR M
‘ Year ended 31 December 2023
o N =003 12 A31B LLFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. 3 EE @

2.4 EESHBE®)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognised, on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received, or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the
related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as
inventories, property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract
with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of
the following criteria are met:

(a) The costs relate directly to a contract or to
an anticipated contract that the entity can
specifically identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources
of the entity that will be used in satisfying
(or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and
charged to the statement of profit or loss on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer
to the customer of the goods or services to which
the asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed
as incurred.

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which
operate in Chinese Mainland are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain proportion of
their payroll costs to the central pension scheme.
The contributions are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

: Year ended 31 December 2023
W =023 12 A31 B IEEE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. 3 EE @

2.4 EESHBE®)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Material accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than RMB. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates that approximate
to those prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

i Year ended 31 December 2023
BN =0023F 12 A31 B IEEE

2. BFHEHEw@
2.4 EESHBE®)

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange fluctuation reserve, except to
the extent that the differences are attributable to
non-controlling interests. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the cumulative amount in the reserve
relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement
of cash flows, the cash flows of certain overseas
subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of certain
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the
year are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

The major judgements, key assumptions concerning the
future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements and have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Provision for expected credit losses on
trade and retention receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs
for trade and retention receivables. The provision rates
are based on ageing for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer

type).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

% Year ended 31 December 2023

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on
trade and retention receivables (continued)

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions are expected to deteriorate over
the next year which can lead to an increased number of
defaults, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of a customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group's
trade and retention receivables is disclosed in note 36 to
the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Provision for ECLs on payments

on behalf of property owners for
properties managed on a management
remuneration basis

Payments on behalf of property owners for properties
managed on a management remuneration basis
represent advances made to or operating costs paid on
behalf of property owners for properties managed on
a management remuneration basis. The ECL on these
receivables is determined by the Group based on (i) the net
present value of expected future cash flows of respective
property management projects, which has included a
number of estimations and inputs, such as estimated
property management fee, estimated collection rates and
estimated operating costs; (ii) past repayment history; and
(iii) where material, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the respective property management projects
and the economic environment.

The Group's estimation on expected future cash flows of
the relevant property management projects and forecast
of economic conditions may not be representative
of the actual cash flows in the future and significant
management estimates are required in the estimates.
When the actual outcome of expectation in future is
different from the original estimates, such differences
will impact the carrying amount of payments on behalf
of property owners for properties managed on a
management remuneration basis and the amount of
ECLs provided or reversed in the periods in which such
estimates have been changed. The information about the
ECLs on these receivables is disclosed in note 24 to the
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

% Year ended 31 December 2023

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Classification of car parking spaces
between investment properties and
inventories

The Group holds a certain amount of investment
properties, which primarily consist of carpark spaces
owned by the Group, which are mainly purchased from
the controlling shareholder for earning rentals and/or
capital appreciation. Judgement is made by management
on determining whether a car parking space is designated
as an investment property or an inventory. The Group
considers its intention of holding the properties at the
acquisition stage of the related car parking spaces for
financial statement classification of these car parking
spaces.

Car parking spaces intended to be held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation are accounted for as
investment properties in non-current assets and measured
initially at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, these
car parking spaces are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Impairment of goodwiill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value-in-use of the cash-generating units to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value-in-use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of
goodwill at 31 December 2023 was RMB3,700,222,000
(2022: RMB3,700,222,000). Further details are given in
note 17.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation are calculated on the
straight-line basis to write off the cost of each item of
property, plant and equipment and intangible asset to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated
useful lives and dates that the Group places the items of
property, plant and equipment into productive use reflect
the directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of
the Group’s property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
and unabsorbed depreciation allowances to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits would be
available against which the losses and other deductible
temporary differences could be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that could be recognised,
based on the likely timing and extent of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

% Year ended 31 December 2023
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value-in-use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value-in-use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.

Leases — Estimating the incremental
borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR") to measure lease liabilities. The IBR
is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to
borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have
to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not
enter into financing transactions) or when it needs to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major product lines.

During the reporting period, the Group was principally
engaged in the provision of community space living
consumption services, commercial and urban space
integrated services and AloT and BPaaS solution services in
the PRC. Management reviews the operating results of the
business as a single operating segment to make decisions
about resources to be allocated. Therefore, the executive
directors regard that there is only one segment which is
used to make strategic decisions.

The principal operating entities of the Group are domiciled
in the PRC and majority of revenue is derived in the PRC
during the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2023, except for the equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income, majority of the non-current assets
of the Group were located in the PRC.
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HBEHRR - KB WABREFE -

MN2023F 128318 ' BIEETAUR
REEFEAEEH T AHEMEZEEK
mEREREI  REBXRIHDIER
BEEHMARFE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF I SRR MR
. Year ended 31 December 2023
W =023 12 A31 B IEEE

5. REVENUE o

Revenue mainly comprises proceeds from community
space living consumption services, commercial and urban
space integrated services and AloT and BPaaS solution
services. An analysis of the Group’s revenue and cost of
services by category for the reporting period is as follows:

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

Types of goods or services 78 i 2K AR 7% 38 B
Community space living consumption services HEZEEEEEE
Commercial and urban space integrated services & 1Ak 1 22 fE 4R

WA

WAXTEREREHE=RAETEE
ARTS - BRI T 2= AR S RS A K
AloT K BPaaSHE R 75 RARTE B FT 15 5K
I o AEBENREHRBUAR RS
RAIZERI AT -

WADITET -

2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTTT

AR 7 18,738,439 16,583,191
&R 11,664,410 11,144,209

AloT and BPaa$S solutions AloT N BPaaSfE/R 7 Z 2,780,609 2,378,403

Total revenue from contracts with customers BEAXWA4RRE

33,183,458 30,105,803

Timing of revenue recognition LON A1
RE AR EE R
Goods or services transferred at a point in time 7 ek AR 1,247,870 1,307,878
Services transferred over time BE By [ 855 1Y) AR 75 31,935,588 28,797,925
Total revenue from contracts with customers EPEAWABEER 33,183,458 30,105,803
The following table shows the amounts of revenue —Fi%?ﬁkﬁjﬁ(\\iﬁiﬁﬂ%ﬂq‘l']\/\ﬂﬁﬁm
recognised in the current reporting period that were NE RS e AR ASEE
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Revenue recognised that was included
in contract liabilities at the beginning RIERYFAEREER

of the reporting period BRI

4,514,977 4,167,711
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE (continued)
Performance obligations

For community space living consumption services (except
for home sale and rental brokerage services, and carpark
space sales assistance services) and commercial and urban
space integrated services, the performance obligation is
satisfied over time as services are rendered to customers.
The Group bills the amount for services provided on
monthly basis or pre-charges service fee on annual basis
which will be paid shortly after invoice. The Group has
elected the practical expedient as described in IFRS
15.121(b) for not to disclose the remaining performance
obligations for these types of contracts.

For smart property solutions in AloT solution services,
the sale of equipment and installation services are highly
interdependent, thus, customers cannot benefit from
the equipment or installation services either on their
own or together with other resources that are readily
available to the customer. A bundle of sale of equipment
and installation services is accounted for as a single
performance obligation. The performance obligation is
satisfied over time as services are rendered and payment
is generally due within 30 days from the date of billing.
A certain percentage of payment is retained by customers
until the end of the retention period as the Group’s
entitlement to the final payment is conditional on the
satisfaction of the service quality by the customers over a
certain period as stipulated in the contracts.

5.

&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

WA )
BHEE

iR EREEEERE (REEH
EREERRLIRG AR EAHE R
4N R M Z= F AR A IR M
5 BHRERRAEPIRHERSRE
R EERETT - AEEE A WIARE
HERBENOFBXEBEFRUREE - &
ERANAAZERRYAN - NEHE
ERC(BEBRMBHRELER)E 155 E
121(b)RATAUE BB BB TE - T
THREBEUBSHNFSRBEOEE -

FLAIOTEER T RIRIF P E S W EME
RITEME - RIBHE R LERBEH
= EKRE - Bt EPEEKSER
BERBER A ERE H i ERIER
BHRLRRBTEm - NENREH
ERRERBER-HEBNENE
EARR - BROE TR IR IZ H A5 BERS
FHEBET  IRBEERNHAEAHE
30RAEH - RPRE—FEA DL
NREEREHER - THRARHE
ERSANTNENGFREFEA
HREN—BEEABEREEERRT
MBRITFEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF I SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
N = 2023 12 431 B ILFE

6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 6. HM AR W FE

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Interest income FEWA 124,479 46,068
Government grants* BT f B 158,908 179,000

WARBEFEEEZEHIA

Fair value gains on financial assets at fair value EHERNEREENAL
through profit or loss e 72,230 9,589
IAREBETEBEEHTA
Fair value gains on financial liabilities at fair EHERNEREENAA
value through profit or loss EEkRE 191,792 -
Gain on disposal of investment properties** SR B M 5 RO Ueas * * 40,948 22,357
Gain on disposal of items of property, plantand ~ HE®E - BE - KEEEH
equipment Wz 36,070 145
Gain on disposal of joint ventures and associates ~ HEAE M E R E A R MM 99,159 31,856
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries TEWBARNER (16,499) (899)
Gain on remeasurement of the previously held BT EAERE CBE R
interest in an associate T ) s - 215,563
Foreign exchange differences, net HINE = B2 FE 230 53,125
Gain on cash flow hedge (transfer from equity) Renstivlas (EakEs) - 11,759
Other non-operating income*** H At I A *** 12,606 2,051
719,923 570,614
* There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies & F1E B 52 55 15 B AR 8 A {rT R S K 1
relating to these grants. ek G EE -
s The Group's investment properties primarily consist of the B REEWKE Y% F EHERE B R
use right of car parking spaces, which are purchased from BRREBEETFE=FHEELFEHEA
the controlling shareholder and leased to third parties. B °
***  The Group’s non-operating income mainly represents rx REBEEELEWAFERRED TR
the compensation income charged to counter parties MR EEN T NETRERES BB
associated with the non-compliance or breach of contracts BEEUA o

by the counter parties.
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FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

BE KA
RERADHWT :

2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBEFIT
Interest on bank loans IRITERFE - 625
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFE 8,538 10,603
8,538 11,228
-t
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8. HiAlAIHE
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ RNEBMBATFB &R, (FFA)
(crediting): UTRIEREE :
Notes 2023 2022
BtaE 20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARET T
Cost of services provided TR AR TG B AR 27,457,653 24,818,740
Cost of inventories sold HEFEKA 914,038 1,056,313
Depreciation and amortisation* & N g > 1,016,165 854,702
Research and development costs INELID PN 376,739 412,459
Lease payments not included in the Rt AHEB BT
measurement of lease liabilities HERR 16 94,485 65,663
Auditors’ remuneration E= el 5,472 3,491
Employee benefit expense (excluding  EE@FIFEX (T8
directors’ and chief executive's EERERITHRAER
remuneration (note 9)): B (H7a2£9)) :
Wages and salaries TENG® 9,483,332 9,188,247
Pension costs, housing funds, BINESER - FEAE
medical insurances and other & BERRNEEMD
social insurances** R x> 1,793,728 1,717,311
11,277,060 10,905,558
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF I SRR MR
) Year ended 31 December 2023
N = 2023 12 431 B ILFE

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 8. FATFIE @
Notes 2023 2022
okza 2023 & 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T ARETIT

Impairment losses on financial assets,

net: SREEREBEFRE
Impairment losses on trade and B 5 FEWRIE R FE U
retention receivables, net REBESBEEEFEE 23 193,937 91,001
Impairment losses on financial assets st ATBFRIE ~ & K&
included in prepayments, deposits e R IA R 5 Bl
and other receivables, net & E R EEEFRE 24 77,066 65,036
271,003 156,037
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEW% « WERRE
plant and equipment T8 B B W (36,070) (145)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries LEMBARKERE 16,499 899
& The depreciation and amortisation included in the cost of * REEEHFTARBERBEE AT E
service provided aggregated to RMB878,733,000 (2022: N A AR 878,733,000 (2022
RMB734,882,000) for the year. & : AR¥734,882,0007T) °
oS There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by o N5 B & E X A B ERURER B fROK T
the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of IR BERR o

contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS" AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION

9.

Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive’s remuneration

for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules,

section 383(1)(a), (b),

(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation, is as follows:

Chairman, executive director and

general manager:
Mr. Zhu Baoquan

Executive director:
Mr. He Shuhua

Non-executive directors:
Mr. Yao Jinbo
Mr. Wang Wenjin (b)
Mr. Zhang Xu ()
Mr. Sun Jia (b)
Mr. Zhou Qi (b)

EER HTESREME:

rREEE

EOEEE
s

FHES
R
INERL(D)
REZL®)
AERED)
BEELN)

Directors'/

supervisors'

fees

E3/E3he
RMB'000
ARBT T

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind

LER- Ll
RiEA
RMB'000

ARBT L

1114

131

B ORI IR AR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BLEFE

RIBCEMRAD - BECARURG) 5
383(1)(@) * (b) * () R() R KA 7] (&
BESNRAEM) RODE2H - AF
FES  ESRERTHRAENM
BEWT

2022
2W00F
Pension
costs,
housing
funds,
medical
insurances
and other
Discretionary social
bonuses insurances Total
BAEER-
EEMES
EERER
MR Hideke it ait
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETT  ARETT NSO
5,748 101 6,963 6,837
3,208 101 4,046 3,352
- - 135 123
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF I SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
I 22023512 A31H IEEE

9. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND 9. EE -EERBSITHA
CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION S o

(continued)

2022
20225
Pension
costs,
housing
funds,
medical
Salaries, insurances
Directors'/ allowances and other
supervisors'  and henefits  Discretionary social
fees in kind bonuses insurances Total
BACER
ftEARE
#ie BT BRRBE
BE/EEHe LUET MEEL  HtdeRR At ait

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETR ARBTL ARETL  ARETT BRSO

Independent non-executive directors: (3)  BUFERITES : (a)

Mr. Chen Yuyu REFRE 135 - - - 135 3
Ms. Law Elizabeth BExat 135 - - - 135 3
Mr. Shen Haipeng st it 135 - - - 135 3
Mr. Song Yunfeng RERSH 135 - - - 135 33
Supervisors: EE:
Ms. Xiang Yun mELT 126 - - - 126 588
Ms. Han Huihua (b) BEELT(h) - - - - - =
Mr. Wu Jianxia RElfsE - 565 2,000 101 2,666 2514
801 2,416 10,956 303 14,476 13,546
There were no other emoluments payable to the directors FAMBERESIFEMME (2022
during the year (2022: Nil). FE) o
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9.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS" AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Independent non-executive
directors

In 2022, Mr. Chen Yuyu, Ms. Law Elizabeth,
Mr. Shen Haipeng and Mr. Song Yunfeng were
appointed as independent non-executive directors
of the Company.

Executive, non-executive directors
and supervisors

The emoluments of Mr. Wang Wenjin, Mr. Zhang
Xu, Mr. Sun Jia, Mr. Zhou Qi and Ms. Han Huihua
in relation to their services rendered for the Group
during the year were borne by China Vanke and
not allocated to the Group as management of the
Company considers there is no reasonable basis for
such allocation. There was no arrangement under
which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

B ORI IR AR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

EHM

(a)

(b)

BYFYITES

R2022F - MEFHhE - BE
EL  REBEE  REE
EEEZEARNRRIEILIE
TE=E -

gﬁ CHBTESERE

FREXERE - RBLE -
BRELE BEFEERBEE
X+ /37K 5 B R A AR 7% O i B
HEREEAE  MADET
AEE - ARARREEER
RENELE/BKE - FR
W EEEHRENXFBRELM
HENR T BE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRMET
: Year ended 31 December 2023
N = 2023 12 431 B ILFE

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. EEESEMES
The five highest paid employees during the year FALELESTHNEERSMEES
included two directors (2022: two directors), details of (2022F - MBEE) - HEFBF1S
whose remuneration are set out in note 9 above. The HR EXH:E9 - ERNBE N=F AT
remunerations of the remaining 3 individuals (2022: 3 (20224 : =4 A+) B EBNE % a0
individuals) for the year are as follows: T :

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥EF T ARBTIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RBFEMER 4,814 1,993
Discretionary bonuses BB EAL 6,367 5,895
Pension costs, housing funds, medical BRSER  FEQES -
insurances and other social insurances BEERR R A2 REE 367 352
11,548 8,240
The number of non-director highest paid employees whose FMEUATSHEANIEES S H M
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: EBAZWAT :
2023 2022
2023 20224
HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000 3,000,001 523,500,000/ 7T - 3
HKD3,500,001 to HKD4,000,000 3,500,001% 724,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HKD4,000,001 to HKD4,500,000 4,000,001 %7 CL24,500,000% 7T 1 -
HKD5,000,001 to HKD5,500,000 5,000,001 7t £5,500,000/%8 7T 1 -
3 3
During the year, no highest paid employees waived or FARERSHFHEEREXR BN
agreed to waive any remuneration. ZEAEM o
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11.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profit arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

The provision for Chinese Mainland income tax was based
on a statutory rate of 25% (2022: 25%) of the taxable
profits during the year as determined in accordance with
the PRC Income Tax Law and the respective regulations.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
("EIT”") and Implementation Regulation of the Enterprise
Income Tax Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is
(i) 25% (2022: 25%), or (ii) 15% (2022: 15%) if the
subsidiaries are qualified as high and new technology
enterprises or registered in the western region, Shenzhen
Qianhai region and Guangdong Henggin region of the
PRC and fulfill certain requirements.

The subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong is subject to
Hong Kong profits tax at the rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%)
on any estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax
has been made as the Group has no assessable profits
derived from or earned in Hong Kong during the year.

The major components of income tax expenses are as
follows:

11.

&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

FriEHiBax

AEBAREEBLREAKENKE
REFTREMEERENRIAEEED
i IR E B EEBAAEN

A B P HE BT A5 R A B O AR IR (R
ARKXMBEMGEE) MEBAREE
RERNERFEFEA25% (2022 4F -
25% ) EERMEERE ©

BE(PEAREMBCZEMERE)
RAEEMBBIEABERIEH ) - FE
MEBARI(NEEAE25% (2022 4F -
25%) : H(NMKTBRARIEREAS
% EREASE - OF
AT Hb (@ % B 3R = i [ o A
VERAEHEBRTE  BBEREI5%
(2022%F : 15%) °

REBEMAEZAMBRRREANE
BBEENEMGETERBFEER
16.5% (20224 : 16.5% ) T R
MEEFGH - AR AEERFAL
BERBSEEIRINERTAE - &
WEEBFESHELBME -

FEMBINESERBAWT |

2023 2022
20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARBFIT

(Restated)

(&&&5)

Current — PRC BNHER — 771,479 572,563
Deferred tax (note 21) EEFRIE (Ka221) (149,487) (139,042)
Total tax charge for the year FRBIAZ H AR5 621,992 433,521
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF I SRR MR
: Year ended 31 December 2023
N = 2023 12 431 B ILFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (contined) 11. FREFBEX @
A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable BARNTIRNEXZHB AT TR
to profit before tax at the statutory tax rates for the FEEERMEEMEAFENEBNR
jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of BIAMENRERS (Ee) BigERE
its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the BRI EAENFIBER Y AEEE - A
effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable NEEAME (BEEMR) BEERHRE
rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the effective tax HSEEN T -

rates, are as follows:

2023 2022
2023 20226
RMB'000 RMB'000 %
ARET T ARETT %
Profit before tax BRI 2,657,821 2,020,773
Tax at the statutory tax rate RAEEN XA E A 664,455 25.0 505,193 25.0
Lower tax rate for specific provinces A D3 #ERMHR
or enacted by local authority gl (89,497) (3.4) (74,447) 3.7)
Profits and losses attributable to joint A &b % J B 1\ A FE (G A1l
ventures and associates K EiE 5,912 0.2 2,387 0.1
Super deduction for research and
development expenses W SRR (44,562) (1.7) (44,817) (2.2)
Super deduction for property, plant
and equipment WE - R REBBREEN - - (24,949) (1.2)
Income not subject to tax BREHHAHBA - - (56,752) (2.8)
Expenses not deductible for tax* B 33,455 13 71,997 3.6
Tax losses utilised from previous periods & 23R 2 ) B 0% B 518 (41,095) (1.5) (24,560) (1.2)
Tax losses and temporary difference
not recognised ABERNTEEERERER 93,324 3.5 79,469 3.9

RERAAHEFENBEA

Tax charge at the effective rate T 621,992 23.4 433,521 215

& The nature of “Expenses not deductible for tax” mainly o [TANBAY | A M E E BN HRE
represented certain impairment losses of prepayments, MR B EREMNKIE - e REAmER
deposits and other receivables recognised, the welfare and HRIEWE TRERBE  REBBEEM
entertainment expenses exceeding the tax deduction limits 1S BUE ) 1R TE 80 B ORI S IR FE 80 18 A1l &
under EIT law and some miscellaneous non-deductible BEFRAS ARFTEESD D BTN
expenses incurred during the reporting period. FX °
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11.

12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The share of tax attributable to associates and joint
ventures amounting to RMB(5,912,000) (2022:
RMB2,387,000), is included in “Share of profits and losses
of joint ventures and associates” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The Group has elected to file combined tax return
incorporating assessable profit and tax losses attributable
to the Group as well as certain properties which are
managed by the Group on management remuneration
basis. As a result of such arrangement, the Group is able
to temporarily utilise tax losses from managing properties,
resulting in deferral of payment of certain provision. The
utilisation of such tax losses from managing properties and
the deferral of the Group’s payment of EIT provision had
no effect on the consolidated income statement during
the reporting period. For financial accounting purposes,
the Group has made relevant provision by debiting the
income tax expense and crediting tax liabilities based
on assessable profits at the applicable tax rates of their
property management subsidiaries.

DIVIDENDS

A final dividend of RMB0.241 per ordinary share (including
tax) totalling RMB284 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 was approved in the Company’s Annual
General Meeting on 16 June 2023 and paid during the
year.

The interim dividend of RMBO0.315 per ordinary share
(including tax) totalling RMB371
approved at the extraordinary general meeting on 8

million, has been

December 2023 and has been partly settled in new shares
of the Company and partly paid in cash in February 2024.
The number of ordinary shares settled and issued as scrip
dividends was 2,768,729 and the total amount of dividend
paid as scrip dividends was RMB63 million while cash
dividend amounted to RMB308 million.

11.

12.

&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

FrE®HmE

ELBERRREECERBEAAR
#(5,912,000)7C (20224 : AR
2,387,0007T) ' EFt AGHHEBEERD
[FE(H & & b R & QR FE K&
B

AEBEEEZRIGHBHE - A
AR ER B FE G DA R AN SR B % B TR B <
BIEME TYERNERBAE KR
B - AR LR AEEAERE
RERYENRBBE - EMEEX
NETRERE BRZFEEMEROR
HEBREAEEHEEINERMAER
REHRENENEHEERLEY
B-pygestnsg AREERE
MEEEMBARMBERRE » ER
FERBAE BB AL ELH
RARE - LEEDRERE -

8=

RARIR2023F6 416 B BFARE
BEREEMERMNEE2022F12 A
BS1THEFERARESREBRAR
02417 (BH) - HiFARK2848
BT WRERIKN -

7R2023F12 A8 H B HAAERRARE KX
FEHAENGREBRARKEO0.315
T (ER/) REFERKRE @ HFAR
¥371EEL WER2024F2 A 3P
DURRBRFBREE XD UBEEX
o MBRREGE KRBT T RRE
2/52,768,7290% © UK B X HY
MBEBEAEARK3EBL  Belk
EAARKI08EETT °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

 Year ended 31 December 2023

262

W 0023412 A31 BILEE

12. DIVIDENDS (continued) 12. BE ¢
At a meeting held by the Board on 22 March 2024, the R2024F3A22H=Eee% - =
Board recommended a final dividend of RMB0.777 per e @R RNEE2023F12 8318
ordinary share (including tax) totalling RMB916 million for IFEEZREBIEEAEEIREEIIRAR
the year ended 31 December 2023. The proposed final #0.7777C (EF) » BEARE916H
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023 is subject BT HE2023F12A31BLEFE
to the approval of the Company's shareholders at the B AR EEEARNRIREEIER
forthcoming annual general meeting. RRBFERE EHEE - HAIEE -

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13. AAREERREML TR

TO ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

iz

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts FIRERNABF B IIENRANNTE &
is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary A& B8 FE (5 2= A B LA&E NEETE
shareholders of the Company, and the weighted average @ijjufg$i’jﬂy\§5( - 0 B4R R
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as DA fz Bt P 4 A%

adjusted to reflect the rights issue during the year.
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares
in issue during the years ended 31 December 2023 and

2022.

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on:

REE2023F %20225F12 83181k
FEHME  AEBWESEITAE
R B o

FREABNHFTETER

2023 2022
2023F 20226
(Restated)
(5255))
Earnings 27
Earnings attributable to the ordinary
shareholders of the Company, used in the }ﬂﬁ/\.fr S GREARBFHAAF
basic earnings per share calculation (RMB'000) BREEGRRF(ARETT) 1,954,696 1,511,649
Shares )
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year used in the AR ESRERBNEEA
basic earnings per share calculation BT @RI T AR 2 1,178,393,636  1,082,207,650
Basic and diluted earnings per share (RMB) SRERNESEF (ARETT) 1.66 1.40

ENEEMMBRB RN ERAE 2023FFH

(o}



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ORI IR AR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  14. Y% « AERSE

Machinery Electronic
and motor and other Leasehold
Buildings vehicles  equipment improvements Total

BREY MRRMDER STRAMRE BENRKE &%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFL  ARMFL  ARMFT AREFIL ARETR

31 December 2023 R2023%12A31A
At 1 January 2023: R2023%1A18 :
Cost KA 212,005 373,062 431,674 211,051 1,227,792
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (38,362) (104,821) (275,866) (142,592) (561,641)
Net carrying amount RERE 173,643 268,241 155,808 68,459 666,151
At 1 January 2023, net of P2023F1 18 Bk Et
accumulated depreciation il 173,643 268,241 155,808 68,459 666,151
Additions HRE 7,387 96,222 148,969 26,365 279,443
Depreciation provided during
the year ERFRBENTE (10,745) (102,368) (108,879) (38,842) (260,834)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - (1,060) (415) (59) (1,534)
Disposals L& (3,898) (336) (367) - (4,601)
At 31 December 2023, net of M2023F128318  BMBRZE
accumulated depreciation & 166,387 260,699 195,116 56,423 678,625
At 31 December 2023: 12023F12 4318 ¢
Cost AR 211,776 463,025 571,392 237,858 1,484,051
Accumulated depreciation 2EHE (45,389) (202,326) (376,276) (181,435) (805,426)
Net carrying amount REFE 166,387 260,699 195,116 56,423 678,625
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt IR M
‘ ’}; Year ended 31 December 2023
o N =003 12 A31B LLFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERRZRE @

(continued)

Machinery Electronic
and motor and other Leasehold
Buildings vehicles equipment  improvements Total
BEY BERKDEH STREGRE HENFRE ait

RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR  ARETE  ARETL  AREBTR

31 December 2022 R2022%12A31H
At 1 January 2022 20221 R18 :
Cost KA 215,447 144,349 400,457 174,138 934,391
Accumulated depreciation 23t (34,860) (67,048) (226,738) (105,106) (433,752)
Net carrying amount EEFE 180,587 77,301 173,719 69,032 500,639
At 1 January 2022, net of R202F1A18 - EAMBR &R
accumulated depreciation & 180,587 77,301 173,719 69,032 500,639
Additions RE 9,247 236,663 45,759 36,913 328,582
Depreciation provided during
the year ERREENE (7,446) (43,651) (60,499) (37,486) (149,082)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBRA - - (17) = 7
Disposals e (8,745) (2,072) (3,154) - (13,971)
At 31 December 2022, net of 12022128318 BB R
accumulated depreciation & 173,643 268,241 155,808 68,459 666,151
At 31 December 2022: 2022F12 4318 :
Cost A 212,005 373,062 431,674 211,051 1,227,792
Accumulated depreciation ZihE (38,362) (104,821) (275,866) (142,592) (561,641)
Net carrying amount REFE 173,643 268,241 155,808 68,459 666,151
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, no property, plant R2023F K 202212 H318 » #E
and equipment was pledged. EHREADZE - BB KR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REMYI=

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥EF T ARBTIT

At 1 January: W1A1B :
Cost B 649,120 721,860
Accumulated depreciation REtinE (69,208) (64,750)
Net carrying amount BREFE 579,912 657,110

R1A18 - EMkR R

At 1 January, net of accumulated depreciation e 579,912 657,110
Additions NE 23,752 18,340
Depreciation provided during the year FANFHERENITE (19,517) (11,988)
Disposals HE (35,857) (83,550)

At 31 December, net of accumulated R12A318 - EMB R
depreciation e 548,290 579,912

At 31 December: M12HA318 :

Cost DN 630,604 649,120
Accumulated depreciation BErITE (82,314) (69,208)
Net carrying amount REFE 548,290 579,912

The Group’s investment properties primarily consist AEENKREUEDETIEZERREEE

of carpark spaces. The Group measures its investment il e AEEEZELKAN (BER K

properties at historical cost, including transaction costs. R)FTEEREMEYE -

The fair values of the Group's investment properties were M2023F12A31H " A"&EEK®

approximately RMB559,486,000 as at 31 December 2023 EMYMENRIABENRARKE

(2022: RMB637,345,000). These fair values are determined 559,486,0007T (2022 4F : AR

by the directors of the Company with reference to mainly 637,345,0007T) - ZE A AEER

the valuation performed, using the discounted cash flow AAREETELERXAURELR

("DCF") approach and the direct market comparison ([DCF) EMEEMHBELE ([DMC])

("DMC"). ETHMETAEE -
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B Ot RS AR YRR

Year ended 31 December 2023
W =023 12 A31 B IEEE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15. IREMYE =
The valuation for completed properties was arrived at BERENGENILEERRBRLY
by considering the capitalised income derived from the Fr8ENEWARENERE S -
existing tenancies and the reversionary potential of the 2 Z AR M2 RIEE T B ER
properties or, where appropriate, by reference to market SERINMEHEE (EE)tE o

evidence of transaction prices for similar properties in the
same locations and conditions.

The fair value of the investment properties is categorised AU E NN BERREARBE =R
into Level 3 valuations, i.e., fair value measured using fHE - F (R RS XER|YSE13
significant unobservable inputs, as defined in IFRS 13 Fair 8 — AN EEFERTHNEANNAE
Value Measurement. R ABBENARLEE -
16. LEASE 16. HE
The Group as a lessee TEBEREABA
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) FERHEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use AEBFRNFERAEEENERT
assets and the movements during the year are as BN R
follows:

2023 2022
piykE:3 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETFT

As at 1 January ®1A1H 231,058 253,086
Additions NE 239,620 102,273
Depreciation provided during the year FRHERENITE (116,912) (124,301)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR (83) =
As at 31 December M2A31H 353,683 231,058
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

16. LEASE (continued) 16. HE =)
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBEAARBA @)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the ENEAENEEER S
movements during the year are as follows: BRI -

2023 2022
piykE:3 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT

Carrying amount at 1 January R1B1BEREREE 233,544 250,547
New leases g 239,620 102,273
Accretion of interest recognised during

the year FERERF S BN 8,538 10,603
Disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR (88) =
Payments E (130,253) (129,879)
Carrying amount at 31 December MN12A31 BREREE 351,361 233,544
Analysed into: v

Current e 99,772 109,438

Non-current et 251,589 124,106
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed MEBEMNIEITHEERY
in note 36 to the financial statements. KT MIFE36 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRMET
' Year ended 31 December 2023
N = 2023 12 431 B ILFE

16. LEASE (continued) 16. HE
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBERAABEA 5
()  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation () MHEHEREBIZTHERANSIWN
to leases are as follows: N

2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREET T

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets ~ {FFHEEEMNITERR L 116,912 124,301
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEEBENFISRY 8,538 10,603
Expense relating to short-term leases/leases  EHFHE EEBEEZEME
of low-value assets HEARX 94,485 65,663
219,935 200,567
(d)  The total cash outflow for leases and future cash (d) MHEERSKHERENEE KA
outflows relating to leases that have not yet RHHER B ARKRIREN
commenced are disclosed in notes 32(b) and 36, DRI BRI FHRERME32(b)
respectively, to the financial statements. 36 °
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17.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

31 December 2023

At 1 January 2023:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2023%12H31H

M2023F1 818 :

17. BILEE

Customer

relationship

EFRHAR%
RMB’000
AR T T

B ORI IR AR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

Goodwill
[EkS
RMB'000
ARET T

Others
Hity
RMB’000
AKET T

Total

&t
RMB’000
ARET T

Cost (DN 5,971,911 3,700,222 12,107 9,684,240

Accumulated amortisation 2T (1,171,223) - (6,030) (1,177,253)

Net carrying amount AREHE 4,800,688 3,700,222 6,077 8,506,987
At 1 January 2023, net of R2023F1 818

accumulated amortisation B HIBR 2T 4,800,688 3,700,222 6,077 8,506,987

Additions NE 77,913 - 16,935 94,848

Amortisation provided during

the year REREHER B (615,507) - (3,395) (618,902)

Disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR (1,757) - - (1,757)
At 31 December 2023, net of M2023F12A31H -

accumulated amortisation REAGEEE: 5 4,261,337 3,700,222 19,617 7,981,176
At 31 December 2023: M2023F12H318 :

Cost %N 6,030,427 3,700,222 29,042 9,759,691

Accumulated amortisation RETH (1,769,090) - (9,425) (1,778,515)

Net carrying amount REFE 4,261,337 3,700,222 19,617 7,981,176
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

i Year ended 31 December 2023
BN =0023F 12 A31 B IEEE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 17. BREE »
Customer
relationship Goodwill Others Total
REBE EES = AT

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT AR®BTRT

31 December 2022 202212 A31H
At 1 January 2022: M202291H18 :
Cost (DN 5,139,992 3,700,222 12,097 8,852,311
Accumulated amortisation 2T (603,765) = (4,457) (608,222)
Net carrying amount BREFHE 4,536,227 3,700,222 7,640 8,244,089
At 1 January 2022, net of R2022%1 818 - EMK
accumulated amortisation S 4,536,227 3,700,222 7,640 8,244,089
Additions NE 831,919 - 310 832,229
Amortisation provided during
the year R A FT TR A B0 2 5 (567,458) - (1,873) (569,331)

At 31 December 2022, net of M2022F12831H *

accumulated amortisation BNk Rt 5H 4,800,688 3,700,222 6,077 8,506,987
At 31 December 2022; 72022412 A318 :

Cost (DN 5,971,911 3,700,222 12,107 9,684,240

Accumulated amortisation 2T (1,171,223) = (6,030)  (1,177,253)

Net carrying amount REFE 4,800,688 3,700,222 6,077 8,506,987
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17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill

Before 1 January 2023, goodwill acquired through
business combinations was allocated to the following

cash-generating units (“CGUs") for impairment testing:

o CWVS Holding Limited CGU

o Fujian Bon Property Group Co., Ltd. (the “Bon
Property”) CGU
o Shanghai Yango Intelligent Life Service Group Co.,

Ltd. (the “Yango Intelligent”) CGU

The Group has reorganised the structure of its operation
that changes the composition of the existing CGUs to
which the goodwill has been allocated. The original CGUs
had been reorganised and integrated into two new CGUs.
The reorganization was completed in July 2023. Goodwill
has been reallocated to the new CGUs using a relative
value approach to reflect the goodwill associated with the
reorganised units.

&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

7. BEE »

[k RN S

M2023F1 A1 B8R BBERKEH
BENEEEIEENTREELS
i - ETTRERIR :

. CWVS Holding LimitedR & &
X vs

0 BEBEEMESEEER QA
(MaRYmE]) ReEL B

. tEBAEELEEREEEE
RAB(BAEE])RSEL
B

AEECEHEEBELRE NEED
ERENREReELEMAMEK -
RECELBNUEEATES RWE
MBESELEN - HREHAR2023F
7TRZEK - BEERARYEEZE
MO THACELEN  ARBKRE
EHBMHEENEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

i Year ended 31 December 2023
BN =0023F 12 A31 B IEEE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continved) 17. BREE =

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued) BEREIR @

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the SRR RS ES BN EEER

new CGUs is as follows: (ERUNNE

RMB’000

ARHEET T

Residential business group* FEMERE* 3,418,955
Commercial and GSI business group** - BN REESEMEER 281,267
3,700,222

* Residential business group, focusing on providing service & FEVERB IR ATREBMNETE
to residential property owner with various price range, FFRERTS, 5 EEBHEE B,
aim to improve operating efficiency by advancing the E—EHEAMNMEERARIEED
Onewo strategy, which would create interconnection ¥CHMEEE B, NRREEHE -
between residential properties within a certain geographic
space.

*x Commercial and GSI business group, focusing on * % B B REEEMNEERETNA
providing service to enterprise and government-sponsored DY BIFREXEIEMRE a5
institution, including property management service, YRS RRTEG - RS IR AR A R BT
facility management service, and customized services to K B BT EH RAE o

government-sponsored institution.
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17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 17

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined
based on value-in-use of the CGUs to which the goodwill
is allocated. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets of the CGUs
approved by management covering a five-year period.
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using the estimated long-term growth rates below. The
growth rates do not exceed the long-term average growth
rate for the related industry in which the CGUs operate.
The pre-tax discount rates below reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant industry and the CGUs themselves
and macro-environment of the relevant region.

The key assumptions used in the estimation of value-in-use
were as follows:

Annual growth rates of revenue A F iR R
Long-term growth rate REI R &
Pre-tax discount rates T pTEL IR =

B ORI IR AR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

BEE @
BEREAE @

ﬁﬁ?i 5 iz B A] U Bl & 58 T AR IR 7

@Eﬁgﬁg}fﬁﬁﬁi 5 i 1) A EE
Fzﬂ:_ ux—ru {Eﬁﬁgﬁ/\ E@Tﬂ:/&
WhFHRReELESBSMUNBERENT
RIS METRR - HARAFHMNRE
/)|L§'E_T§FHJ//(T1E{|'§H§¢'E T
B oZERERBEFASELEUK
HEFEMHBTENRATHERE -
AT BEATRLER 3= ik T ERARRATT 3 %
IR & B4 B AR 5 HE Y 1 E LB LA
KB R REIRE

EREBEGEMAEIE/RKAOT

2023
plipky:3
10%~15%

2%
16%~17%

The Group assessed the impairment of goodwill at the end
of the reporting period and the recoverable amounts of
each CGUs had exceeded each of their carrying amounts,
and hence the goodwill was not regarded as impaired.

AEBRFERREEBETRET
ﬁ EESELBEMNMAIKE S EEER

BESENKEEER FAEBEITE
/JFME
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B HRRMET
Year ended 31 December 2023
N = 2023 12 431 B ILFE

18. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
AND ASSOCIATES

18.

(a) Investments in joint ventures XPKRE
2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETIT
Share of net assets (G B EFE 678,404 746,801
Goodwill on acquisition 1 B B 1) P 256,834 256,834
935,238 1,003,635

There is no individually material joint venture of the
Group.

The following table illustrates the aggregate
financial information of the Group’s joint ventures
that are not individually material:

AEETFEEMNEANA &
i

TRHFAAEELIEERIEX
VREDENETEER

2023 2022
2023F 2022F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T
Share of the joint ventures’ profit
for the year FAELEERERE (21,521) (12,656)
Share of the joint ventures’ total
comprehensive income EEEErELHNZREE (21,521) (12,656)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s ~ ANEERA LM EREN
investments in the joint ventures @R E 935,238 1,003,635

S
H\r}
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18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

AND ASSOCIATES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Investments in joint ventures

(continued)

The investment is adjusted for the post-acquisition
change in the Group's share of the investee’'s net
assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Impairment losses are incurred if, and
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred
post-acquisition and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows from
the investment that can be reliably estimated. The
Group assessed that there is no objective evidence
that the investment is impaired at the end of the
reporting period.

Investments in associates

&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

18. REELERKENTN
BE @

(a) REELENRE @)

RBBEBRAEBREREREHR
BEFENE IR EMAEZ
REGAMBEEBERYREE
HFEE - ZHEZRKBRE
£ — 1l E = FERE
MEBER MEBESMHaY
Al LR R E 2 Bat RARIR
TREELETE  USRLER
BEER - AKEFE  RRE
HIR YT HFERERENS
Bl -

(b) REERTRNKRE

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T AREEF T

Share of net assets JE(EEEFE 312,846 408,126
Goodwill on acquisition W B A P 2 165,592 327,416
478,438 735,542

There is no individually material associate of the
Group.

AEEYEEIERNBER
e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRMET
: Year ended 31 December 2023
N = 2023 12 431 B ILFE

18. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18. REELERBE AT
AND ASSOCIATES (continued) ?Qﬁ(/igg)

(b) REEEQNTINERE ®

TRHFAAEELIEERIEX
HEE S R R R TS E Y

(b) Investments in associates (continued)

The following table illustrates the aggregate
financial information of the Group's associates that
are not individually material:

2023 2022
piykE:3 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETFT

Share of the associates’ profit for the year F A FE(G S 2D B F (2,128) 3,107
Share of the associates' total [ERE S RAIM 2 E NS

comprehensive income G (2,128) 3,107
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's AEERBERARERN

investments in the associates fBIREE 478,438 735,542

RBBERAEBREREREHR

The investment is adjusted for the post-acquisition

change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net
assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Impairment losses are incurred if, and
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred
post-acquisition and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows from
the investment that can be reliably estimated. The
Group assessed that there is no objective evidence
that the investment is impaired at the end of the
reporting period.

EREIRG D ERATE 2023FFH

BEFENE B AR EMREZ
REFBANBEBIEHREE
HAE - EHEERKEERE
A —E %l =S FERE
WEBEE MERESFEHaY
A SR E 2 At RRR
i/}lbigi.’rv E.B E'J@?&E/ﬁ
BEERE  AEBEFGE  N®E
HR T TAFERERENT
BB -



19.

20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Listed equity investments, at fair value
Cushman & Wakefield plc

19.

&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

BEERUAAEEFER
HEBgr AHt2EKkE
KR ERE

ARREBEFEN ETRERE
Cushman & Wakefield plc

2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBEFIT
812,719 910,830

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income as
the Group considers these investments to be strategic in
nature.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

20.

iR E Al RS IEE AR
REEFEEEEZHTALMEZAEK
H EANEERAZEREALGE
BEMEE o

UAREBEETEEESS
SFAEHESNEMERE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTIT
Non-current: ERE :
BEANAAEBEFEZR
Equity investments designated at fair value HEBAZHERD
through profit or loss i &
—UAREEFTERN
— Unlisted equity investments, at fair value FE_EMREERE 976 976

The above equity investments were classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as the Group has
not elected to recognise the fair value gain or loss through
other comprehensive income.

FABRERERD B RAR L EER
ERHEEHFAZSHESNEHE
E A/AEEEEIREMEEE

SR A LEEES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRMET
: Year ended 31 December 2023
W =023 12 A31 B IEEE

21. DEFERRED TAX 21. EERHIE
The movements in deferred tax assets during the year are ELEFRIBEEFTANZEHOT :
as follows:

Allowance for
Accrued  impairment of Lease
Note expenses  receivables  Tax losses liabilities Total

B
it EiRA  BERG  BEER  HRER aif
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR \RBTL__\REBTL__ARETL__ARETT

At 31 December 2021 R2021%12 4318 27,350 21,959 7,498 - 56,807
Effect of adoption of amendments R (R ERNE 125 (BT

10145 12 (note 2.2(c) Y& hiH2.20) - - - 57,554 57,554
At 1 January 2022 (restated) R02F1A18 (BEi) 21,350 21,959 7,498 57,554 114,361

Credited/(charged) to profit or loss

during the year (restated) A/ (M) E g (83i) 11 7,540 2113 10,619 (4,391) 35,941
At 31 December 2022 and R2022E12 A31BR2023E1818
1 January 2023 (restated) (&) 34,890 44,132 18,117 53,163 150,302

Credited/(charged) to profit or loss

during the year A/ (k) EhER 1 (6,906) 40,940 (1.217) 30,782 57,599
Disposal of subsidaries HEHBAA - (14) (850) - (864)
At 31 December 2023 #2023512831H 27,984 85,058 10,050 83,945 207,037
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

21. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 21. IELEFIE »)

EEBABBENFANEZOT

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year
are as follows:

Fair value
adjustment on Right-of-use
Note acquisition assets Others Total
RRBELSH
il 1A ERRE FRESE =) At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 31 December 2021 R20215128318 1,087,691 - - 1,087,691
Effect of adoption of amendments to RR(ER e =R E 125 (53T5) f
IAS 12 (note 2.2(c)) T2 (Wi#220) - 58,189 - 58,189
At 1 January 2022 (restated) R202%1R18 (B&i) 1,087,691 58,189 - 1,145,880
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss
during the year (restated) M/ GrA) S hiEs (i) 1 (112,522) (5,548) 14,969 (103,101)
R2022%12A31 AR0BE1 A18
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 (restated)  (B&jk) 975,169 52,641 14,969 1,042,779
Charged{credited) to profit or loss during the year 718 / (Gt A) FREE 1 (118,872) 31,863 (4,879) (91,888)
At 31 December 2023 20235128318 856,207 84,504 10,090 950,891

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised.

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
RMB112,514,000 (2022: RMB142,560,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The
Group has tax losses arising in Chinese Mainland of
RMB485,073,000 (2022: RMB452,445,000) that will expire
in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits.

WARZEEREDRTEHRRAEE -
ARZEERTHELEBR —BREH
BB ARELR - BRA/T KA &
B FERT A B A R 85 5% F IR &

1o

AEEEEBEANBEBERAR
#112,514,0007T (20224 : AR¥
142,560,0007T) 7] #E PR HA b 3 45 8%
EEBEERARIRKERTAE o NE
EEFEANMEENRIEEBEEAAR
#485,073,0007C (20224 : AR
452,445,0007T)  ZFEAREIERK
ERBABENHBEESRN —Z21F
RE|E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF I SRR MR
) Year ended 31 December 2023
N = 2023 12 431 B ILFE

21. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 21. IEFERLIH (a0
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of WARFE 58 B R RERIBEE ¢

the following items:

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥EF T ARBTIT

Tax losses MIAE R 557,387 522,541
Deductible temporary differences ATV EY B R 2 5R 170,546 125,074
727,933 647,615

‘€&

22. INVENTORIES 22. &

2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTIT

Contract costs BRI 32,582 43,590
Other inventories HEFE 23,472 26,360
56,054 69,950
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28

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES 23. B 5 FEU Zh1E 1 FE U (R 5%

&

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T ARBFIT
Trade and notes receivables B Sk srIE K e E %

— Related parties (note 33) — @885 (H1i233) 2,487,278 2,124,407
— Third parties —%£=5 4,640,346 4,330,843
Retention receivables JEUURE & 73,277 48,517
7,200,901 6,503,767

Less: Allowance for impairment of trade and B B S REIGRIA R B
retention receivables IRFEBESRERE (419,801) (225,864)
6,781,100 6,277,903

Retention receivables are related to revenue earned
from the provision of construction of intelligent property
management services for which the right to the receipt
of consideration for work performed remains conditional
on the satisfaction of the service quality by the customers
over a certain period as stipulated in the service contracts.
The retention receivables are transferred to the trade
receivables when the right becomes unconditional, which
is typically at the expiry date of the defect liability period.

Trade receivables mainly arise from commercial and urban
space integrated services and AloT and BPaaS solution
services.

EURESBEHRESVEEREE
ARFG PR IR A B B - BB IR
% R TR TR E R
MEFEEFRBRBEOREN—K
REANYIRBEERNMERD AIE
E - ZHMENKREREE CBE
RRFERERERE R) - BERES
BRE SRR -

BoRWHRIEEERAEOMETE
R4 AR - AloT &k BPaaSH R AR
BR7E o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

: Year ended 31 December 2023
W =023 12 A31 B IEEE

23. TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES 23. B 5 FE UK =k 18 % FE W IR 3%

(continued)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit. The credit term is normally decided on a
case-by-case basis upon the acceptance of the products
or the completion of service. The credit period is generally
one month, extending up to three months for major
customers. In view of the aforementioned and the fact
that the Group’s trade and retention receivables relate
to a large number of diversified customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables
are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade and retention receivables
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

- AC D)

AEBEBRATPNE S IGRREZAE
ERER - GEEHNBTEEMBRKL
RBETREBRRE - EEHRER
—EBA T2EFEREAEE=
Ao EREXFMARKTERE FE
WHRERERFRESERZ TRETP
EENEE  HUBERETNEER
Rk - BB RUFKIAETEE °

ERBEZAHLNKREERE BNk
LHIR - EHEWRIENERRES
RIBRER DATUOT -

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARBFIT

Within 1 year 1R 6,163,652 5,724,428
1 to 2 years 1226 376,436 502,923
2 to 3 years 2E3F 227,170 40,661
Over 3 years 3L E 13,842 9,891
6,781,100 6,277,903
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28

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES 23.

(continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
trade and retention receivables are as follows:

&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

g 2 EWRIE K ERRE
€ )

B 5 RYGRIA N RIRE 2 RERE
BRENZHERIOT

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARBTT

At the beginning of the year REH] 225,864 134,863
Impairment losses, net VERIEN SRVl 193,937 91,001
At the end of the year RER 419,801 225,864

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns
(i.e. customer type and service type). The calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value
of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

BmEDREBRBEREEETRE
#fr AETERBMEEREE - #EX
ERNBEFRUBEEANZEREP
AR (BNE PRI KRB ER) &8
Hﬁ%%ﬁ(?zm A ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ$bﬂ7ﬁ§
& *i"i%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ’\ﬁiﬁﬁﬂT
BAMBESEE - EA Hj(/R&iT*XZ(«
BRI TRAE SR AISEE R -

w@$ﬁ$%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRMET
: Year ended 31 December 2023
W =023 12 A31 B IEEE

23. TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES 23. B 5 FE UK =k 18 % FE W IR 3%

(continued) ﬁ (%)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk ERNEEBLEBREEREEENE S
exposure on the Group’s trade and retention receivables FE U R IE K FEU IR B4 M= B AR ik
using a provision matrix: O& ST :

Third parties

iy —

Less than Related
1 year parties
DR1E BB A
At 31 December 2023 P20234612A31H
Expected credit loss rate BHEEBRX 450%  25.21%  77.01% - -
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) BEAE(ARETT) 3,862,244 791,163 60,216 2,487,278 7,200,901
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) EHEEBR(ARETT) 173,969 199,458 46,374 - 419,801
At 31 December 2022 72022612 A31H
Expected credit loss rate BHEEBRE 236%  17.26%  72.02% - -
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) BEAE(ARETT) 3,687,039 656,975 35,346 2,124,407 6,503,767
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHEEEE(ARETT) 87,018 113,391 25,455 - 225864
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24,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ORI IR AR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24. JE{IEi1E - IRE& R HME
E/QL:]

RECEIVABLES

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBFIT
Current: E -
Other receivables H i e W Sk IE
— Payments on behalf of property owners (a) — REREEZHFTE) 1,537,831 1,428,297
— Deposits — & 425,833 392,822
— Other receivables — H i e I8 108,273 72,467
2,071,937 1,893,586
Less: Allowance for impairment of other
receivables Bk EL A0 RE W GRIE R B R (992,089) (915,050)
1,079,848 978,536
Prepayments to suppliers TE At B 7 SR IE 331,132 281,362
Prepayments for tax AN 501,416 437,956
1,912,396 1,697,854
Non-current: 1571/ 8
Deposits (b) % (b)
— JE UL AR 5 5B
— Amounts due from related parties (note 33) (K13£33) 1,562,026 1,602,676
— Others — HAtb 148,107 153,025
1,710,133 1,755,701
Others HAb 791,755 633,103
2,501,888 2,388,804
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

Year ended 31 December 2023
W =023 12 A31 B IEEE

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24. FA{4EIE - I#E& R HMfE

RECEIVABLES (continued)

(@) The balance represented payments made on behalf of
property owners under certain specific circumstances,
including but not limited to payments of centralised
procurement costs and transitional arrangements for
property management projects with temporary working
capital needs. Under the Group’s policy, such payments
on behalf of property owners must be settled within a set
period of time depending on the nature of the payment.
The Group did not hold any collateral over these balances.

(b) Non-current deposits mainly consist of deposits collected
by property developers for carpark space sales assistance
services.

The Group has assessed that the credit risk of amounts
due from related parties has not increased significantly
since initial recognition. At the end of each reporting
period, these receivables were categorised in stage 1
and 12-month expected losses are calculated. During the
reporting period, the Group considered that the expected
loss of other receivables from related parties was minimal.

The Group had assessed the expected loss of other
receivables from third parties and classified them into
stage 1 to stage 3 for measurement of ECL. A provision
matrix was used to measure expected credit losses for
other receivables from third parties based on days past
due, repayment history, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.
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24,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk

exposure on the Group's other receivables using a

provision matrix:

At 31 December 2023

202312318

B ORI IR AR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

24, TAIFIE - e R HAME
W IE )

TXHEII AN EEE A EERELE b
Y FIE AR EERRIR O EFR

Third parties

iy —

Related
Stage 1
£—ER

Stage 2
e

parties

ki

Expected credit loss rate BHEEBREX 3.38%  43.50%  90.27%

Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) BEEE(ARETT) 945,794 120,712 1,005,431 1,562,026 3,633,963
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) EHEEBR(ARETT) 31,931 52,508 907,650 - 992,089
At 31 December 2022 720224128318

Expected credit loss rate BHEEBRE 3.65%  41.06%  87.94%

Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) BERNE(ARETT) 856,160 60,661 976,765 1,602,676 3,496,262
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHEERE(ARETT) 31,220 24,905 858,925 - 915,050

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of

other receivables are as follows:

H A e U IR BB BB EN EEE
AT

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T AR¥ETTT

At the beginning of the year REH] 915,050 850,014
Impairment losses, net VERIEN SEi= V] 77,066 65,036
Disposal of subsidiaries HE M B AR (27) -
At the end of the year RER 992,089 915,050
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRMET
: Year ended 31 December 2023
N = 2023 12 431 B ILFE

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25. RERBESZEEY

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥EF T ARBTIT

Cash and cash equivalents HeRBRLEEY
Cash in hand BEEFERE 26,151 19,572
Cash at bank RITRD 16,109,346 13,723,509
16,135,497 13,743,081
Less: Restricted bank deposits B ZBRBIRITERK (390,446) (376,188)
Time deposits with original maturity of REEEHEB=EA
over three months 7 5E HAfF 3K (172,568) (21,830)
15,572,483 13,345,063
Cash and cash equivalents REeERREZEEY
— Dominated in RMB —UAR®E 15,180,051 13,206,172
- Dominated in HKD — BTTEHE 386,716 133,452
— Dominated in USD — AETTEHE 5,716 5,439
15,572,483 13,345,063
At the end of the year, the cash and cash equivalents RER AEBUARKGE
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to WA REEFEMARARE
RMB15,180,051,000 (2022: RMB13,206,172,000). The 15,180,051,0007T (20224 : AR
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, 13,206,172,0007T) - A R¥TEEH
however, under Chinese Mainland’s Foreign Exchange RABRAEMEY  BREPEAM
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, and COMNEE RARHI) R CAERE - ﬁ[&ﬁ
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the EEEMRTE) ANEEABAKRR
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ'\]ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂ/\ﬁ%ﬂ?ﬁﬁ,\
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange thEH -
business.
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25.

26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents
approximated to their fair values.

The restricted bank deposits included cash received from
property owners that is restricted to use in construction
of properties amounting to RMB352,950,000 (2022:
RMB292,910,000) as at 31 December 2023.

TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES

&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

25. BERBEEEY »

RITBESREE A RITERN RLF
BRI E - RITERTFARE
MHE QR ENEERIFART - R
ERBRSFEVNEAEEEQRE
BEE -

PR HI R 1T IF KB FE 1A 2 £ WER A 12
RAREXWENES  R2023F
128318 AAR#®352,950,0007C
(20224 : AR#292,910,0007T) °

26, EFENRERENERE

2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMEF T ARBTT

Trade and notes payables B Z RN RIERENRER
— Related parties (note 33) — B8t (H1aE33) 305,911 905,243
— Third parties —FE= 5,458,580 4,414,474
5,764,491 5,319,717

An ageing analysis of the trade and notes payables as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date, is as follows:

NRERENREOREDTOT

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARET T

Within 1 year 1R 5,312,726 5,085,753
1 to 2 years 1224 287,177 173,480
2 to 3 years DZEY4E 106,915 31,191
Over 3 years 3FLAE 57,673 29,293
5,764,491 5,319,717
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Ot RS AR YRR

' Year ended 31 December 2023
W =023 12 A31 B IEEE

26. TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES (ontnued) 26. B ENZERENZE

()
The trade and notes payables are non-interest-bearing and BoENFTBLEENERE AT:HER
are normally settled on the terms of 30 to 180 days. — R 30E 2180 HMHAR &£ E o
The fair values of trade and notes payables as at the AN E S FENRIE N EZ3E M 3 H
end of the reporting period approximated to their HAPR ¥ S - ERIREH RN A
corresponding carrying amounts due to their relatively BEAEEENEmMEMRS °
short maturity terms.
27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 27. A%
The Group recognised the following revenue-related NEBERATNEHKAMBNESRA
contract liabilities: & :
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
Short-term advances for services % HARF T FRIA 4,681,194 4,514,977
Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from the rEEERBEXERERE P HKE
advance payments received from customers while the BTET FRIE - AR R AR 75 e R R4 o
underlying services are yet to be provided. Such liabilities ZEBERASBERNEBIERMIE M o

increased as a result of the growth of the Group's
business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28. HiENAFIER B IEE

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Current: WE
Other payables 8 AN
Amounts due to related parties (note 33) JE SRR 7 5k 38 (f73233) 564,068 505,230
Cash collected on behalf of property owners REEFREHES 2,286,966 2,373,984
Deposits payable RS 1,084,206 1,026,029
Dividends g 423,647 105,536
Accruals and other payables FEFHIE B M E A e FRIA 773,328 1,043,809
5,132,215 5,054,588
Payroll payables ETE 1,749,995 1,555,974
Long-term payables within one year (note 33) —F AR EAE R FRIE
(Hi7£33) 3,520 16,948
Other taxes payables HifE#iRE 262,813 212,033
7,148,543 6,839,543
Non-current: FnE :
Amounts held on behalf of property owners REEEHENRE 1,121,356 955,811
Long-term payables KR FRIR 9,571 7,958
1,130,927 963,769
Other payables and accruals with third parties and related EASE =75 N A HE 77 #) B A FE ST B K
parties are unsecured and non-interest-bearing. The fair JEFtEEBERETEHE - RIEH
values of other payables at the end of the reporting period REMENRENAALBEEEAE
approximated to their corresponding carrying amounts. HEREEREE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRMET
Year ended 31 December 2023
W =023 12 A31 B IEEE

29. PROVISION 29. BB

Provision for
warranties Others Total
RERE Hit |5k
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR¥T T
At 1 January 2022 202291818 35,620 37,254 72,874
Additional provision BBIMNEE 47,368 10,478 57,846
Amounts utilised during the year FREHE & = (19) (19)
Reversal of unutilised amounts BOAEALEHE (13,418) = (13,418)
At 31 December 2022 and MW2022F12 8318 R

1 January 2023 2023%F1A1H 69,570 47,713 117,283
Additional provision BEIMNEE 58,581 25,759 84,340
Amounts utilised during the year FREFLE (319) = (319)
Reversal of unutilised amounts BOAREAEEHE (35,447) (18,947) (54,394)
At 31 December 2023 M2023F12A31H 92,385 54,525 146,910
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. g

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥EF T ARBTIT

Issued and fully paid: BT RBHHAC
Ordinary shares of RMB1 each FREBEARE1 T @ER 1,178,469 1,178,469
A summary of movements in the Company's share capital RARHBRAZESFIRAT -
is as follows:
Number of
shares in issue Share capital
ERITR®D
2 E S
RMB'000
ARET T
At 1 January 2022 M2022F 1818 1,050,420,000 1,050,420
Share issued: BETRG
Initial public offering BAAREE 116,714,000 116,714
Over-allotment FRER AR 11,334,700 11,335
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 M2022F12A318 &
2023F1A1H 1,178,468,700 1,178,469
Shares repurchased E)=1n) (2,185,600) =
At 31 December 2023 72023F12A31H 1,176,283,100 1,178,469
(a) As at 31 December 2023, 2,185,600 ordinary shares were (a) MR2023F12A31H ' ARAE %
repurchased but not yet cancelled by the Company. 2,185,600 HiBARHEITEIAE - HiE K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt IR M
‘ Year ended 31 December 2023
o N =003 12 A31B LLFE

31. RESERVES 31. f#fE
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements REFIRBAEEE  ANEBFEWEER
therein for the current and prior years are presented in HEPHE2NRNYBERRFE172E

the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 173 B &SRR

172 to 173 of the financial statements.

(i) Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represents 1) the
difference between the par value of the shares
issued and the consideration received; 2) the excess
of the consideration over the carrying amount of
the non-controlling interests acquired/disposed;
and 3) the fair value of the share-base payment
granted.

(i) Fair value reserve of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income

The fair value reserve of financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income
comprises all revaluation changes arising from the
equity instruments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income.

(iii) Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve represents
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations
whose functional currencies are different from the
Group's presentation currency.

EREBHERERNDER AR 2023FFH
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ZHEMEZR  2)HEBBE W
BB e R ERM R
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32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RESERVES (continued)

(iv) Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC
and the respective articles of association of the
group companies, each of the companies that is
domiciled in the PRC is required to allocate 10%
of its profit after tax, as determined in accordance
with PRC GAAP, to the statutory surplus reserve
until the reserve reaches 50% of the registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be
made before the distribution of a dividend to
shareholders.

The statutory surplus reserve is non-distributable except
that in the event of liquidation and, subject to certain
restrictions set out in the relevant PRC regulations, can
be used to offset accumulated losses or be capitalised as
paid-up capital.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

Non-cash investing and financing activities disclosed
in note 16.

Sl

720

B ORI IR AR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

ERC))
(V) SEEEBATHE

BEFBRCRBDE)MEE R A
ZEEMARIER EH M
BE AR MNABEB %R B
10% (BREFPHIBSETER
BE) "BEEEAECRBLAE -
BEEZ AR ENFMELRD
50% ° MZAESHERMNA
MRS IR E 2 BIHETT ©

EEBBABRTADES - BOR
EITRE  ETEMRBEIRRENE
TREMRRT - A AREIHERE
BRERMEREHER -

O REREBRMEE

(a) EEBFREXSZ

BERWE16PHERERE
KBRS o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& OF I SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
W =023 12 A31 B IEEE

32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 32. AHBEELRERMIE »
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from (b) HREBESIENERS
financing liabilities 5 B
Interest-bearing
bank borrowings  Lease liabilities Total
TERTER HEARE &5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
At 1 January 2022 R2022%1 818 15,587 250,547 266,134
Changes from financing cash flows BEELRELH (16,202) (129,879) (146,081)
New leases MEE 102,273 102,273
Interest expense FIEHE 625 10,603 11,228
Foreign exchange movement INERS (10) - (10)
At 31 December 2022 and 2022612 A31B &
1 January 2023 2023F1A1H - 233,544 233,544
Changes from financing cash flows BEAELRELH = (130,253) (130,253)
New leases MEE - 239,620 239,620
Interest expense FIEFE = 8,538 8,538
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHRBAR = (88) (88)
At 31 December 2023 #2023%F12A31H - 351,361 351,361
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. AR S

(a) Name and relationship with a () BB AT EBBREEZH
related party e RES
The ultimate holding company is China Vanke. BRI BRI AT] ©

(b) Transactions with related parties (b) HEHMAEINRKS
The Group had the following transactions with NEBRERNEBGE TS
related parties during the year: R

Notes 2023 2022

Hiz 2023 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT

Purchases of investment properties BEREMME
The ultimate holding company and its REERARRERB AT

subsidiaries (the “China Vanke Group”) ([BN%E]) ] 21,653 6,334
Receipts of services EEHRE
China Vanke Group EREE (ii) 47,395 9,902
Associates and joint ventures of China

Vanke Group EREERE AR RkaE S (ii}) 5,275,522 4,486,304

5,322,917 4,496,206

Lease of office space HERAEH
China Vanke Group ErEE (iv) 30,292 25,211
Rendering of services REMRE (v)
China Vanke Group ER5E 3,865,129 4,289,011
Associates and joint ventures of China

Vanke Group EREEBEARIRABLE 853,885 752,848

4,719,014 5,041,859
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties

(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The purchase of investment properties refers to
the purchase of parking spaces and other assets.
The fees to be charged for the purchase of
investment properties shall be determined with
reference to the historical transaction amounts
during the reporting period and the prevailing
market purchase of similar assets offered by the
independent third parties.

Receipts of services from China Vanke Group refer
to the purchase of accounting auxiliary services,
technology system usage and maintenance
services. The fees to be charged for these
services shall be determined with reference to
the prevailing market prices and prices for similar
services offered by the independent third parties.

Receipts of services from associates and joint
ventures of China Vanke Group refer to the
purchase of security service, cleaning service
and electromechanical maintenance service. The
fees to be charged for the security service and
electromechanical maintenance service will be
determined with reference to, where applicable,
(1) the prevailing market prices of similar services;
(2) the anticipated operation costs (including
but not limited to the scope and standards of
particular services to be offered, labour costs,
administration costs and costs of materials); and
(3) the prices for similar services offered by the
independent third parties.

The fees to be charged for the property lease shall
be determined with reference to the historical
transaction amounts during the reporting
period and the prevailing market rent of similar
properties located in similar areas offered by the
independent third parties.

ENEEMMBRB RN ERAE 2023FFH

33. A RF )

(b) EHEBENRS @)

EE

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

BEREMMREREEFEM
REMEE BEREUME
BT REE B2 E HRE S
MESRSGSEARBILE=
HRENENLEEET SN
TREEEE -

BEEMEBEESNRT 2B
BEEstWBRG - B R acH
0 R EIRTS - 2 F R
TRRNERH2ERITHE
NI E =77 R R LUUR B IR
HREBIRETE °

BENMEEBRERRRAED
EWEWRBEEEBEER T4
ERY O BRRB LB EHE
MR% - P M RIS R E
EIRB T URENE RS EE
RIERT2E (1) BLRBRT
miE : 2)BEFELEKE (B
18 S IR A He 41 5 TE AR 765 0 #8 [
KIZEE - BERA BERER
MEER)  RQ)BILE=I71
HEVEURBSEL -

MERESTHRBHERKS
ERBEHENELR SR
AR I8 % =75 RO R 12
HBLUMETERSEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties

(continued)

(v)

Rendering of services refers to the space
management service and value-added commercial
services. The fees to be charged for the space
management services will be determined with
reference to, where applicable, (1) the guidance
rate published by the relevant government
authorities; (2) the prevailing market rate (taking
into consideration the location and condition
of the properties); (3) the anticipated operation
costs (including but not limited to the scope and
standards of particular services to be offered,
labour costs, administration costs and costs of
materials); and (4) the prices charged by the
Group for providing comparable services to the
independent third parties.

&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

33. BEEART e

(b) EHEBINRXS @)

(v)

he (o AR 75 2 48 2 ) B IR AR 7
AR ER DR - =R E R
AR % T U By & R S A E B
BT 2% ()RR KT DI %
EIEEE  Q)RITHEEX
(ZEEIM BRI RAMMR)
B)EFHEERA (BHEETR
MR H S E RS & & E &R
- BERA - BERERMHE
ER)  ROFEERBLE=
77 RSB CUR TS PR O (B AR ©
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Year ended 31 December 2023
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(c) Balances with related parties

33. A RF )

(c) EERBARETS AYAEER

Notes 2023 2022
it 2023%F 20025
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Trade and retention receivables ESRKGEREURES (i)
China Vanke Group EREE 1,894,570 1,707,109
Associates and joint ventures of China
Vanke Group BREERERAREELE 592,708 417,298
2,487,278 2,124,407
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FEFIE - ZeREMEKRTRE ()
China Vanke Group BR&HE 1,405,256 1,455,849
Associates and joint ventures of China
Vanke Group BREEBERNRRAERE 156,770 146,827
1,562,026 1,602,676
Trade and notes payables BEZRENTEREMNRE (i
Associates and joint ventures of China
Vanke Group BREERERAREELE 305,911 905,243
Other payables and accruals HitEARIRREHER ()
Other payables HitERTa
China Vanke Group BREE 477,949 341,372
Associates and joint ventures of China
Vanke Group EREEHERNRREELE 86,119 163,858
564,068 505,230
Long-term payables within one year —FREAREERNFE
China Vanke Group BER&EE 3,520 12,930
Associates and joint ventures of China
Vanke Group EREEBRENARAELE - 4,018
3,520 16,948

BME=RPMERBRMOER AT 2023FFR
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&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. AR E @

(continued)

(c) Balances with related parties () EEREBEA &R )

(continued)

Notes 2023 2022
Mzt 2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT

Long-term payables REENTE
China Vanke Group ERER 8,213 4,729
Associates and joint ventures of China
Vanke Group EREEBRENRARAE L E - 1,009
8,213 5,738
575,801 527,916
Contract liabilities SEEE ()
China Vanke Group EREE 150,218 105,539
Lease liabilities HEEE (1)
China Vanke Group BR&HE 32,649 35,336
Associates and joint ventures of China
Vanke Group EREEBERRRAERE 179,627 =
212,276 35,336
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: Year ended 31 December 2023
W =023 12 A31 B IEEE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. BBMAERS @
(continued)
(c) Balances with related parties (c) EHEEAFNGEE @

(continued)

Notes: Hiat -

(i) Trade and retention receivables from related (i) WA TNE S EWRER
parties, trade and notes payables to related EWRES - ENEE NG
parties, contract liabilities to related parties, other SENTIEREMNZE - $ik
payables and accruals to related parties and lease “HTHMARAE  HEEHAN
liabilities to related parties are trade in nature. HiEMNRERESER AR

HEMOIHEEREHARES
TEH -

(ii) Prepayments, deposits and other receivables from (ii) KA FEMNZIE B
related parties mainly consist of deposits charged LEMERREBEFEREDE
by property developers for carpark space sales BHESPg st B A 48 E AR AS W B iy
assistance services, which are trade in nature. B4 HBRBIME o

(d) Compensation of key management d) XEEXTEEEAESH
personnel of the Group: EA -

Further details of directors’ and the chief EBES NGRS THA S HEM

executive’s emoluments are included in note 9 to HEEE - SR BARR RN ©

the financial statements. The emoluments of key TEEBAETH(BREE &
management personnel (other than directors and STHAB)T :

the chief executive) are as follows:

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARBTT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind  #4& - JEALE YR A 1,878 1,854
Discretionary bonuses IS TEAL 7,476 5,904

Pension costs, housing funds, medical BRReER  FEQAES -
insurances and other social insurances BERRBR M EMT SRR 358 337
9,712 8,095
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34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:
31 December 2023

Financial assets

B ORI IR AR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023

HZE2023F 12 A31 B IEFE

34. MEBHETWEMT A

RBESHR SRR TANKEE

LN

2023%12H31H

TREE

Financial assets

designated
Financial assets at fair value
at fair value through other Financial
through profit  comprehensive assets at
or loss income amortised cost
NAREE
HUAREE HERHEH
TEEHES AL e
TAEBEEMN 2EMED BT RN
tHEE SHEE SHEE 3
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBT T
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAEZEN - - 15,572,483 15,572,483
Time deposits with original maturity
of over three months REHRBA=EANEBF - - 172,568 172,568
Restricted bank deposits RBHE TR - - 390,446 390,446
Financial assets at fair value through AR EEEE AR NS R AR
profit or loss SHEE 976 - - 976
Trade and retention receivables EHRUERENRES - - 6,781,100 6,781,100
Financial assets included in prepayments, — FTARRZE « R REMENGES
deposits and other receivables PREE - - 2,789,981 2,789,981
Equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive REANARBEERAEED AL
income SERENRERE - 812,719 - 812,719
976 812,719 25,706,578 26,520,273
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Year ended 31 December 2023

7 0023F 12 A31HIEFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

304 &

CATEGORY (continued)

Financial liabilities

34.

(&)

ERAE

REHNETNEMTE

Financial
[E e
fair value Financial
through profit liabilities at
or loss amortised cost
UAREE
FEAHSH REH
AAEHERN AT RN
tHEE LHBE CH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T ARET T
Trade and notes payables BHRMNFERERNEE - 5,764,491 5,764,491
Financial liabilities included in other AT BN FUE R IERTE B H
payables and accruals SRBRE - 6,240,182 6,240,182
Lease liabilities HERE - 351,361 351,361
- 12,356,034 12,356,034

EEHRERBRO AR AR 2023FF 5k

(o}
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&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 34. IBEHEATHWERTA
CATEGORY (continued) (%)
31 December 2022 2022412 A31H
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets
designated
Financial assets at fair value
at fairvalue  through other Financial
through profit  comprehensive assets at
or loss income  amortised cost Total
HERMN

WREE AAEERER
FEREEY  HEHIAEM
Ea

SAEHBEN EA R A
THEE THEE FEMZRAE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT

Cash and cash equivalents BehReSEN - - 13,345,063 13,345,063
Time deposits with original maturity

of over three months RIHBRB=EANTEHER = = 21,830 21,830
Restricted bank deposits RRHBTHER - - 376,188 376,188
Financial assets at fair value through AAREESTEAEEH A

profit or loss EHEENEREE 976 = - 976
Trade and retention receivables 2 5 EWGA R EMRE S - - 6,277,903 6,277,903
Financial assets included in prepayments, T ATNFE - & R EERK

deposits and other receivables TENEREE = - 2,734,237 2,734,237
Equity investments designated at fair value 8T B ALEEE AEEF

through other comprehensive income STARf 2 ARG R RER S = 910,830 - 910,830

976 910,830 22,755,221 23,667,027
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B Ot RS AR YRR

' Year ended 31 December 2023
W =023 12 A31 B IEEE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 34.

CATEGORY (continued)

Financial liabilities

()
ERMERE

Financial
liabilities at fair
value through

Financial
liabilities at

RERIAIHNEMITA

profit or loss  amortised cost Total
NS EE
FEAHEY
AR HERN REHEKA
CRAR HENERARE ch
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARET T
Trade and notes payables BHRNTERENEE - 5,319,717 5,319,717
Financial liabilities at fair value through NAABEFEAEZHA
profit or loss EHEENEREE 191,792 - 191,792
Financial liabilities included in other STAHMENFRREIEE #
payables and accruals SRBE = 6,008,979 6,008,979
Lease liabilities HEBE - 233,544 233,544
191,792 11,562,240 11,754,032
35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 5. TAMTEANAABERRA

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS

As at 31 December 2023, the fair values of the Group's
financial assets or financial liabilities approximated to their

respective carrying amounts.

H{ERE

ERERLTERABA

REERER

MN2023%F 128318 ' A&EBEEHRE
EXSRBEN A AABEEARSBERE

%%FEL&/TA

Management has assessed that the fair value of trade

and retention receivables, financial assets included in REWGRZS  sTATANIIE - S

prepayments, deposits and other receivables, cash and &Eﬁﬁﬁgq& KEMEMEE  Hek
cash equivalents, trade and notes payables, financial ReZEEY  BSENKBRAENE
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, lease BT AEMERRIBERESTIEE /N
liabilities approximate to their carrying amounts largely TEAE - Tﬂfﬁ\ EMAREBEER
due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. FEEMESE  FEEARZETIAY

BREHME -
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35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
|NSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group's finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance department reports directly to
the chief financial officer. At each reporting date, the
finance department analyses the movements in the values
of financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, the non-current portion of other payables
and accruals and lease liabilities have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The changes in fair
values as at 31 December 2023 were assessed to be
insignificant.

The fair value of a listed equity investment is based on
quoted market prices.

The Group invests in debt investments, which represent
wealth management products issued by banks in Chinese
Mainland. The Group has estimated the fair values of
these unlisted investments by using a discounted cash flow
valuation model based on the expected future interest
return on maturity of the wealth management product
instruments.

39:

&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

EMITENARBERA
REEERw

AREBERMBE IR EEEE
EEMESRIAAABENAENRK
RARERF - WBEHFIEERERETH
BER - MHHMPINSHREBHDM
EMIEANEEES  YHEEMGLET
ERNEI2GARE - HEREREY
5B =B ML

SRAERABNALBEDER
TAREERBESENRS (M3
RERERBEE) THOTRBEHA
B - AR A BENTERBR
T

FTATBNRIE - e kEAEYFKIAE
MEMEEMNENHBONAAE
B - EfbfERRIBRERTIEE K IFERD
HBIMNAABEALEEAGBTE
BERBABREUGER - ZERERKEE
SHERMTEBAAIBANFIR - ZTE
HARRESREETHRTE - ©
2023F12A31HM AR EBEESE
WEHE B TERX °

FHRERENRAABELDERTS
HE -

AEBREREHRE (AHEAM
RITHTHEMER) - ARERE
I B E om T AL B B RS TR B OR RN 2. [l
HoERMARSREMGERDL - 4
AR EFLMRENAEE -
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 5. EMITENARBERA
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL REEEBHR =
|NSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy AREEER

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRIAPALRER ST ENAARER
hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments: HEER

As at 31 December 2023 M2023%F12H31H

Fair value measurement using
RAUTRBEEAAEBE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

EXTHE EBEATITER

BB ERE WAHE WAHE
(B—#) (E=%) (B=%) &t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T ARET T ARET T

Financial assets tREE
Equity investments at fair

value through other NARBEEEEEFHAA
comprehensive income Hit2EKmmRERE
Listed equity investments kR E 812,719 - - 812,719
Financial assets at fair NARBEFEAEZHA
value through profit or loss EHERNEREE - - 976 976
812,719 - 976 813,695
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&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 3Bb. EMITEMNAALAEBERERA
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL REEEH =
|NSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) AREEER @
As at 31 December 2022 72022912 A31H

Fair value measurement using
FRAATREERAEE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EXTEE EATAER
R HR(E BARR LN
(F—&) (B=8&) (B=4) G
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARBETL  ARETT  ARETE

Financial assets tREE
Equity investments at fair

value through other NARBEEEEEFHFA

comprehensive income Hit2EKRmRERE

Listed equity investments kR E 910,830 - - 910,830
Financial assets at fair WAAEBE=EEEFHHFA

value through profit or loss EHERNEREE - - 976 976

910,830 - 976 911,806

Financial liabilities ERAR
Financial liabilities at fair value WAAEBEGEBEEHFA

through profit or loss EHERNERER - - 191,792 191,792
For the equity investments designated at fair value HREERAAAEEFEEEEZS
through profit or loss, fair value was determined by the AR HERNRERE  AREE
changes in the net assets of the unlisted equity entity. If DIREIELETMRETEBNEEFEE
the net assets had increased/decreased by 10% with all FMET - WREFMBEHME SR
other variables held constant, the profit before income tax TEMNBRT  BEFEEN R
for the year ended 31 December 2023 would have been 210% @ BB =2023F12A318 1E
approximately RMB97,600 (2022: RMB97,600) higher/ FEMFAESHAFBELM, m
lower. HWAR®I7,6007T (20225 : AR¥

97,6007T) °
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B Ot RS AR YRR

: Year ended 31 December 2023
W =023 12 A31 B IEEE

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE /. EMITEMNAABERA

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Fair value of financial liabilities measured within Level
3 fair value measurement is mainly affected by changes
of the discount rate. If the discount rate had increased/
decreased by 10% with all other variables held constant,
the profit before income tax for the year ended 31
December 2023 would have been approximately
RMB970,000 (2022: RMB970,000) higher/lower.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets
and financial liabilities (2022: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly include
restricted bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other receivables, trade and other payables, which
arise directly from its operations. The Group has other
financial assets and liabilities such as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, time deposits with original
maturity of over three months, lease liabilities, amounts
due to related parties and amounts due from related
parties. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise finance for the Group's operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

EREBHERERNDER AR 2023FFH

REBEEBHR «

MAREBEEB&K 5

FZRAABEFENSHREENA
AEEETBEIUBRELNTE -1
REFMBEMEEREFETENER
T - BRIR RN R 10% 0 AIEE
2023F 12 A31 A EFERMERA]
FIEAEE M, m A4 AR 970,000
70 (20224 : AR#¥970,0007T) °

FH RemEEREREBENS -
F—REE—_RoEAEAALBER
EMER  F-HMEESEARESR
(2022F : &) »

TREREEE R BEREE

AEENEIREEMTATZEEXR
HERITER - B hkReFEY - E
ZREMEWHIE - B 5 REMEN
RIE - HERRAELEERR - AR
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REEFEEHEEH T AZTHERN
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KEWRAR T HIE - ZE M T AN
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36.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk of loss resulting from
changes in foreign exchange rates. Fluctuations in
exchange rates between RMB and other currencies
in which the Group conducts business may affect the
Group's financial condition and results of operations. As at
the end of the reporting period, since the Group did not
hold any financial instruments denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the respective
operating units, the Group did not have any significant
exposure to the foreign currency risk.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its trade
and retention receivables, other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, time deposits with original maturity of over
three months and restricted bank deposits.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk
associated with cash and cash equivalents and restricted
bank deposits since they are substantially deposited at
state-owned banks and other medium or large-sized listed
banks. Management does not expect that there will be
any significant losses from non-performance by these
counterparties.

B ORI IR AR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

3. cRIEREEEEREE

(%)
5B L B

S| BEE [ B A i R S)INEE [ o B B i SR K
BROER ARBEASERLEX
TSR EL A & 2 [ 9 B R R ) 7] B
SREAKBNYBRR REER
B NBEMR > BARAKEILREF
BIEMASKELEMEE R AN
E¥GHENeRIA  WAKEYWK
T e (R ERSNE R

ERAR

7R £5 B H R B EL & 5 PR MR OR K IR R
RES  HMEWHIER  Re KR
ZEY  RIHBBEBE=1E AT
FREXREBITERBEENEER

e o
AN

AEERRARS MRS EBYMIR
HIRTFRELBEREERR AR
HARBOFBRREFRITREMAF
BEMRT - EERERHTERERZ
EXFUFREBOMELERNEKX
B8 o
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X % Year ended 31 December 2023
BN =0023F 12 A31 B IEEE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. cREREEBEERBEK

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

The Group expects the credit risk associated with trade
and retention receivables and other receivables due from
related parties to be low, since the related parties have
strong capacity to meet contractual cash flow obligations
in the near term.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. Concentrations of credit risk are managed
by analysis by customer/counterparty. There are no
significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group
as the customer bases of the Group's trade and retention
receivables and other receivables are widely dispersed. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

EREBHERERNDER AR 2023FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ORI IR AR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BLEFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. RIEREEHERER
OBJECT|VES AND POLlClES (continued) (#&)
Credit risk (continued) %Eﬁ?ﬁ‘ (%&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging BAREREREER
The tables below show the credit quality and the TRINREARNEREZERE (KT
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s FTEENBEHEL - BRIEEMER B
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due BIEBTIVERAS I HEI A ER)
information unless other information is available without MEEEEZNHEAEERRE  AER
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification 1231 B ERIEEDLE - FTE5HY
as at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross SHEESHMEENERERAAME -

carrying amounts for financial assets.

12-month
31 December 2023 20235124318 ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12EARM
FEBR HERRARERE

Simplified

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-KR KR #2ER fBiLr% 3
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARET T ARBTT ARBT T ARET T ARBTT

Trade and retention receivables* B RUTEREN GRS - - - 7,200,901 7,200,901
Financial assets included in prepayments, HABRZE - ke REMEK

deposits and other receivables FENERAE

- Normal** = e 2,507,820 120,712 - - 2,628,532

- Doubtful** - Fgiee - - 1,005,431 - 1,005,431
Restricted bank deposits RRHE TR

— Not yet past due - WRDH 390,446 - - - 390,446
Time deposits with original maturity

of over three months RISRBA=HANE D

— Not yet past due - WA 172,568 - - - 172,568
Cash and cash equivalents ReRASEEN

~ Not yet past due - AR 15,572,483 - - - 15,572,483

18,643,317 120,712 1,005,431 7,200,901 26,970,361
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. cREREEBEERBEK
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (%)
Credit risk (continued) %Eﬁ?ﬁ‘ (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) BEXERREERBER (&)
12-month
31 December 2022 2022128318 ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{EARH
FERR FESRNEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
KR s _B& EE ik ait
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Trade and retention receivables* BARMGER B FES - - - 6,503,767 6,503,767
Financial assets included in prepayments, SABRE - REREMER
deposits and other receivables FENSREAE
- Normal** = 2,458,836 60,661 - - 2,519,497
- Doubtful** ~ TR - - 976,765 - 976,765
Restricted bank deposits RRHIF TR
~ Not yet past due - AR 376,188 - - - 376,188
Time deposits with original maturity
of over three months RISRBR=HANE R
~ Not yet past due - AR 21,830 - - - 21,830
Cash and cash equivalents ReRASZEN
~ Not yet past due - WRBE 13,345,063 - - - 13,345,063
16,201,917 60,661 976,765 6,503,767 23,743,110
Z For trade and retention receivables to which the & RAEBREAB T AETRENE S
Group applies the simplified approach for impairment, EYRERERRIZEMS @ ERXNEE
information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in FEME ) B R B B SRR R M 523 -
note 23 to the financial statements.
> The credit quality of financial assets included in i ARG A TR FRIE B E At FE MR IE DA 2
prepayments and other receivables and other assets is HithEENSMEE RO HEMESR
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due HETNEHEeREEQVREREGE
and there is no information indicating that the financial ERREREEMN - MEEEERBEREAR
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial [E%] BRIeHMEENEEERZWR
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial RITFEE] o

assets is considered to be “doubtful”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of
funds to cover expected cash demands, subject to approval
by management and directors when the borrowings
exceed certain predetermined levels of authority.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of each reporting period of the
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period)
and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.

As at 31 December 2023 7A2023F12H31H

&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

3. cRIEREEEEREE

(%)
B 1 EL R

AEEANSKETREREEASGRS
B BRASASKNEMRENRS
mEBRRReHERERES  BER
REBLETREERAMNE - AKE
BERESIE -

TRIIFRERERHR - ERALR
MRRERE (BRERSONERN
(WAFBME) ERHEHRIETT
MR E R B N ARKE DT
EEBRBENSR TEOIHBREAX
SEAEEIXNNZEEH -

Less than

12 months 1 to 5 years Total

—ZHF CEl
RMB’'000  RMB’000
ARBFT _ARETT

LR12{8 A
RMB’000
A KRBT T

Trade and notes payables B SN FIARENEE 5,764,491 - 5,764,491

Financial liabilities included in AT A EL b A< 3B K AT
other payables and accruals EHENE@MBE 5,109,255 1,130,927 6,240,182
Lease liabilities HEBE 110,892 271,440 382,332
10,984,638 1,402,367 12,387,005
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. TEIEREEBEREEK
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (%)
LIqUIdlty risk (continued) ﬁiﬂ’lﬁ@?ﬁ(%)
Less than
12 months 1 to 5 years Total
L1218 A —EhHF BE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT ARETRT ARETT
As at 31 December 2022 7A2022F12H831H
Trade and notes payables B SN FIERENRR 5,319,717 = 5,319,717
Financial liabilities at fair value ARAREERZBEES)
through profit or loss SAEHEZRNSRAs 191,792 = 191,792
Financial liabilities included in ST AEL D (< 3R I8 AT
other payables and accruals HEMcmAE 5,045,210 963,769 6,008,979
Lease liabilities HEAE 115,617 132,939 248,556
10,672,336 1,096,708 11,769,044

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total interest-bearing
borrowings minus cash and cash equivalents divided by
total equity as of the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group maintained
at net cash position.

ENEEMMBRB RN ERAE 2023FFH

EXEE

AEEEAEENTIEZABRR/RER
AR UXFHHEEBIARBREE
=X -

AEERBEBERAECRABEE
WERFBRERERARRLE AR
B RERIABEARE  A&H
AREERHBERARRKENRE - AR
RIBREERKBEITHR

AEBENFREREREREANE
o FRBRRRA BERRERE
MR ARRERTE o

M2023F K2022%F 12 A31H » A&
BRIFZFFE AR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
HZ2023F12A31HIEFE

37. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING 37. REHREE
PERIOD
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the MNEREEARE EFEZIRBERAK
directors proposed a final dividend. Further details are B o BZAFHENME12E -

disclosed in note 12.
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& OF I SRR MR
: Year ended 31 December 2023
N = 2023 12 431 B ILFE

38. STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 38. ZA&AQ T B i 4k R &
OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position RRA RN S I RH B S Ak R E R
of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as NS
follows:

31 December 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022

2023% 2022%F 202%F
12A31H 12A31R8 1A1R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT AREFT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE REE 10,794 2,849 3,540
Right-of-use assets EREEE 176,547 10,012 19,392
Investments in subsidiaries N IEPNGIE S 7,327,469 7,189,984 6,738,984
Investments in joint ventures and associates WA S MEMEE N FIHRE 86,242 67,675 74,247
Deferred tax assets ERREEE 44,164 2,678 5,123
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — FEfT A ~ %4 kA b E YA 630 1,631 4,187
Total non-current assets FnBEELE 7,645,846 7,274,829 6,845,473
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Trade and retention receivables Z S REWFIE K EIRES 2,292 15,980 47,982
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  TEfT 3B « 84 K E e Uk FUE 14,066,520 10,795,119 10,289,837
Restricted bank deposits RRHBEITER - 4,725 2,122
Time deposits with original maturity of over

three months [REIE AR B =8 A M B 100,000 - 486,000
Cash and cash equivalents Be kAL ZEY 13,733,552 11,601,431 3,838,642
Total current assets MEBEELE 27,902,364 22,417,255 14,664,583
CURRENT LIABILITIES RERE
Contract liabilities ARa%E 1,198 3,934 2,944
Other payables and accruals HivE(TIERERTIRE 18,875,638 14,404,725 12,559,114
Lease liabilities HERRE 16,815 9,413 13,516
Tax payable RN 26,077 52,713 23,982
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&P TS SRR MR
Year ended 31 December 2023
B Z22023F 12831 ILFE

38. STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 38. KN BB AR R IR ()
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

31 December 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022

2023F 2022%F 20026
12A31H 12A31H 1A1H
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT ARETT

Total current liabilities mEaELETR 18,919,728 14,470,785 12,599,556
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 8,982,636 7,946,470 2,065,027
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEAERADEAE 16,628,482 15,221,299 8,910,500
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES krBaE

Other payables and accruals HivE(TIERERIRE 7 7 7
Lease liabilities HERRE 159,840 1,299 6,975
Deferred tax liabilities ELHIBEE 44,137 2,503 4,848
Total non-current liabilities FRBEELE 203,984 3,809 11,830
Net assets BEFE 16,424,498 15,217,490 8,898,670
EQUITY i

Share capital AR 1,178,469 1,178,469 1,050,420
Other reserves (note) HinfE (47:2) 15,246,029 14,039,021 7,848,250
Total equity BnEE 16,424,498 15,217,490 8,898,670
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38. STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 38. Z< A BB FE 4R R 3+ (=)
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: Hiat -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AABIEFER AT
Statutory
Capital surplus Retained
reserve reserve profits Total
BB AERBOE AR5 A &t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFT AREFTRT ARETRT ARETRT
At 31 December 2021 7H2021F12A31H 7,294,999 525,210 27,766 7,847,975

RBP4
Effect of adoption of amendments 251258 ({51 4N) B &

to IAS 12 (note 2.2(c)) (K15t2.2(c)) - - 275 275
At 1 January 2022 (restated) R2022F 1 A18 (&) 7,294,999 525,210 28,041 7,848,250
Total comprehensive income for ~ FR2 MW E4E%E

the year (restated) (fesEa) - - 697,173 697,173
Issue of shares BFITRG 5,599,585 - - 5,599,585
Share issue expenses R TR (105,987) - - (105,987)
Transferred from retained profits B &% A & F|# H = 70,967 (70,967) =
At 31 December 2022 and M2022F12 A31 B KR

1 January 2023 (restated) 202351 A1 8 (&&Eat) 12,788,597 596,177 654,247 14,039,021
Total comprehensive income for

the year FREERERE - - 1,910,938 1,910,938
Dividends declared BEEIRRE - - (655,228) (655,228)
Share repurchased BRERRKRG - - (48,702) (48,702)
At 31 December 2023 7202312 A31H 12,788,597 596,177 1,861,255 15,246,029

39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 39. MBHMERNEFH
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised SRR MN2024F3A22BEEES
for issue by the board of directors on 22 March 2024. BEAE I B o
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